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Qur sights are set

on profitable growth.
As we take actions to
transform the company,
we are targeting growth
in specific industrial
markets and reducing
the cyclicality of our
business. The course
we are charting will
create value for both
our customers and

shareholders.

OurR VISION

We are dedicated

to improving our customers' performance

by applying ocur knowledge

of frictiton management and power transmission
to deliver unparalleled value and innovation

all around the world.

ODOuUR CORE VALUES




FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2006 2005
[Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Net sales $ 4,973,365 $ 4,823,167
Income from continuing operations 176,439 233,656
Income from discontinued operations” 46,088 26,625
: Net income $ 222527 $ 260,281
: Net income per share — diluted $ 236 $ 2.8
Dividends per share $ .62 $ .60
*Discontinued operations reflects the December 8, 2006 sale of Latrobe Steel Company. Incoms frg iscor_ninued
operations includes the gain on the sale and income from Latrobe operations for periods prior t at sales

exclude Latrcbe Steel for all periods.
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TOo OUR SHAREHOLDERS

In 2006, we embarked on one of t:rfe most sweeping series of
changes in the history of The Timken Company. The path we have
charted is intended to improve the creation and delivery of both
customer and shareholder value - and enhance our leadership
position in selected market spaces. With the a;ssistanée of strong

markets and dedicated associates, we have made meaningful

progress in transforming our company and value proposition.
We delivered a strong financial performance
in 20086, despite rapidly declining demand
from North American automotive customers.
We entered 2007 better positioned to grow
and to consistently achieve stronger

' profits.
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James W. Griffith,
President and

Chief Executive Officer, left,
and Ward J. Timken, Jr.,
Chairman
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In 2006, we set a number of performance records and improved our balance sheet.
* Net sales reached $5 billion, reflecting continued high demand in energy, aerospace,
heavy industrial and aftermarket sectors.

* Netincome per diluted share was $2.36, among the highest in Timken's 107-year history.'
Supporting this result was exceptional performance in our steel business with record
sales, profits and productivity.

+ Our acticns strengthened the balance sheet significantly, with the net debt-to-capital ratio
dropping to 25.2 percent, down from 30.5 percent. We improved leverage even with
significant capital expenditures to support our growth initiatives and contributions of
$243 million to fund our domestic pension plans.

* Across the company, we made major changes in our portfolio, growing in focused areas,
exiting non-strategic businesses and restructuring to improve effectiveness.

* Around the world, Timken employees rededicated themselves to improving execution,
achieving record levels of safety performance and making significant advances in
customer service.

Timken is becoming a better company. We have a more balanced portfolio, and we are
beiter positioned 1o proceed with the next step in our transformation. We are maving forward
confidently, focused on increasing shareholder value by strengthening our leadership in chosen
markets.

INVESTING IN GROWTH

Our growth efforts are focused in Asia and in specific markets where we have a
demonstrated ability to create customer value and, therefore, expand profitably. These include
investments in our core businesses and in extending the Timken brand into new markets
where we can leverage our capabilities to improve customers’ performance,

We added manufacturing capacity in the aerospace and heavy industry segments of our
business, with the most comprehensive program of new plant investments in our history. We
expanded bearing capacity at five North American and European sites, opened a new spherical
bearing facility in China and broke ground on three more Asian facilities. We expect these
investments to position us for leadership in these markets.

More than capacity, we are building additional capabilities in our aerospace business,
which is growing at a compound annual rate exceeding 25 percent. We completed two small
acquisitions and opened a new Aftermarket Solutions headquarters in Mesa, Arizona, as we
strive to better serve customers over the lifecycle of our products. We expect to continue to
look for acquiéitions that create value for customers and shareholders.

In Asia, our presence continues to grow. In addition to manufacturing facilities, we have
opened new distribution facilities, sales offices and training centers across the region. We
ended the year with 4,400 associates in Asia, nearly 18 percent of our worldwide total and up
25 percent from the prior year.




IMPROVING OUrR PORTFOLIO

In 2006, we made a concerted effort to improve our corporate portfolio, shifting our
emphasis 10 segments where we can provide differentiated value for our customers. We
divested businesses with sales totaling $482 million, freeing management attention and
financial resources to pursue important strategic initiatives.

By selling our Latrobe Steel subsidiary in December and our European precision stee)
components business earlier in the year, we exited segments where we have been unable
to achieve consistent levels of profitability. This allows us to focus our steel investments
in places where we can provide differentiated capabilities. We also divested our automo-
tive steering business in December, as part of the automotive structural changes aimed at
focusing in areas where we can be rewarded for customer value creation. We thank our
associates in those businesses for their efforts over the years and wish them well with their
new companies.

We made sclid progress on restructuring activities across the corporation, as we transform
ourselves to be more effective and more consistently profitable.

* In our automotive business, we are on track to achieve $40 million in savings by 2008 through
our restructuring program, with closures complete at two facilities and closure or downsizing
under way at three more facilities. An additional workforce reduction program begun in 2006
is on target to deliver $35 million more in savings by 2008. Actions taken in 2006 reduced
Automotive Group employment by approximately 16 percent.

* In our steel business, in addition to the divestitures previously described, we announced plans
to exit steel tube manufacturing in the United Kingdom.

* |n our industrial business, we have continued to benefit from strong market demand, which
has slowed our efforts to raticnalize our Canton, Chio, bearing facilities as we respond to this
favorable market dynamic.

These actions are critical steps in improving the ongoing profitability of the company.

INCREASING DIFFERENTIATION
Across the company, we are investing significantly in the capabhility to create unique value
for our customers:

+ Steel investments will increase the size range of our engineered alloy forging bar to the
widest range in the industry — frem one inch to 15 inches. We also expanded our capability
for specialized heat-treating and extended our range of precision steel components.

* |n our automotive business, we launched new value-added applications worth more than
$170Q million, while exiting other applications that were not profitable.

* We extended the range of our industrial aftermarket products and services, adding a new
line of large bore seals and multipoint tubricators.

IMPRAOVING CAPABILITIES

Beyord our investmeants to leverage specific market opportunities are a series of initiatives
that are all aimed at const;ucting a foundation for the company's future. Technology is the
lifeblood of Timken, and we spend nearly $60 million annually for research and development in
areas where we can create real value.
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Of more immediate impact is Project O.N.E. (Our New Enterprise), an initiative aimed at
redefining how business will be conducted in the future — and employing an IT infrastructure
that better supports our business systems. We completed a pilot launch in our Canadian
operations in July 2006 and plan to complete our first major U.S. implementation in 2007.

During 2006, we added valuable expertise to the governance of the company. John P. Reilly

- was elacted to Timken's board in July and brings extensive experience in both industrial and
automotive sectors. We welcome him and value his counsel. '

BOLDLY MOViNG FORWARD

The pace of change at Timken is intense. Qur investments in new capacity, growth
opportunities and restructuring initiatives, when combined with the fall in demand from
North American automakers, had an impact on our 2006 financial results. Taking the longer-
term view, we believe we made the right choices for redefining Timken to provide better
prospects for growth and consistent profitability.

The considerable equity we have built in the Timken brand continues to differentiate us
from our competitors. We are leveraging the strength of our brand to grow the business, both
organically and through acquisitions. We believe Timken is well-positioned for the challenges
ahead. The course we have charted is shaped by an unyielding commitment to managing
“for value creation. It is a transformational course that we believe will lead to a stronger focus
on industrial markets, a more global presence and to unprecedented levels of sustainable and
profitable growth.

We thank you for your continued confidence and investment in The Timken Company, and
we look forward to crossing new territory together in 2007.

fri 7
ur 1w G c/v. farreted
Ward J. Timken, Jr. James W. Griffith
Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer March 1, 2007
1899 1940 1950 1960 1970 1980 1980 2000 2006
$59 $144 $245 $389 $1,223 $1,5682 $2,438 $4,973

[

NET SALES*
{Dollars in Millions)

As Timken continues to
grow, the course we have
charted is shaped by an
unyielding commitment

to managing for value
creation.

* Excludes sales from
discontinued operations.




CHARTING
SOLUTIONS
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#Timken customer Doug
“Forslund shows the helicopter
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TRACKING
CRITICAL NEEDS

Timken is helping to meet the global demand for energy through critical
products and services used for wind turbines, drilling equipment, mining
trucks, draglines, cable shovels, continuous mining equipment, coal crushers,
conveyors and other heavy equipment. In 2006, energy-related applications
accounted for approximately 10 percent of Timken's industrial product
sales and 20 percent of steel sales. We expect even more penetration in this

market as,energy-needs grow.
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At a new engineering
training center in

Wuxi, China, Timken
engineers discuss product
technologies that will
help them develop
solutions for a growing
base of customers

in China.




P

TAREETING
OPPORTUNITIES

As engines and transmissions become more powerful and fuel-efficient,
Timken is seizing opportunities for profitable growth through _.différenti-””
ated products. We are working with Daido Steel Company, a major supplier
to Japanese automakers, in expanding our steel rolling mill operations to
produce small steel bars, down to one-inch diameter, for a varie'ty 05
customers, including automotive transplant customers. One advantage of
these smaller steel bars is 1_:he ability to forge them into near-net shaped
components, thus reducing machining costs. Their premium quality also
helps in designing components with longer life and increased [gliabilitv.
As a result of this project, with its cost efficiencies and '['gmkeﬁgadvanced

“clean steel” technologies, we intend to lead North- American production;of
-~ -

e
competitiveiy priced, special bar-quality steels in this size range,
Beyond high-performance automotlve small bar appllcatlons. Timken's

/
differentiated steel products are able to meet demandlng requirements in

energy and industrial markets. In 20067 we began two projects focused

on high-p'érformance applications’in these markets. The first increased the
capacity and efficiency of-heat-treating operations, which has resulted in
new business. Thersecond expanded our product range to take advantage
of attractive’growth markets in the energy and industrial sectors. This
project’increased our rolled carbon and alloy steel round bar capabilities to
a‘maximum diameter of 15 inches, making Timken the only U.S. manufacturer
capable of rolling these large high-quality bars to a length of up to 26 feet.

With these expanded capabilities, Timken steel products are ideally suited for

many high-performance applications.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

B e s T Ty T

John M. Timken, Jr.
Director since 1986 (A, F)
Private Investor

Ward J. Timken, Jr.
Director since 2002
Chairman -

Frank C. Sullivan
Director since 2003 (A, F)
President and

Chief Executive Officer
RPM International Inc.

Jacqueline F. Woods
Director since 2000 (C, N)
Retired President

Board of Directors SBC/ AT&T

The Timken Company

At at T
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James W. Griffith
Director since 1999
President and

Chief Executive Officer
The Timken Company

John A. Luke, Jr.
Director since 1999 {C, N)
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
MeadWestvaco

Jerry J. Jasinowski
Director since 2004 (C, N)
Retired President and
Chief Executive Officer
National Assaciation of
Manufacturers and
Retired President

The Manufacturing
Institute
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Phillip R. Cox

Birector since 2004 (A, C, F)
President and Chief
Executive Officer

Cox Financial Corporation

Joseph F. Toot, Jr.
Director since 1968 (F. N)
Retired President and
Chief Executive Officer

’ The Timken Company
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Robert W. Mahoney

Director since 1892 {A, N}

Chairman Emeritus

Diebold, Incorporated

John P. Reilly

Director since 2006 (A, C)
Chairman

Exide Technologies

(A} Member of Audit Committee

{C) Member of Compensation
Committee

{F) Member of Finance Committee

{N) Member of Nominating
and Corporate Governance
Committee

Ward J. Timken
Director since 1971
President

Timken Foundation

Joseph W. Ralston
Director since 2003 {C, N)
Vice Chairman

-The Cohen Group




16

OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVES

Ward J. Timken, Jr.*
Chairman - Board of Directors

James W. Griffith* )
President and Chief Executive Officer

Glenn A. Eisenberg*
Executive Vice President — -
Finance and Administration

Jerry C. Begue
Managing Director ~ Europe

William R. Burkhart*
Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Christopher A. Coughlin
Senior Vice President — Project O.N.E.

Alastair R. Deane™
Senior Vice President — Technology

Donna J. Demerling
Senior Vice President — Quality
and Lean Six Sigma

Jon T. Elsasser
Senior Vice President
and Chief Information Officer

Philip D. Fracassa
Senior Vice President — Tax and Treasury

Michael J. Hill
Senior Vice President - Supply Chain
Management

Rokert J. Lapp
Vice President — Government Affairs

Roger W. Lindsay
Senior Vice President - Asia Pacific

J. Ted Mihaila*
Senior Vice President and Controller

Debra L. Miller
Senior Vice President - Communications
and Community Affairs

Mark J. Samolczyk
Senior Vice President — Corporate Planning
and Development

Scott A. Scherff
Corporate Secretary
and Assistant General Counsel

John C. Skurek
Vice President — Treasury

Dennis R. Vernier
Vice President — Auditing

Donald L. Walker
Senior Vice President -« Human Resources
and Organizational Advancement

AuUuToOMOTIVE GROUP

Jacqueline A. Dedo*
President — Autormnotive Group

Charles M. I?yrnes, Jr.
Vice President — Automotive — Americas

H. Roger Ellis
Vice President — Operations

Kenneth L. Hopkins
Vice President - Automotive — Europe

Peter M. Sproson-
Vice President — Automotive Business
Development

Marc A. Weston }
Vice President — Automative — Asia

INDUSTRIAL GROUF

Michael C. Arncld*
President - Industrial Group

Michael J. Connors .
Vice President - Industrial Equipment

Thomas O. Dwyer
Vice President - Off-Highway

Mathew W. Happach
Vice President — Rail

Richard G. Kyle
Vice President — Manufacturing — Industrial

J. Ron Menning
Vice President — Aerospace, Consumer
and Super Precision

Daniel E. Muller
Vice President - Distribution
Management

STEEL GROUVUP

Salvatore J. Miraglia, Jr.*
President — Steel Group

Robert N. Keeler
Vice President — Sales — Steel

Cengiz S. Kurkcu

Vice President - Steel Business
Development and President — Precision
Stee! Components

Thomas D. Moline
Vice President - Steel Manufacturing

*Required 10 file reports under Section 16 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
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Title of each class ‘Name of each exchange.on which registered S
Common Stock, without par value ] New York Stock Exchange

] : : {State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
'kl

|

I

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

' ’

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defirred in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
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3 .
Indic:-;te by check mark whether the registrant (1} has filed afl reports required to be filed by’ Section 13 or 15{d} of the Securities
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and (2) has been subject to such filing requirerments-for the past 90 days. .

YES[x] NOD
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulation S K is not contained herein, and will not be
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$2,836,362,258 based ‘on the closing sale price as reported on the New York Stock Exchange.

-
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PART I. - _ o

R : . . . X
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General . " T : . - . . P ‘o

~ As used herein, the term *Timken* or the company refers to The T'rmken Company and its subsidiaries unless the context othenmse
requures Timken, an outgrowth of a busmess ongmally founded in 1899 was rncorporated under the Iaws of the state of Ohio i |n 1904

- Timken is'a leadrng global manufacturer of h:ghly engineered’ beartngs aIon and'specialty steel and related components.- The company
is the world's largest manufacturer of tapered roller bearings and alloy seamless mechanlcal steel tublng and the Iargest North
Amencan—based bearings manufacturer. Timken had facilities in 26 countrles on six contments and employed approximately 25 000
people as of December 31, 2006. . .. L o .

. :-:71 E ‘ Y o A e . . Cac A - L

Prod ucts

The Timken Company manufactures two basrc product hnes " anti- fr:ctlon beanngs and steel products leferenttatlon in these two

product lines comes in two dlfferent ways: [1) differentiation by bearing type or steel type and (2} dlfferentlatron in the applrcatlons
of beanngs and steel. . . T

N . .
Tapered Roﬂer Bearrngs In the bearing tndustry, Timken is best known for the tapered roller bearrng whrch was’ orlglnally patented
by the company founder Henry T'mken The tapered roller bearing is Trmken s prlnctpal product in the antl—frlct|on |ndustry segment
It consrsts of four components (m the cone or inner race, (2} the cup or outer race, l3l the tapered rollers whnoh roII between the cup
and cone and l4) the cage, ‘which serves as a retainer and’ marntams proper spacrng betweeén the rollers kaen manufactures or
purchases these four components and then sélls them i in a wrde varlety of conflguratlons and sizes. "

The tapered rol]ers permlt ready absorptron of both radial and axral load combtnatrons For ‘this reason tapered ro||er bearlngs are
partlcu!arly well- adapted (s} reducrng friction where shafts, gears or wheels are used The uses for tapered ro!ler bearlngs are diverse
and include applrcatrons on passenger cars, Irght and heavy trucks and trams as well as a wrde vanety of :ndustnal applrcatrons
rangmg from very small gear drives to beartngs over two meters in d|ameter for wand energy machines. A number of appllcattons
utilize bearings thh sensors to measure parameters such as’ speed, Ioad temperature or overall bearmg condltron ‘ -

Matchrng beanngs o the specmc requrrements of customers’ applrcatlons requlres englneenng and often sophnstrcated analytrcal
techmques The' desrgn of TimKen's tapered roller bearing permrts distribution-of unit pressures over the fuII Iength of the roIIer This’
desrgn combrned with high precision tolerances, propnetary internal geometry and premium qualrty materral provrdes kaen
beanng's wuth hrgh Ioad carrylng capacrty excellent fr|ct|on -reducing qualrtres and long life. : L ) .

Precision Cyhndncal apd _Bah' Bearrnge“."ﬁmken S aerospace and super precision facilities produce high-performance ball and
cylindrical bearings for ultra high-speed and/or high-accuracy applications in'the aerospace, medical and dental, computer and other
industries. These bearrngs utilize ball and strarght rolling elements and are in the super precision end of the general ball and stratght
roIIer bearing product range in the bearlng mdustry A majority of Timken's aerospace and super precision bearings products are

J custom -designed beanngs and sprndle assemblies. They often involve specialized materials and coatings for use in appltcatrons that

sub]ect the bearrngs 1o extreme operatrng "conditions of speed and temperature.

Spherrca! ano‘ Cyhndncal Beanngs Timken produces spherical and cylindrical roller bearings for large-gear drives, rolling mills
and other process mdustry and infrastructure development applications. Timken's cyllndrrcal and spherical roller bearing capability was
significantly enhanced with the acqwsrtlon of Torrington's broad range of spherical and heavy-duty cylindrical roller bearings for
standard rndustrlal and specialized applications. These products are sold worldwide to original equipment manufacturers and industri-
al distributors serving majar industries, . including construction and mining, natural resources, defense, pulp and paper production,
roIItng mllls and general industrial goods. )

o
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Products {continued)

Needle Bearings. With the acquisition of the Engineered Solutions business of Ingersall-Rand Company Limited {referred to as

“Torrington®) in February 2003, the company became a leading global manufacturer of highly engineered needle roller bearings.
Timken produces a broad range of radial and thrust needle roller-bearings, as well as bearing assemblies, which are sold to’original
equipment manufacturers and industrial distributors worldwide. Major applications include” automotive, consumer, construction,
agriculture and general industrial. : ‘

Bearing Reconditioning. A small part of the business involves providing bearing reconditioning sefvices for industrial and railroad

customers, both internationally and domestically. These services accounted for less than 5% of the company's net sales for the year .

ended December 31, 20086. -

Aerospace Aftermarket Products and Services. Through strategic acquisitions and ongoing product development, Timken
continues to expand its portfolio of replacement parts and services for the aerospace aftermarket, where 'thay are used in both civil
and military aircraft. In addition to a wide variety of power transmission and drive train components and modules, Timken supplies
comprehensive maintenance, repair and overhaul services for gas turbine engines, gearboxes and accessory systems in rbtary- and
fixed-wing aircraft. Specific parts in addition to bearlngs include airfoils {such as blades, vanes, rotors and diffusers), nozzles, gears,
and oil coolers. Services range from aerospace bearmg repair and component reconditioning to the complete overhaul of engines,
transmissions and fuel controls.

Steel. Steel product's' include steels of low and intermediaté alloy, as well as some carbon grades. These producis are available in
a wide range | of solid and tubular sections with a varlety of fengths and flmshes These steel products are used in a wide array of
appllcatuons including bearmgs automotive transmissions, engine crankshafts oil drlllmg compenents, aerospace parts and other
similarly demanding applications.

Timken also produces custom-made steel products, including steel components for automotlve and industrial customers. This steel
components business has provided the company with the opportumty to further expand its market for tubing and capture hlgher value-
added steel sales. It also enables Timken's traditional tubing customers in the automotive and bearing industries to_take advantage of
h|gher-perform|ng componems that cost less than current alternative products. Customizing of products is an important portion of the
company's steel busmess : ‘

. . United Other _
Geographic Financial Information States Europe Countries Consolidated
{Dollars in thousands)
2006
Net sates $ 3,370,244 $ 849,915 $ 753,206 $ 4,973,365
Non-current assets ‘ 1,578,856 285,840 - 266,557 2,131,253
2005 _
Net sales $ 3,295171 $ 812,960 $ 715,036 $ 4,823,167
Non-current assets 1,413,575 337,657 177,988 1,929,220
2004 . ) )
Net sales ) $ 2,900,749 $ 779,478 % 606,970 § 4,287,197

Non-current assets " 1,399,155 398,925 221,112 2,019,192
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o Factors used by management fo' rdentrfy the enterpnse s reportable segments

Industry Segments

The company has three reportable segments:: Industrial Group, Automotive Group and Steel Group. Financial information for the '
% .segments is discussed in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Staternents. ’ o : -

Description of types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues
The company's reportable segments are business units that.target different industry segments or types of product. -Each reportable
‘segment is managed separately because of the need to specifically address customer needs in these different industries.

The Automotive Group includes sales of bearings and other products and sérvices {other than steel) to automotive original equipment

" manufacturers, or OEMSs, for passenger cars, trucks and trailers. The Industrial Group includes sales of bearings and other products

and services (other than steel} to a diverse customer base, including industrial equipment';off-highway, rail and aerospace and defense
customers. The Industrial Group also includes aftermarket distribution operations, including automotive applications, for products other

than'steel. The company's bearing products are used in‘a variety of products and ‘applications, including passenger-cars; trucks,

locomotive and railroad cars, machine tools, rolling mills and farm and construction equipment, aircraft, .missile guidance:systems:
computer peripherals and medical instruments. !

The Steel Group includes sales of low and intermediate alloy and carbon grade steel. These are available-in a wide range of solid
and tubular sections with a variety of lengths and.finishes.: The company'alsp manufactures custom-made steel products, including
precision steel 'components Approximately 10% of the company's steel is consumed in'ité bearing operations. In addition, sales are
made to other anti-friction bearing companles and to the automotlve and truck, forging, construction, industrial equrpment oil and gas
dn|I|ng and arrcraft industries and to steel service centers In 2008, the company sold its Latrobe Steel subsrdlary .This business was
part of the Stee! Group for segment reporting purpeses. This business has been treated as discontinued operations tor all periods
presented.

Measurement of segment profit or loss and segment assets . : ca
The company evaluates performance and allocates resources based on return on capital and profitable growth. The pnmary measure-
ment used by management to measure the financial performance of each segment is adjusted EBIT {earnings before lnterest and

" taxes, exc|ud|ng specral items such as rmpalrment and restructunng charges rationalization and mtegratnon costs, one‘time gains or

losses on sales of assets, allocated receipts recewed or ‘payments made under the Continued Dumprng and Sub5|dy Offset
Act’ |(CDSO»‘-\) lss on dissolution of subsidiary, acquusmon -related currency exchange garns and other items similar in. nature) The
accountrng policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the' summary of significant accounung policies.
1ntersegment sales and transfers are recorded at values based on market prices, which creates intercompany profrt on mtersegment
sales ar transfers that is ehmmated in consolidation. : )

- 1

Thé company reports net sales by geographic area in a manner that is more “reflective of how the' company operates its segments,
which i$ by the destination of net sales. Non-current assets by geographr_c area are reportéd by the location of the subsidiary.

Export sales from the U.S. and Canada are Iese than 10% of revenue. The company’s Automoti‘ve and Industri\a_l._Groups have histor-
ically participated in the global bearing industry while the Steel Group has concentrated primarily on U.S. customers.

kaen s non-U.S. operatrons are subject to normal international business risks not generally applicable to domestic business. These
risks include currency fluctuatron changes in tariff restnctrons dlfflcultres in establishing and maintaining reratronshrps with Iocal
- distributors and dealers, import and export Ircensmg requrrements, difficulties in staffing and managing geocgraphically dlverse
operations, and restrictive regulations by foreign governments, including price and exdhange controls.
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Sales and Distribution .
Timken's products in the Automotive' Group and tndustriaf Group are sold principally by their own internal sales organizations.
A portion of the Industrial Group's sales are made through authorized distributors. -

Traditionally, a main focus of the company's sales strategy has consisted of collaborative projects with customers, For this reason;
the company's sales forces are primarily located in close proximity to its customers rather than at production sites. In some instances,
the sales forces are located inside customer facilities. The company’s sales force is highly trained and knowledgeable regarding ali
-bearings products, and associates assist customers during the development apd implementation phases and provide ongoing support.

The company has a joint venture in North America focused on joint logistics and e-business services. This alliance is called CoLinx,
LLC and was founded by Timken, SKF, INA and Rockwell Automation. The e-business service was launched in April 2001 and
is focused on information and business services for authorized distributors in the Industrial Groub The company also has another

e-business Jomt,venture which. focuses on information and business services for authorized industrial distributors in Europe, Latm
Amenca and Asia. This alliance, which Timken founded with SKF, Sandvik AB, INA and Reliance, is called Endorsia.com International AB

Timken's steel products are sold principally by its own sales organization. Most orders are customized to satisfy customer-specific
applications and are shipped directly to customers from Timken's steel manufacturing plants. Approximately 10% of Timken's Steel
Group net sales are intersegment sales. In addition, sales are made to other anti-friction bearing companies and to the automotive and
truck, forging, construction, industrial equipment, cil and gas drilling and aircraft industries and to steel service centers.-

Timken has entered into individually negot1ated contracts wnh some of its customers in ifs Automotive Group, Industnal Group
and Steel Group These contracts may extend for one or mare years and, if a price is fixed for any period extending beyond current
shupments, customarily include a commitment by the customer to purchase a designated percentage of its requirements from Timken.
Contracts extending beyond one year that are not subject to price adjustment provisions do not represent a material portion of
Timken's sales. Timken does not believe that there is any significant loss of earnings risk associated with any given contract. *

Competmon ' ‘ -

The anti-friction bearing business is hlghly competntwe in every country in which kaen sells products kaen competes pnmanly
based on price, guality, t|rne1|ness of delivery, product design and the ab|||ty to provide engineering support and serwce ona globai
basis. The company competes with domestic manufacturers and many foreign manufacturers of anti- frlctlon beanngs rncludlng SKF,
INA, NTN Corporation, Koyo Selko Co Ltd and NSK Ltd.

Competition within the steel mdustry, both domestically and globally, is intense and is expected to remain so. However, the recent
combination of a weakened U.S. dollar, worldwide rationalization of uncompetitive capacity, raw material cost increases and
North American and global market strength have allowed steel mdustry prices to increase and margins to |mprove 'i'mken's
worldwide compemors for steel bar products include North Amencan producers such as Republic, Mac Steel Mlt‘tal Steel Dynamics,
Nucor and a wide variety of offshore steel producers who export into North America. Competitors for seamless mechanical tubing
include Dofasco, Plymouth Tube, Mlch|gan Seamless Tube, V & M Tube, Sanyo Speaal Steel, Ovako and Tenaris. Competitors in the
precision steel components sector include Formtec Linamar, Jernberg and overseas companies such as Tenaris, Ovako, Stackpole
and FormFlo. '

Maintaining high standards of product quality and reI|ab|!|ty while keeplng production costs competitive is essential to Timken's ablllty
to compete with domestic and fore|gn manufacturers in both the anti-friction bearrng and steel busmesses

-
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Trade Law Enforcement I S

The U.5. government has six antidumping duty orders in effect covering.ball bearings' from five countries and tapered roller bearings
* from China. The five countries covered by thé ball bearing orders are France, Germany, ltaly, Japan'and the United Kingdom The
company is @ producer of these products in the United States. .The U.5. government determlned in August 2006 that each of these

SIX antldumpmg duty,orders should remain in effect for an addltlonal flve years . . T

r

\

Contrnued Dumping and.Subsidy Offset Act (CDSOA) . L : . PR a

3

The CDSOA provides for distribution of monies collected by u.s. Customs from antrdumpmg cases to qualifying domestic producers
where the domestic producers have contlnued to invest in their techno!ogy, equnpment and people - The company reported CDSOA
receipts, net of expenses, of $87.9 million,;.$77.1 l"l"ll|||0l'l and $44.4 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively.

,_- The-amount for 2004 was net of the amount that kaen delrvered to the seller of the Torrlngton busuness pursuant to the terms of
the agreement under which the company purchased Tornngton In 2004 kaen dellvered to the seller of the Torrlngton busmess
' - 80% of the CDSOA payments recetved in 2004 for Torrmgton s beartng busrness '

d il

In September 2002, the World Trade Organlzatlon lWTOJ ruled that CDSOA payments are not consistent with mternat:onal trade rules

In February 2008, U. S Ieg:slatlon was enacted that would end CDSOA dlstnbutrons for lmports covered by antldumplng duty orders )

i ) entering the U. S, after September 30 2007. Instead any such antldumplng dutres collected would remaln with the U S. Treasury
. + This Ieglslatlon is not expected to have a srgnlflcant effect on potentlal CDSOA dnstnbutrons in 2007, but would be expected to reduce

‘e, ltkely dlstrlbutlons-ln years.beyond 2007"wrth distributions eventually ceasing.; ' . ¢ ! .J‘r, g e B L ,?

in separate cases in July ‘and September 2006 the'U’S. Court of Internatlonal Trade wcm ruled that the procedure for determrnlng
recrplents ehgnble to receive CDSOA dlstrlbuuons is unconst:tut:onal “The CIT has:fAdt ruled'on other matters mcludung any remedy
as a result of its ruling. The company expects that these rulings of the CIT wili be appealed The' company is unable to determine, at
this time, if these rul|ngs will have a rnaterral adverse impact on the company'’s financial results. s R

In addition to the CIT rulings, there are a number of factors that can aftect whether.the company. receives any CDSOA dlstrlbutlons

and the amount of such distributions in any.year. These factors include, among other thlngs potential additional changes in the law,

ongomg and potentlal addmonal legal challehges to the-law and the admlnrstratwe operatlon -of the law. Accordingly, the company

i cannot reasonably estrmate the amourt of CDSOA distributions it will receave in future years, if any. If the company does recewe
" CDSOA drstrrbutlons in 2007, they I|ker erl be received in. the fourth quarter

‘ -3
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Joint Ventures
The balances related to investments accounted for under the equity method are reported in other non-current assets on the
Consolidated BaIance Sheet, which were approximately $12.1 million and $19.9 million at December 31, 2006 and 2008, respectively.

During 2002, the company's Automotive Group formed a joint venture, Advanced Green Components LLC {AGC), with Sanyo Special
Steel Co., Ltd. {Sanyo) and Showa Seiko Co., Ltd. (Showa) AGC is engaged in the business of converting steel to machined rings for
tapered beanngs and other related products. The company had been accounting for its investment in AGC under the equity method
since AGC's inception. During the third quarter of 2006, AGC refinanced its long-term debt of $12.2 million. The company guaranteed
half of this obligation. The company concluded the refinancing represented a reconsideration event to evaluate whether AGC was a
variable interest entity under FASB Interpretation No. 46 {revised December 2003}. The company concluded that AGC was a variable
interest entity and the company was the primary beneflmary Therefore,. the company consolidated AGC,. effective September 30,
2006. As of September 30, 2006, the net assets of AGC were $9.0 million, primarily con5|st|ng of the following: inventory of $8.7 mil-
lion; property, plant and equipment of $27.2 million; goodwill of $9.6 miltion; short-term and Iong -term debt of $20.3 million; and other
non-current liabilities of $7.4 million. The SS 6 million of goodwill was subsequently wntten-off as part of the annual test for impair-
ment in accordance W|th Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Alt of AGC's assets are collateral for its obligations.
Except for AGC's indebtedness for which the company is a guarantor, AGC's credltors have no recourse to the assets of the company.

Backlog - : ‘ - L

The backiog of ofders of Timken's domestic and overseas operations is estimated to have been $1.96 bllllon at December 31 2006
and $1.98 billion at December 31, 2005. Actual sh|pments are dependent upon ever-changlng production schedules of the customer.
Accordingly, Timken does not believe that its backrog data and comparisons thereof, as of ditferent dates, are reliable indicators of
future sates or shipments.

Raw Materials

The principal raw materials used by Timken in its North American bearing plants to manufacture bearings are its own steel wbing‘and
bars, purchased strip steel and energy resources. Outside North America, the campany purchases raw materials from local sources
with.whom it has worked closely to ensure steel quality, according to its demanding specifications.

The principal raw materials used by Timken in steel manufacturing are scrap metal, nickel and other alloys. The availability and prices
of raw materials and energy resources are subject to curtailment or change due to, among other thi.ngs, new laws or regulations,
changes in demand levels, suppliers’ allocations to other purchasers, interruptions in production by suppliers, changes in exchange
rates and prevailing price levels. For example, the weighted average price of scrap metal increased 87.1% from 2003 to 2004,
decreased 7.7% from 2004 to 2005 and increased 7.9% from 2005 to 2006. Prices for raw materials and energy resources continue
to remain high compared to historical levels. '

The company continues to expect that it will be able to pass a significant porticn of these increased costs through to customers in the
form of price increases or raw material surcharges.

Disruptions in the supply of raw materials or energy resources could temporarily impair the company’s ability to manufacture its
products for its customers or require the company to pay higher prices in order to obtain these raw materials or energy resources from
other sources, which could affect the company's sales and profitability. Any increase in the prices for such raw materials or energy
resources could materially affect the company's costs and its earnings.

Timken believes that the availability of raw materials and alloys is adequate for its needs, and, in general, it is not dependent on any
single source of supply.
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- Research

Timken has developed a significant global footpnnt of technology centers. -

The company operates four corporate rnnovatr_on and development centefs. Th‘e'-la'rgest technical center. is located in North Canton, .

Ohio, near Timken's world headquarters, and it supports innovation and know-how for friction management product lines, such as
tapered roller bearings and needle beanngs ‘In 2006 Timken opened a new technical center in Greenvrlle South Carolina, to support
innovation and know-how for power transmission “product lines. The company also supports related _technical capabilities with

_ facilities in Bangalore, India and Brno, Czech Republic.

In addition, Timken's business groups cperate severa! technology centers for product excellence within the United States in Mesa,

. Arizona, and Keene and Lebanon New Hampshrre Wrthrn Europe technology is developed in Ploiesti; Romania; Colmar France; and

i

. Halle-Westfallen Germany, ’ : _ - '

- ot ]

The company's technology commitment is to develop new and improved friction management and power transmrssron product
desrgns such as tapered roller bearings and needle bearings, with a heavy influence in related steel matenals and lean manufactunng'
processes. . : R

Expendrtures for research developrnent and application amounted to approximately $67.9 mlliron $60.1 million, and $56.7 million in
2006 2005 and 2004 respectrvely Cf these amounts, $8.0 mrllron $7 2 million and $6.7 mrlhon respectively, were funded by others,

Envrronmental Matters ‘ -
The company continues its efforts to protect the envircnment and:comply W|th environmental protection laws. Additionally, it has
mvested in pallution control equrpment and updated plant operatronal practrces The company is committed to rmplementlng a docu-

mented environmental management system worldwide and to becomlng certlfred under the ISO 14001 standard where appropnate_

to meet of exceed customer requirements. By the end of 2006, 30 of the company’s plants had obtained 1SO 14001 certification. .

The company believes it has established adequate reserves to .cover its environmental expenses and ‘has a well-established
'enwronrnental complrance audit program, which includes-a proactive approach to brrnglng its domestic and international units to

hrgher standards’ of environmental performance. This program measures’ performance agarnst applicable laws, as well as standards

" that have been establrshed for all units worldwide. It is difficult to assess the possible effect of compliance with future requirements

that drffer trom existing ones. As previously reported, the company is unsure of the future financial impact to the company that could
result from the ‘United States Environmental Protectron Agency’s {EPATS) fmal rules to tlghten the Nataonal Ambrent Air Quality
Standards for fine particulate and ozone. The company is alse unsure of potentral future financial |mpacts 1o the company that could

result from possible future Iegrslatron regulating emissions of greenhouse gases. ., . . o e

The company and certain U.S. subsidiaries have been designated as potentially responsible parties by the EPA for site rnvest:gatron
and remediation at certain sites under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act lCERCLAl known
as the Superfund, or state laws similar to CERCLA. The claims for remediation have been-asserted against.-numercus other entities,
which are believed to be financially solvent and are expected to fulfill their proportionate share of the obligation.

Management believes any ultimate liability wrth respect 10’ pending actlons wrll not matenally affect the companys operatlons cash

- flovvs or consolidated financial position. The company is also conductrng voluntary envrronmental |nvest|gat|ons "andjor remedlatrons

at a number of current or former- operating sites. Any liability with respect to such rnvestrgatrons and remedlatlons in the aggregate
is-not expected to be material to the operatrons or financial position of the cornpany P T . . R

New laws and regulations, stricter enforcement of existing talvs'and regulatrons the dlscovery of prevrously unknown contamrnatron
or the imposition of new clean-up requirements may requrre the company 10 incur costs or become the basrs for new or mcreased

. hiabilities that could have a matertal adverse effect on Timken's bhusiness, financial condition or results of operatrons .

- '
i
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Patents, Trademarks and Licenses .

Timken owns a number of LS. and foreign patents, trademarks and I|censes relatlng to certain products. While Timken regards these
as important, it does not deem its business as a whole, or any industry segment, to be materially dependent upon any one item or
group of items. ’ - '

-

Employment =~ = . : .
At December 31, 2006, Timken had 25,418 as_sociates. Approximately 17% of Timken's U.S. associates are covered under collective
bargaining agreements. .

r

Available Information
Timken's annual report on Form 10—K quarterly reports on Form 10- 0 current repons on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports
filed or furmshed pursuant to Sectlon 13{a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are available, free of charge, on Timken's
website at www. rrmken com as, 500 as reasonably practical after electronically filing or furmshmg such material with the SEC.

{tem 1A: Risk Factors

The following are certain risk factors, that could affect our business, financial condition and result of operations. The risks thar are
highlighted below are not the only ones that we face. These risk factors should be _cons:dered in connection with evaluating fon/vard-
looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K because these factors could cause our actial resuits and financial
condition to differ materially from those projected in forward-looking statements. If any of the following risks actually occur, our
business, financial condition or results of operations cou.fd be negatively affected. '

The bearing industry is highly competitive, and this compet:tron results in significant pncmg pressure for our
products that could affect our revenues and profitability. ~

The global bearing industry is highly competitive. We compete with domestic manufacturers and many foreign manufacturers of anti-
friction bearings, including SKF, INA, NTN, Koyo and NSK. The bearing industry is alsc capital- intensive and profitability is dependent

on factors such as labor compensation and productivity and inventory management, which are subject 1o risks that we may not be -

able to control. Due to the competitiveness within the bearing industry, we may not be able to increase prices for our products to
cover increases in our costs and, in many cases, we may face pressure from our customers to reduce prices, which could adversely
affect our revenues and profitability. : ' 3

Competition and consolidation in the steel industry, together with porentral globa! overcapacwtm could result

in significant pricing pressure for our products.

Competition within the steel industry, both domestically and worldwide, is intense and is expected to remain so. Global productlon
overcapacity has occurred in the past and may reoccur in the future, which, when combined with high levels of steel imports into the
United States, may exert downward pressure on domestic steel prices and result in, at times, a dramatic narrowing, or with many
companiges the elimination, of gross margins. In addition, many of our competitors are continuously exploring and implementing
strategies, including acquisitions, which focus on manufacturing higher margin products that compete more directly with our steel
products. These factors could lead to significant downward pressure on prices for our steel products, which could have a materially
adver.se effect on our revenues and profitability. . :

-

We may not be able to realize the anticipated benefits from, or successfully execute, Project O.N.E. ]
During 2005, we began implementing Project O.N.E., a' multi-year program designed to improve business processes and systems to
deliver enhanced customer service and financial performance. During 2007, we expect the first major U.S. implementation of Project
O.N.E. We may not be able to realize the anticipated benefits from or successfully execute this program. Qur future success will
depend, in part, on our ability.to improve our business'processes and systems. We may not be able to successfully do so without
substantial costs, delays or other difficulties. We may face significant challenges in improving our processes and systems in a
timely and efficient manner.
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Risk Factors (continued)’ . ‘

Implementing Project O.N.E. wifl be complex and time-consuming, may be distracting to management and disruptive to our businessés.
and may cause an interruption of, or a loss of momentum in, our businesses as a result of a number of obstacles; such as:

. the toss of key assocrates or customers
. the failure to maintain the quallty of customer service that wae have historically provided; . . ._.«J .
T the need to coordinate geographrcally diverse orgamzatrons- and.
* the resulttng dwerston of management s attention from our day- to-day busmess and the need to dedrcate addrtlonal :
) management personnel to address obstacles to the |mplementatron ‘of Prolect O.N. E '

If we are not successful in executing Project O.N.E., or if it fails to achleve the antncupated results, then our operations, margrns sales
and reputatlon could he adversely affected. . ‘ »

Any change in rhe operation of our raw material surcharge mechanisms or the availability or cost of raw. materials
“and energy resources ‘could matenaHy affect our earmngs -

We requrre substantlal amounts of raw matenals rncludlng scrap metal and alloys and natural gas to operate our busmess Many
of our customer contracts contain surcharge prlcmg provrsrons The surcharges are tied 1o a W|de|y~avallable market index for that
SDECIfIC raw rnatenal " Any change in the relatronshrp between the market indicés and our underlying costs could matenally affect our

earnlngs

Moreover, future disruptions in the supply of our raw matenals or energy resources could impatr our ability to rnanufacture our
products for our customers or require us to pay higher pnces 'in order to obtain these raw materials or energy:resources from ‘other
sources, and.could thereby affect our sales and profltablllty ‘Any increéase in the prices for such raw ‘materials or energy resources
could matenally affect our costs and thérefore our earnlngs ' '

Warranry, recal! or product habrhty clarms could marerrally adversely affect our earmngs

In ,our: busrness we are exposed to warranty and product liability claums In addmon we may be requrred to participate in the recall of
‘a3 product A successful warranty or product liability claim against us or a requirement that we participate in a product-recall, could

have a matenally adverse effect on our earnings

v L

‘The failure to achieve the anticipated results of our Automotive Group initiatives could materially affect our earnings. ;
During 2005, we began’ restructuring -our Automotive Group operations t0 address chal!enge-s in the automotive markets. - We |

- ‘expect that this restructuring will cost approximately $80 million to $90 million (pretax) and we are targeting annual pretart savings of
approximately $40°million by 2008. In response to reduced production demand from North American automotive manufacturers, in
September 2006, we announced further planned reductions in our Automotive Group workforce of approximately 700 associates
We expect that- thrs workforce reductron erI cost approxmately $25 mrII:on {pretax) and'we are targetlng annual pretax savrngs of

. approxlmately $35 mllllon by 2008. The fallure to achleve the antrcrpated results of our Automotwe Group restructunng and workforce

. £ N

reduction |n|tratlves including our targeted annual sawngs could adverse[y affect our earnmgs ) R
.-,-;,g- . M . . N B L
" The farlure to achreve the anticipated results of our Canton bearrng operauon rauonahzatfon initiative coufd
marenaﬂy adversely affect our earnings. ... . . : : . -

- - ' " '. \

After reaching anew. four—year agreement with the. unlon representlng employees m the Canton ‘Ohio bearing and steel plants in 2005
we refined our plans to rationalize our Canton beanng operations. We expect that this rationalization initiative will cost approxrmately
$35 million to $40 millien {pretax) over the next three years and we are targetlng annual pretax savings of approximately $25 mrlllon
.The failure to achleve the antrcrpated results of thrs rnmatwe |nclud|ng our targeted annuaI savings, could adversely affect our
-earnings. Lo : T ' R

.-‘;Y . . i LA ot ;;-‘ . . L. . t‘. - .

We may incur, further impairment.and restructurrng charges that cauid matenaHy affect our proﬁtabmty -1

) We have takenrapproxrmately $82.6 million in |mpa|rment and restructuring charges for our Automotive Group.restructuring and

workforce reduction and the rationalization of our Canton bearing operations during. 2006 and 2005 and expect.to take addrtronal !

charges in connection with these initiatives. Changes in business or economic conditions, or our business strategy may result in
addmonal restructuring programs and may require us to take additional charges in the future, which could have a materially adverse ©

effect on our earnings.

THE TIMKEN COMPANY 9
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Risk Factors {(continued)

Any reduction of CDSOA distributions in the future would reduce our earnings and cash flows.

The CDSOA provides for distribution of monies collected by 1.5..Customs from antidumping cases to quahfylng domestic producers
where the domestic producers have continued to invest in their technology, equipment and people. The company reported CDSOA
receipts, net of expenses, of $87.8 million, $77.1 million and $44.4 million.in 2008, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In February 2006,
U.S. legislation was enacted that would end CDSOA distributions forimports covered by antidumping duty orders entering the United
States after September 30, 2007. Instead, any such antidumping duties, collected would remain with the U.S. Treasury. This |egi§|e-
tion is not expected to have a significant effect on potentlal CDSOA distributions in 2007 but would be expected to reduce any
distributions in years beyond 2007 with dlstnbutlons eventually ceasmg N .

In separate cases in July and September 2006, the U.s. Court of International Trade (CIT) ruled that the procedure for determtmng
recipients ellglble to receive CDSOA distributions is unconstitutional. The CIT has not hn_ally ruled on other matters, |nclud1ng any
remedy as a result of its ruling. The.company expects that the ruling of the CIT will be appealed. The company is unable to
determlne at this time, if these rulings wili have a materlal adverse impact on the companys financiat results .

in addition to the CIT ruling, there are a number of other factors that can affect whether the company receives any CDSOA

distributions and thé amount of such distributions in any year. These factors mclude among other things, potentlal additional
changes in the law, other ongomg and potentlal addmonal legal challenges to the Iaw and the admlnlstratrve Gperation of the law. It
is possible that cIT rulings might prevent us from recelwng any CDSOA distributions in 2007, Any reduction of CDSOA dlstrlbutnons

would reduce our earnings and cash flow. ,

Weakness in any of the industries in which our customers operate, as well as the cyclical nature of our customers’
businesses generally, could adversely impact our revenues and profitability by reducing demand and margins.

Our revenues may be negatively affected by changes in customer demand; changes in the product mix and negative pricing pressure
in the industries in which we operate. Many of the industries in WhICh our end customers operate are cyclical. Margins in those
industries are highly sensitive to demand cycles and our customers in those industries historically have tended 1o delay large capltal
projects, including expensive ma:ntenance and upgrades, during economic downiums. As a fesult, our Business is also cycllcal and
"our revenues and earnings are |mpacted by overall levels of industrial production, i

Certain automotive industry companies have recently experienced significant financial downturns. In 2005, we increased our reserve

for_ accounts receivable relating to our automotive’ industry..customers. If any of ‘our-automotive industry customers becomés’

insolvent or files for bankruptcy, our ability to recover accounts receivable from that customer would be adversely affected and any
payment we received in the preference period prior to a bankruptcy filing may be. potentially recoverable. In addition, financial
instability of certain- companies that participate in the automotive industry supply chain could disrupt production in the -industry.
A disruption of production in the automotive industry could have a materially adverse effect on our financial condition and earnings.

Enwronmenta! regulatrons rmpose substantral costs and hmrtanons on our operanons and enwronmenta!
comphance may be more costly than we expect.

. . - B
T ‘ E * '

We are subject to the risk of substantial environmental liability and Irmrtat:ons on our operatlons due to enwronmentai laws and .

regulations. - We are subject to vanous federal, state, local’ and foreign environmental, health- and safety laws .and regulatlons
concerning issues such as air emissions, wastewater discharges, solid and hazardous waste handlrng and disposal and the' investiga-
tion and remediation of contamination. The risks of _Substantial costs and liabilitiés related to complidnce with’ these laws and
regulations are an inherent part of our business, and future conditions may develap, anse or be discovered that create substantlal
enwronmental comphance or remediation liabilities and costs. -t e

i . -

Compl:ance with enwronmen,tat Ieglslatlon and regulatory requirements may prove to be more limiting and costly than we anticipare.
New laws and regulations, inciuding those which may relate to emissions of greenhouse gases, stricter enforcement of existing laws

and regulations, the discovery of previously unknown contamination or the imposition of new clean-up require'n'ientscould require us to :
incur costs or become the basis for new or increased liabilities that-could have a material adverse effect on our business, funancral )

condition or results of: operationhs., We may alse be subject from time to time to legal proceedmgs brought by private partles or
governmental authorities with respect to environmental matters, including matters involving alleged property damage or personal injury.

N . . ]
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Risk Factors (contrnuedl

.~ Unexpected equrpment failures or other disruptions of our operations may rncrease our costs and reduce ‘our sales

.

]

.

and earnings due to production curtailments or shutdowns. R o
Interruptlons in productlon capabilities, ‘especially-in our Steel Group, would |neV|tany increase our productlon costs and reduce sales
and eamings for the affected period. In addition to equipment failures, our facilities are also subject to the rlsk of catastrophic loss
.due to unanticipated events such as frres explosrons or vrolent weather conditions. Qur manufacturing processes are dependent upon
critical’ pieces of equipment, such’as furnaces, conttnuous casters and rolling equrpment -as well” as electrlcal equipment, such as
-.transformers, and this equipment may, on occasron be out of service as a‘result of unanticipated failures. In’the future, ‘we ‘'may
experience material plant shutdowns or perlods of reduced production as a result of these types of equrpment failures.

. J.

= .The global nature of our business' exposes us to foreign- currency fluctuations that may affect our asset val'ues

resuits of operations and competitiveness. - . '
We are exposed to the risks of currency exchange rate fluctuations because a srgnn‘lcant portion of our net sales, costs, assets
and liabilities, are denominated in currencies other than the U'S. dollar. These risks include a'reduction in our asset values, net sales,

+

operatmg income and competitiveness. : ‘ - SR ,

For those countries outside the United States where we have significant sales, -devaluation in the local currency would reduce the

value of our local inventory as presented in our Consolldated Financial Statements tn addition, a stronger _U.S. dollar would result in
%

-\l

4 .

T A

. revenues and the price of our products g_'. - , ¥

- reduced revenue, operating: profit and shareholders’ equity due to the impact of foreign exchange tr'anslation on our Consolidated

Frnancral Statements. Fluctuatlons in foreign currency exchange rates may make our products more expensive for others to purchase
or increase our operatlng costs affecting our competntweness and our profltabllrty ’

“Changes in exchange rates between the U. S. dollar and other currenCIes and volatile economic, polrtlcal and market condmons in

emergrng market countrres have in the past adversely affected our financial performance and may in the future, adversely affect the
" value of our assets located outside the Unlted States, our gross profitand our results of operatlons * B
BT L v L : N '

N

Global polrtrcal rnstabrlrry and other rrsks of rnternatronal operatrons may adversely affect our operatmg ‘cOsts,

)

t

Our |nternat|onal operatlons expose us 1o nsks not present ina purely domestnc busmess |ncludmg prlmarlly
. changes in tariff regulatlons whrch may make our products more costly 10 export or import;
. -.» difficulties establlshlng and mamtalnrng relationships with local OEMs, distributors and dealers; :

stfimport and export Ircensmg requrrements ; -

* compliance with a variety of foreign laws and regulations including unexpected changes in taxation and environmental or other

regulatory requirements, whrch could increase our aperating and other expenses and limit our operatrons and

s

s difficulty in staffing and managing geographmally diverse operations. '~ . ‘ ’ . . : |

)
v

These and, other risks may also increase the relative price of our products compared to those manufactured. in- other countrles
: reducrng the demand for our products in the markets in which we operate, whrch could have a matenally adverse effect on our

- revenues and earnings:

’ -

Underfundrng of our defined benefit and other postretrrement plans has caused and may continue to cause a
srgnrfrcant reduction in our shareholders’ equrty ' W

As a result of recent accounting standards, the underfunded status of our. pension fund assets and our postretsrement health care
oblrgatrons we were required to take a total net reduction of $276 million, net of income taxes, against our shareholders equnty in

2006. . We may be required to take further charges related to pension and other postretirement liabilities in the future and these -

charges may be significant. : o .

[ »

-

L . . T
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Risk Factors {continued)

The underfunded status of our pension fund assets will cause us to prepay the fundrng of aur pens:an obligations
which may d:verr funds from other uses. v T 'i .
The increase in'our defined benefit pension obligations, as wali as our engoing practice of managing our fundlng obligations over time,
have led us to prepay a portion_of -our funding obligations under our pensnon plans. We made cash contributions of $243 mllllon
$226 million and $185 million in 2006 2005 and 2004, respectively, to our U. S.-based pensmn plans and currently expect to make cash
contributions of $80 million. in 2007 to such plans. However, we cannot preduct whether changing economic conditions, or other
factors will lead us or requure us to make contributions in excess of our cufrent expectanons diverting funds we would otherwuse apply

to other uses. L . . ) W o ) . - . .
Work stoppages_ or similar difficulties could s:gmfrcantly disrupt our operanons reduce our revenues and Lte
materially affect our earnings. K C et o oo T

A work stoppage at one or more of our facmtles could have a-materially adverse effect on . our busmess financial condition and results

of operations. Also, if one or more of our customers were to experience a work stoppage, that customer would likely halt or lmrut "
i purchases of our products, which could have a materially adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

. ITEM 1B : UNRESDLVED STAFF CDMMENTS : ot
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ITEM 2... PRI:IPERTIES ) : - P O - R S,
kaen has Automotrve Group, Industrial Group and Steel Group manufacturing facilities at multiple Yocations:in the-United States and
‘i a number of countnes outsrde the United States; The aggregate floor area of these facilities worldwide-is approxrmately 16,669, 000,

: square feet, all of whrch except for approxrmately 1,619,000 square feet, is 0wned in fee, The facrlmes not owned in fee are. Ieased
.. The burldrngs occupred by kaen are prrncrpally made of - bnck steel remforced concrete and concrete block constructron All e

3burld|ngs are in satrsfactory operatrng condition in, whrch 10 conduct busrness . ¥ .' o LN _ K

by

* Timken's Automotrve and lndustrral Groups manufactunng facrlmes in the Unrted States are located in Bucyrus Canton New

Philadelphia, and eres Ohro Altavrsta ‘v’rgrnla Randleman Iron Statron and Rutherfordton North Carolrna Carlyle lllrnors South Bend
Indiana; Gaffney, Clrnton Union, Honea Path, and WalhallasSouth "Caroling; Cairo, Norcross, Sylvanra Ball Ground and Dahlonega

. Georgra Pulaskland Mascot Tennessee; Keene and Lebanon, Néw Hampshire; Lenexa Kansas; Ogden Utah Mesa Arizona; and Los
’ -Alamltos Calrfornra These facilities, |ncludmg the research facrlrty in Canton Ohro and warehouses at plant locatlons have an aggre-

.
Y-

gate floor area of approxnmately 7,193, OOO square feat, The company S Watertown Connectlcut facility was scld on December 18 2006

Timken's Automotive and lndustrral Groups manufacturrng plants outsrde the United States are located in Benoni, South Afrrca

Brescia, ltaly; Colmar, :Vierzon,. Marornme and Moult; France; Northampton and Wolverhampton England; MedemblrkﬂThe._f

Netherlands; Brlbao Spain; Halle—WestfaIlen Germany, Olomouc Czech Republic; Plorestr Romania; Mexrco City, Mexrco Sao Paulo,

';Brazrl Srngapore Singapore; Jamshedpur Indra Sosnowrec Poland; ‘St. Thomas and Bedford Canada; and Yantai and Wuxr ‘China.

"The facilities, |nclud|ng warehouses at plant Iocatrons have an aggregate floor area of approxrmately 5,199,000 square feet. The
companys Nova Fnburgo Brazrl facrlrty was sold on December 18, 2006. - '

~

kaens Steel Group’s manufactunng facilities in the United States are Iocated in Canton and Eaton *Chio; ‘and Columbus, North‘
. Carolina. These facilities have an aggregate floor area of approxlmately 3,624,000 square feet. The company's ‘Wauseon and Vienna, *
Ohio; Franklin and Latrobe, Pennsylvania; and White House Jennessee facilities were sold on December 8, 2006. e,

.kaens Steel Group's manufacturrng facilities outsrde the Unrted States are |ocated ln Lercester ‘and:Sheffield, England These
facilities have an aggregate floor area of approxrmately 653 000 square feet. The companys Fougeres and, Marnaz France facilities -

e

were sold on June 30, 2006

In addition to the manufactunng and distribution facrlrtres discussed above, Timken owns warehouses and steel distribution facilities

in the United States, United Krngdom France, Slngapore Mexico, Argentma Australia, Brazil, Germany and China, and leases
several relatively small.warehouse facilities in cities throughout the world

Dunng 2006, the utilization by plant varied srgnrflcantly due to decreasing demand across all automotive markets, and decreasing
“demand in industrial sectors sefved by Automotrve Group plants The overail Automotive Group plant utitization was Between

approxrmately 75% and 85%, lower than 2005 In 2006 83 a result of the higher industrial global demand, Industrial Group plant
utilization was between 85%-and 80%, which ‘was the same as 2005. Also, in 2006 Steel Group plants operated at near capacity,
which was similar to 2005.

ITEM 2. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

" The company is involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management,

" .the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a materially adverse effect on the company s consolidated financial position or

' .as well as a failed grinder bag house stack “test, which was corrected within three days: Pursuant to the terms of the settlement_
..agreement the company has agreed to pay $200,000. The company will receive a credit of $22,500 of the total settlement amount

v
T

results of operations.

In July 2006, the company entered into a settlement agreement with the State of Ohio concernlng both a vrolatron of OhIO air.

pollutton control laws, which was drscovered by the company and voluntarily disclosed to the State of Ohio more than ten years ago.

. due to the companys investments in approved supplemental environmental projects. Pursuant 1o the terms of the settlement

' agreement the ¢ompary also conducted additional testing of certain equipment.

ITEM 4. SuUuBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE CII-' SEéURITY HOLDERS

' No matters were submitied to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

THE TIMKEN COMPANY - 13
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ITEM 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT ’ : o

The executive officers are elected by the Board of Directors normally for a term of oneyear and until the election of their successors.
All executive officers, except for three, have been employed by Timken or by a subsidiary of the company during the past five- year

period. The executive officers of the company as of February 28, 2007 are as follows: - .

S f - ' }

Current Position and Previous Positions During Last Five Years

Name Age
Ward J. Timken, Jr. 39 2000 Corporate Vice President — Office of the Chairman )
‘ : 2002 Corporate Vice President — Office of the Chairman: Director
. 2003 " Executive Vice President and President — Steel-Group; Director
2005 Chairman of the Board - . L
James W. Griffith . 53 1999 President and Ch|ef Operatmg Officer; Director
2002 PreS|dent and Chief Executive Officer; Director
Michael C. Arnold B0 2000 President - Industrial Group
William R. Burkhart “4‘I" 2000 Senior Vice President and General Counsel
Alastair R. Deane - 45 2000 Senior Vice President of Engineering, Autdmotive Criveline
Driveshatt business group of GKN Automotive, Incorporated,
a global supplier of driveline components and systems
) 2005 “Senior Vice President — Technology, The Timken Company
Jacqueiine A. Dedo 45 2000 " Vice President and General Manager Worldwide Market
. Operations, Motorala, tnc., a global communications company
2004 President - Automotive Group, The Timken Company
‘GIerin A, Eisenberg 45 1999 President and Chief Operating Officer, United Dominicn
Industries, an international manufacturing, construction and
_ engineering firm
2002 Executive Vice President ~ Finance and Administration,
The Timken Company
J. Ted_ Mihaila 52 2001 Controller, Industrial Group ..
' 2006 Senior Vice President and Controller
Salvatore J. Miraglia, Jr. 96 1999 Senior Vice President — Technology
2005 President - Steel Group - ;
14 THE TIMKEN COMPANY
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PART I

each quarter for 1he last two fiscal years.

First quarter -

Second guarter i

Third quarter

Fcurth quarter

' 2006

Stock Prices”

High
$36.58

$36.25.

$34.99
$31.89

Low

. $26.57.
$27.68

eés.os '
. $27.60

* Dividends
-+ per share -

$0.15
"$0.15

$0.16.
$0.16 .

2005

Stock Prices

High'

"$29.50

$27.68
$30.06
$32.84

tow

$22.73

$22.80

$22.90
$25.25

i

e AN
“  "The company's common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "TKR.”

" record holders of the company 5 common ' stock at December 31 2006 was approxmately 6, 697 The esumated number of heneficial T
shareholders at December 31, 2006 was apprommately 42.608; T

Dividends
+ per’share

$0.15
30.15
$0.15
$0.15

THE TIMKEN COMPANY

v
e

. ITEM 5. MARKET FDR REBIETRANTE CoMMON El:ILIITY, RELATED ETEH:KHI:ILDER
.--MA'I—rERs AND ISSUER F'URE:HASES CIF EI:ILHTY SEI:‘.I.IRlTIES

LR

*The eetimated“number of .

-}

The followmg table provides 1nformat|on about the high and Iow sales prices for the company 's common stock and dividends paid for
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Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of. Equity Securities
{continued)

Comparlson of Five-year Cumulative Total Return*

Among kaen Company, S&P 500 & Peer Index"

$350
$300 ;
$250
s00 [ =

$150 = i

- $100

850
$0

01 02 03 04 05 -06°

~—@— Timken Company —— S&P 500 ---A - - 80% Boaring/20% Steel*"®

*Total return assumes reinvestment of dividends. **Fiscal years ending December 31.

Assumes $100 invested on January 1, 2002, in Timken Company comrmon stock, S&P 500 index and Peer Index.

. 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
The Timken Company. - $ 121.36 $ 13189 $ 17459 $ 219.56 $ 20414
S&P 500 ' 77.90 100.24 111.156 116.61 135.02
80% Bearing/20% Steel*** 99.31 142.89 182.83 274.99 366.39

" ***Effective in 2003 the weighting of the peer index was revised from 70% Bearing/30% Steel to more accurately reflect the
company's post-Torrington acquisition.

, The line graph compares the cumulative totat shareholder returns over five years for The Timken Company, the S&P 500 Stock Index,
and a peer index that proportionally reflects The Timken Company S two busmesses The S&P Steel Index compnses the steel portlon
of the peer index. This index was comprised of seven steel companies in 1996 and is now three (Aliegheny Technologies, Nucor and
US Steel Corp.) as industry consolidation and bankruptcy have reduced the number of companies in the index. The remaining portion
of the peer index is a self-constructed bearing index that consisis of six companies. These six companies are Kaydon, FAG, JTETK
{formerly Koyo Seiko), NSK, NTN and SKF. The last five are non-US bearing companies that are based in Germany (FAG), Japan (JTETK,
NSK, NTN}, and Sweden {SKF). FAG was ehmmated from the beanng index in 2003 when its minority interests were acquured and-its
shares delisted. :
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+ Item 5. Market for Reglstrants Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securrtres
. {continued) : s R r ] . .-

Issuer Purchases of Common Stock: .

s - -~ . - P

The followrng table prowdes |nformat|on about purchases by the company during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 of. |ts cornrnon stock

’ Total number Maxlmum
: : . ) - of shares number of
7 v . " - . purchased as - sharesAthat
. ’ part of publicly " may yet .

Total number ; Average -+ announced be purchased
of shares price paid plans or under the plans

‘Perlod " purchased™ ) per share? programs® or programs™ - :
1671106 - 10/31/08 ~ : - $ - ' - ' 3,793,700
11/1/06 - 11/30/06 1,942 30.77 - 3,793,700
12/1/06 - 12/31/06 6,850 30.71 - 3,793,700
Total .. ) . B.792 : $30 72 i} " - 3,793,700

"'Conslsts solely of company repurchases of shares of its common stock that are 0wned and tendered by employees o ‘satisty’ "tax
withholding obligations in connection with the vesting of restricted shares and the exércise of stock optrons

@ The average price paid per share is calculated using the daily highiand low sales prices of the company’s cormmon stock as. quoted
on the New York Stock Exchange at the time the employee tenders the shares.

® Pursuant to the company's 2000 common stock purchase plan, the company may purchase up to four million shares of common

stock at an amotint not to exceed $180 million in the aggregate The company was authonzed to purchase shares under its 2000

common stock purchase plan until: December 3, 2006 The company d:d not purchase-any shares under its 2000 common stock

. purchase plan durlng the periods listed above. On November 3 2006 “the company adopted its 2008 common stock purchase p!an

DR _effective as of January 7, 2007. Pursuant to the 2008 common stock purchase plan, the company may purchase up to four’ mrllron
s ": shares of common stock at an amount not to exceed $180 miflion, in the aggregate, until December 31, 2012.

- THE TIMKEN COMPANY. T




ITEM. 6

SUMMARY QF DPERATIDNS AND EITHER CDMPARATIVE DATA

. EELEBTED FINANEIAL DAaTA

WL et

o e R Gt e L] Bt

2006 2005 2004 2008 7 0 2002
{Dollars in thousands, except per share data) :
Statements of Income - : . i
Net sales: . M
‘Industrial - $ 2,072,495 $ 1925211 § 1709770 $ 1498832 § 971534 q
Automotive h 1,573,034 1,661,048 1,582,226 1,396,104 752,763 :
Steel 1,327,836 1,236,908 995,201 731,554 659,780 -
Total net sales 4,973,365 4,823.167 4,287,197 3,626,480 2,384,077 3
. Gross profit ‘ 1,005,844 999,957 824,376 632,082 462,749 ]
Selling, administrative and general expenses 677,342 646,904 575,910 511,053 345,240 ;
Impairment and restructuring charges 44,881 26,093 . 13,638 19,154 31.862 *
Loss on divestitures . 64,271 . - , - - b #
QOperating income ) 219,350 326,960 234,928 101,875 85,657 E
"Other’income (expense) - net 79,666 67.726 12,100 9,903 36,326 4
Earnmgs before interest and taxes (EBIT)"' 299,016 394,686 247,028 111,778 121,983 }
Interest expense . 49,387 51,585 50,834 48,401 31,540
Income from continuing. operatlons 176,439 233,656 134,046 38,940 55,385 i
Income from discontinued operations, ‘ , ' b
7 net of income taxes 46,088 . 26,625 1,810 {2,459) {16.636) i
Net income” s 222527 § 260,281 $ 135656 - $ 36481, § 38,749 :
Balance Sheets _ . : - ' b
Inventories - net o $ 952,310 $ 900,294 $ 799717 . % 634,906 $ 425,003 ’
Property, plant and equipment — net 1,601,559 " 1,474,074 1,508,598 1,531,423 1,142,056 ‘
_ Total assets ' ¢ 4,031,533 3.933,734 3,942,909 : 5,689,789 ;2,748,356 - #
Total debt: . o T o ! ‘ -;
* Commercial paper . - BT ) - .+ , 8999 b
Short-term debt 40,217 63,437 157,417 114,469 ' 78,354 3+
Current portion of Iongterm debt 10,236 95,842 . 1,273 6,725 23,781 *;5!
Long-term debt 547,390 561,747 620,634 '§13,446 350,085 5§
Total debt: 597,843 721,026 779,324 734,640 461,219 ]
Net debt: i
Total debt 597,843 721,026 779,324 , 734,640 461,219 ¥
Less: cash and cash equivalents {101,072) 65,417} {50,967) (28,626} - {82,050) &
Net debt. @ 496,771 655,609 728,357 "706,014 . 379,169 . :
Total liabilities 2,555,353 2,496,667 2,673,081 2,600,162 2,139,270
Shareholders’ equity $ 1,476,180 $ 1,497,067 . $ 1,269,848 $ 1089627 . $ 609,086 {
Capital: . .
Net debt 496,71 655,609 728,357 708,014 379,169 i
Shareholders’ equity ' 1,476,180 1,497,067 1,269,848 1,089,627 © 609,086 i
‘Net debt + shareholders' equity {capital} 1,972,951 2,152,676 1,898.205 1,795,641 988,255 4l
Other Comparative Data . ‘ :{|
Income from continuing operations/Net sales 3.5% 4.8% 31% 1.1% 2.3%
EBIT / Net sales 6.0% 8.2% 58% 31% 5.1% : %
Return on equity ® 12.0% 15.6% " 10.6% 3.6% 91% q]
Net sales per associate ¥ $ 1915 $ 186.7 3 1700 % 170.6 kS 135.8 %'
Capital expenditures S 296,093 $ 21741 § 143,781 & 125596 $ 87869 4
Depreciation and amortization $ 196,592 $ 209,656 $ 201173 $ 200548 $ 137,45t
Capital expenditures / Net sales 6.0% 4.5% 3.4% 35% 3.7% - ;
Dividends per share ) s 0.62 $ 060 % 0.562 $ 052 $ 0.52 i
~ Earnings per share ® : 2 $ 238 § 284 § 151 -~ § 044 § 0.63 4
Earnings per share — assuming dilution ® $ - 2.36 $ 2.81 3 1.49 $ 0.44 $ 0.62
Net debt to capital @ 25.2% 30.5% 36.5% 39.3% 384%
~Number of associates at year-end © 25,418 26,528 25,128 25,299 17,226
Number of shareholders ™ 42,608 54,514 42,484 42,184

44,057

WERIT is defined a3 operating income plus other income (expense) - net.

DThe company presents net debt because it believes net debt is more representative of the company's indicative financial position
due to temporary changes in cash and cash equwalems

‘J’Heturn an equity is defined as income from Continuing operations divided by ending shareholders' equity:
“Based on average number of associates employed during the year. . .
“Based on average number of shares outstanding during the year and includes dlscomsnued operations for all periods presented.
® Adjusted 10 exclude Latrobe Steel for all periods.
 Includes an estimated count of shareholders havmg common stock held for their accounts by banks, brakers and trustees for benefit plans.
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Introduction . b .-
‘The Timken Company is a leading global manufacturer of highly engmeered anti-friction beartngs and alloy steels and a provrder “of
related products and sennces Timken operates under three segments “Industrial Group, Automotive Group and Steel Group.

The Industnal and Automotwe Groups desrgn manufacture and dlstnbute a range of bearings and related products and servrces
lndustnal Group customers include both original equtpment manufacturers and distributors for agnculture constructlon mining,
energy, mill, machine tool, aerospace and rail appllcatlons Automotive Group customers include orlgmal equrpment manufacturers
and suppllers -for. passenger cars, ‘light trucks, and medlum- to heavy-duty trucks Steel Group products lnclude steels of low and
mtermedlate alloy and carbon grades in both solid and tubular sections, as well as custom- made steel products for. both industrial and

)
v e
)

“ automotive applications, including bearings.

- . N . . 5

F'INANI:IAL DVERVIEW S . - I

I 2006‘ compared to 2005 . o .
' ‘_Overwew. R 2T e I L
. 2006 .. 2005-- "$Change.” % Change'
{Dollzrs in millions, except earnings per share) ’ ' - - T ) E ’
.Net sales : . v $4973.4  $.48232  C8 15027 . 31%:
Income from contmumg operatlons . 176.4 | ~ 2337 {57.3 (24.5)%
Ir_tcome from discontinued operations ; . 46.1 - 26.6 195 . 733%
: .- Netincome . 2225 260.3 378" (145)%
e Dnluted -earnings per share: - R ) - L o )
Continuing operations R T T T T8 a8 T8 2520 sy (068 T (25.8)%
Discontinued operations LW ’ S 0.49 0.29 © . 020 69.0%
. Net income per share - Fo : $. 236 § 281 5 {045 (160%
Average number of shares — diluted S .- © Y'94,294, 116 92,637, 529 ' o T 19%

. The Trnken Company reported net ‘sales for 2006 of approxumately $5.0 billion,’ compared to $4:8 billion in 2005, an |ncrease of 3.1%.
Sales were. hlgher across the Industrial and Steel Groups, offset by: lower sales in‘the Automotive Group In December 2006 the
company completed the divestiture of its Latrobe Steel subsidiary.’ i Dlscontlnued operatlons represent the operatlng results and

related gain on sale, net of tax,-of- th|s business. For 20086, earmngs per.diluted share were $2.36, compared to $2 81- .per diluted share’

for.2005: Income from continuing operations per dlluted share was $1.87, compared 1052, 52 per diluted share for. 2005

T ‘A The ongoing strength of global industrial markets drove the tncrease ine Industnal and’ Steel Group sales while the decllnes in
y }‘:_\_' North Amencan automotlve demand dunng the- second half of 2006 constralned results "The companys growth mlttatwes ‘loss
on dlvestltures and- restructurlng the companys operatlons also constralned overall results. The company contlnued |ts focus on

s rncreasmg productlon capacrty in targeted areas, _including major, capacity expansrons for mdustnal products at' several manufactunng _

Iocatlons around the world. The compary xpects the strength in industrial markets_ erI continue in 2007 and dnve year-over year
sales increases in both the Industrlal and Steel Groups. ; *. o . . .

,‘ . 4" .

, partially constramed by mvestments lncludmg Pro1ect 0. N. E. and Asian growth |n|t|at|ves Pro1ect ONE.isa program: desrgned to

__‘;v..r, ..

s . tmprove the company ‘s buslness processes and systems In 2006, the company successfully completed a pI|Ot program of Prolect'
“0 N. E |n Canada The ob|ect|ve of I-}sran growth lnmatrves rs 10 increase market share lnfluence major desrgn centers and expand

the company s network of sources - of globally competmve friction management products . )
: . 3 - by, [ : - *
;: The companys strategy for the Industrlal Group is to pursue growth in selected mdustnal markets and achreve a Ieadershrp posmon
) in targeted Asian markets. In 2006 the company invested in three new plants in Asta to build.the mfrastructure to support its Asian
growth mmatrve The company also expanded its capacrty in aerospace products by |nvest|ng in a new aerospace aftermarket facrltty

. . in Mesa, Anzona and through the acqursmon of the ‘asséts of Turbo Engmes Inc in December 2006 The new facrltty in Mesa

' aftermarket operations in Gilbert, Anzona In addltlon the company is |ncreasmg Iarge bore bearing capamty in Flomama China and
the Umted States to serve heavy industrial markets. The company is also expandlng ‘its'line of industrial seals 1o |nclude large- bore
seals 1o provide a more complete line of fnctlon rmanagement products to distribution channels.
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While, global mdustnal markets are expected to remain strong the |mprovements in the- companys operatlng performance will be

Wthh will include manufactunng and englneerlng functlons more: than doubles the capacrty of the company 's prewous aerospace .



The company's; strategy for the Automotive-Group is ta make structural changes-to its Business to improve its financial performarnce.
In 2005, the company disclosed plans for its Automotive Group to restructure its business. These plans’included. the closure of its
automotive engineering center in Torrington, Connecticut and its manufacturing engineering center in Norcross, Georgia. These
facilities were consolidated into a new technology facility in Greenvilte, South Carolina. Additionally, the company announced the
closure of its manufacturing facility in Clinton, South Carolina. In February 2006, the company announced plans to downsize its
manufacturing facility in Vierzon, France. '

+

In September 2006, the company announced further planned reductions in its Automotive Group workforce of approximately 700
associates. These plans are targeted to deliver annual pretax savings of approximately $35 million by 2008, with, pretax costs of
approximately $25 million.

in December 2006, the company completed the divestiture of its Steering business located in Watertown, Connecticut and Nova
Friburgo, Brazil, resulting in a loss on divestiture of $54.3 million. The Steering husiness employed approximately 900 associates.

The company's strategy for tne Steel Group is to focus on opportunities where the company can offer differentiated capabilities while
driving profitable growth. In 2008, the company announced plans to invest in a new induction heat-treat line in Canton, Ohio, which
will increase capacity and the ability to provide differentiated product to more customers in its global energy markets. In January 2007,
the company announced plans to invest approximately $60 million to enable the company to c_om;:retjtively produce steel.bars down
to 1-inch diameter for use in power transmission and friction management applications for a variety of customers, fneluding the
rapidly growing automotive transplants. In 2006, the company also completed the divestiture of its Latrobe Steel subsidiary and its
Timken Precision Steel Components - Europe business. In addition, the company announced plans to exit its seamless steel tube
manufacturmg operatlons tocated in Desford England ' ’

at ) o=

THE STATEME'N_T OF INCOME

Sales by Segment:

. Al

) 2006 2005 ., $Change % Change

[Dallars in millions, and exclude intersegment sales) - L . '
Industrial Group ' $20725 $19252 $ 1473 7.7%
Automotive Group o R ’ . 1,573.0 16611 {88.1) {5.3)%
Steel Group : - . LT 1,327.9 1,236.9 91.0 7.4%
Total company L $4,973.4 $4,823.2 $ 1502 3.1%

The Industrial Group's net sales in 2006 increased from 2008 primarily due to higher-demand across most end markets, with the
highest growth in aerospace, hea'vy industry and industrial distribution. The Automotive Group's net sales in 2006 decreased from 2005
primarily due to significantly lower volume, driven by reductions in vehicle production by North American original equipment manufac-
turers, partially offset by improved pricing. The Steef Group's net sales in 2006 increased from 2005 primarily due to increased pricing
and surcharges to recover high raw material and energy costs, as well as strong demand in industrial and energy market sectors,
partially offset by lower sales to automotive customers, .

Gross Profit:

2006 2005 $ Change Change
(Dollars in millions} ' . : ’
Gross profit C $ 1,0058 $1,0000 . &% 58 0.6%
Gross profit % to net sales 20.2% o 207% - (50) bps
Hauonahzatlon expenses included in cost of products sold - : ‘$ 185 $ 145 § 40 -~ 276%

"

Gross profit margin decreased in 2006 compared to 2005, primarily_ due to the :mpact of lower, volume in the Automotive Group
driven by reductions in vehicle productron by North American original equrpment manufaciurers, Ieadrng to underutullzatuon of
manufacturing capacity, as well as an increase in product warranty reserves. The impact of Iower “volumes and the mcrease in
product warranty reserves in the Automotive Group more than offset favorable sates volume from the Industrial and Steel businesses,
price increases, and increased productlwty in the companys other businesses. ’ :

In 2008, rationalization expenses included in cost of products sold related to the company's Canion Ohio rndustria! Group bearing
facilities, certain Automotive Group domestic manufacturing fac:lmes certain faC|I|t|es in Torrington, Connecticut and the.closure of the
company's seamless steel tube manufacturlng operations Idcated ln Desford England. In 2005, ratlonallzatron expenses inctuded'in
cost of products sold related to the rationalization of the company s Canton, Ohio bearing facilities and costs for certalr\ facilities in
Torrington, Connecticut.
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lSeIIing”Admini_strative and General Expenses: " ‘ L e e

2006 . G 2005 $Change- '~ Change
* {Dollars in miskons) . : ’
Selling, administrative and general expenses. . . .8 6773 $ 6469 $ 304 - 4AT%
Selllng admrnlstratrve and general expenses % to.net sales - oL o- . 13.6% 13.4% - ..20bps
Ratronallzatron expenses lncluded in se!llng admlntstratlve and ( - . o ’ I '
> and general expenses : ) : . '8 59 5 2.8 3 31 110 7%

," . a-

" The increase |n sellmg admlmstratwe and general expenses in 2006 compared to 2005 was prrmarrly due to higher costs assocrated
wrth mvestments |n the AS|an growth initiative and Project O. N E. and h|gher ratlonallzatlon éxpenses, partrally offset by Iower bad

pioh - 1. . LI L .. ; R ATTRE
debtexpense ! . R T A "

ol . - . R >,, i,

S

i 2006 the rattonallzatton expenses mcluded in sellrng, admrnlstratlve and general expenses prlmarlly related to Automotlve Group

‘_ manufactunng and englneenng facilities. In 2005 the rationalization expenses mcluded in selllng, adrnlnrstratlve and general expenses‘

Al

primarily related to the company s Canton Ohio bearing facilities and costs assomated wrth the Torrlngton acqursrtron iz

' .
e - +

.. Impairment and Restructuring Charges:

L. T - - ST ey .- 2006 2005+ % Change
{Dallars in millions) -1 : .
Irnpalrment charges ’ ) % 153 $ 08 3% 14.5
" Severance and related beneflt costs . L - 25.8 203 ‘. 5b
- Exit costs - ‘ e s ' 38 5.0 2

Total - - . - - - . i -$ 449 $ 261 % 188

\.. -~ » P . . . - - “a .
lndustrral R T - N : I R

ln May 2004 the company announced plans to rat:onalrze the company ‘s three beartng plants in Canton, Ohio within the lndustnal

. Group On September 15, 2005, the company reached a new fouir- -year agreement W|th the United Steelworkers of Amerlca which

went into effect on September 26, 2005 when the prior contract explred Thls ratlonallzatlon initiative is expected ta deliver annual

pretax savings of approxlmately $25 million through streamllnmg operatlons and workforce reductlons W|th pretax costs of approxr-
mately $35 to $40 million over the next three years. '_ Lo S e o tug

In 2006, the company recorded $1.0 mrlllon of impairment charges and $0.6 million of exrt costs associated W|th the Industnal Group S .
ratlonallzatlon plans _In 2005, the company recorded $0.8 million of |mpa|rment charges and enwronmental exit: costs of $2 2 mlllron .

assocuated wrth the Industnal Groupsratlonallzatlon plans. ' I o : ".;-‘f

In November 2006 the company announced plans to vacate its Tornngton Connectlcut office complex In 2006 the company recorded )
$1.5 million of severance and related bénefit costs and $0.1 million of rmpalrment charges associated wnth the Industrial Group vacat-,

% L

ing the Torrington complex.

-5 - - - o e v - - s A e - e ey

. In addition, the company recorded $1 4 million of envrronmental exit costs in 2006 related to'a former plant |n Columbus Ohro and -

$0 1 mlllron of severance and related benefit costs related to other company initiatives. .

Automotrve i . : . . B

In 2005, the company ‘disclosed detarled plans for its Automotwe Group to restructure its busmess and:i tmprove performance These
plans |ncluded the closure of a manufacturlng facility in CIrnton .South Carolina and englneenng faculltles in Tornngton Connectlcut and
Norcross, Georgla In February 20086, the company announced addrtronal plans to rationalize productron capactty atits Vrerzon France
beanng manufactunng facility:in response 1o changes in customer demand for.its products These restructuring efforts, along with
other future actlons are targeted to deliver annual pretax savings of approximately $40 million by 2008, with expected net workforce

L]

T reducttons of appraximately 400 to 500 positions and pretax costs of approximately $80 million to $30 million:

In September-2006 the company announced further planned reductions in its workforce of approximately 700 associates. These
additional plans are targeted to dellver annual pretax savings of approxrmately $35 million by 2008, with expected pretax costs of

: apprommately $25 million.

1

In 2006 "the company recorded $16 5 million of-severance and related beneflt costs, $1.5 million of exit costs and $1.6. mrlllon of
rmpalrment charges associated with the Automotwe Group’s restructuring plans In 2005, the company recorded approxlmately
$20 3 million of severance and related benefit costs and $2.8 million of exit costs as a result of environmental charges related to the
closure of a manufacturlng facility in Clinton, South Carolina, and administrative facilities in Torrington, Connecticut alnd Norcross, Georgia.

5
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In 2006, the company recorded an additional $0.7 million of severance and related benefit costs and $0.3 million of impairment
charges for the Automotive Group related to the announced plans to vacate its Torrington campus office complex and $0.1 million of
severance and related benefit costs related to other company initiatives. ’

In"addition, the company recorded impairment charges of $11.9 million in 2006 representing the write-off of goodwill associated with

the Automotive Group in accordance with Staternent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (SFAS No. 142), “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” Refer to Note 8 - Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional discussion. ' ' ) ‘

Steel g ‘ . - S -
In Qctober 2006, the company announced |ts intention to exit during 2007 its European seamless steel tube manufacturing operations

located in Desford, England. The company recorded approximately $6.9 mrll:on of severance and related benefit costs in 2006 .

related to this action. In addition, the company recorded an |mpa|rment charge and removal costs of %06 m|II|on related to the write-
. down of property, plant and equipment at one of the Steel Groups facilities.

Rollforward of Restructuring Accruals:

2006 2005

{Doflars in millions} .

Beginning balance, January 1 $ 181 $ 41

Expense _ : ' _ 296 17.5

Payments : : . ' {15.7) {3.5)
Ending balance, December 31 . $ 320 $ 181

The restructuring accrual for 2006 and 2005 was included in accounts payable and other Iiab‘ilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. ‘

The restructuring accrual at December 31, 2005 excludes costs related to curtailment of pension and postretirement benefit plans.

.o

Loss on Divestitures: ) ‘ .

2006 . 2005 % Change

{Dcllars in millions)

{Loss) on Divestitures . $ - (64.3) % - $ (64.3)

In June 20086, the company-completed the divestiture of its Timken Precision Steel Components — Europe business and recorded a
loss on disposal of $10.0 million. In December 2006, the company completed the divestiture of the Automotive Group's steermg
business located in Watertown, Connecticut and Nova Friburgo, Brazil and recorded a loss on disposal of $54.3 million.

Interest Expense and Income:

2006 2005 $ Change % Change

" (Dollars in millions} ) ) o
Interest expense ‘ ' : ' $ 494 $ 518 % 22 (4.3)%
Interest income ‘ $ .46 $ 3.4 $ 1.2 35.3%

Interest expense for. 2006 decreased slrghtly compared to 2005 due to lower average debt outstanding in 2008 compared to 2005,
partially offset by hlgher interest rates. Interest income increased for 2006 compared to 2005 due to higher invested cash balances
and higher interest rates.
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" Other Income and Expense:- ' K LR a0

e : i i s - 2006 © 2005 $ Change % Change
‘(Dollars in millians) o s - . :

_ CDSOA receipts, net of expenses $ 8789 $ 771 $- 108 14:0%
¥ Other expense - net: . ' t S oo e
Gain on dtvestltures of non- strategic assets $ 11 $. 89 3 {1:8) {20.21%
: Galn {loss) on dlssolutlon of subsudlartes 0 9 0.6} 15 .NM
- Other ) . ' 16.2) - 172.7} 15 ° ‘B.5%
' ~ Other expense -net ) T R l8 2} (9 4}‘ ' $ 1.2 12 8%
- .The U S. Conttnued Dumptng and Subsndy Offset Act {CDSOA) recelpts are reported net of appltcable expenses. CDSOA provades tor

S dlstrlbutlon of monles “collected by U. S Customs from anttdumptng cases to qualtfylng domestlc producers where the domesttc
“ producers have conttnued to tnvest |n their technology, equ:pment and people In 2006 the company received. CDSOA recetpts net
- of expenses of $87 9, mtllton In 2005 the company, recetved CDSOA recelpts net of expenses of $77.1 million, In September 2002

the World Trade Organtzatton {(WTQ) ruled that such payments are.:nconsrstent wrth international trade rules In February 2006 U. S .

Iegtslatnon was sngned |nto faw that would end CDSOA dlstnbutlonslfor |mports covered by anttdumptng duty orders entering the U S
after September 30 2007 lnstead any such antldumplng duttes collected would remain wrth the U s- Treasury This législation’ by
° |tself is’ not expected to have a sagntftcant effect‘ on potenttal CDSOA dlStrlbUtanS in 2007, but would be expected to reduce any dis-
trlbutlons i years beyond 2007, with dtstrtbuttons eventually ceasmg altogether There area number of factors that’ can affect whether

¢ the company receives any CDSOA dlstnbuttons and the amount of” such dtstnbutlons |n any year "These factors” |nclude among :

other things, potential addmonal changes in the law, ongomg and potenttal addmonai legal challenges to the law, the admtn:strattve

operatton of the law and the status of the underlying antldumplng orders. Accordingly, the company cannot reasonably estimate the
amount of CDSOA dtstrlbutlons it will receive in future years if any. If the: company does receive CDSOA dlstnbuttons in. 2007 they "

‘ wrll mostllkelybe receuved lnthefomth quarter. Dot P A S _‘.. AR S AF

© .n 2006 the gain on dtvestttures of non-strategtc assets prtmanly related to the sale of assets of PEL Technologles (PELl In 2000 the
companys Steel’ Group |nvested in PEL a |onnt venture to” commermahze a propnetary technology ‘that. converted iron untts into

oo accordance with Ftnancnal Accountlng Standards Board, (FASB}) Interpretation’ No 46 (FIN 46). In-2006. the company liquidated the joint
venture. Refer to:Note 12 = .Equity Investments in the Notes to Consoltdated Ftnanmal Statements for addmonal dtscussmn Lo

t

Wi In 2005 the gain on divestitures of non-strateglc assets of'$8.9 million related to the sale of certaln non strategtc assets mcludmg ’

NRB Bearings, a joint venture based in India, and the Industrial Groups Linear Motton Systems busmess based in Europe

A ity " ’
For- 2006 other expense pnmanly included losses from equity investments, donations, minority interests,’ and losses on the dtsposal
of. assets For 2005, other expénse primarily included losses on the disposal of assets, losses-from equity-investments;- donattons
minority interests and foreign currency exchange Iosses 7 e a

!
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o engtneered iron oxide for use in pigments, coattngs and abrasives: The- company "consolidated PEL effective.March 31"‘2004 in _'




income Tax Expense: ' -

2006- : 2005 % Change: . Change

{Dollars in millions) .
Income tax expense - ’ : $ 778 % 1129 % 3507 "B1.)%
Effective tax rate : 30.6% '32.6% - (200} bps .

The effective tax rate for 2006 was less than the U.S. federal statutory tax rate due to the favorable rmpact of taxes on foreign income,
mcludmg earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries being taxed at a rate less than 35%, the extraterritorial income exclusion on U.S.
exports, and tax holidays in China and the Czech Republic. In addition, the effective tax rate was favorably impacted by certain U.5.
tax benefits, including a net.reduction in our tax reserves related primarily to the settlement of certain prior year tax matters with the
Internal Revenue Service during the year, accrual of the tax-free Medicare prescription drug subsidy, deductible dividends paid to the
company's Employee Stock Ovbnership Plan (ESOP), and the U.5. domestic manufacturing deduction provided by the American Jobs
Creation Act of 2004 (the AJCA). These bénefits were offset partially by the inability to record tax benefits’ for losses- at certain
foreign subsrdrarles taxes on forelgn remittances, the impairment of non-deductible goodwill recorded in the fourth quarter of. 2006
U.S. state and Iocal income taxes, and the aggregate |mpact of ather U.S. tax |tems '

The effective tax rate for 2005 was less than the U.S. statutory tax rate due to tax benehts on forelgn income, including the extrater—
ritorial income exclusion on U.S. exports, tax holidays in China and the Czech Republic, and earnings of certain foretgn subsidiaries
being taxed at a rate less than 35%, as well as the aggregate tax benefit of other U.S. tax items. These benefits were offset

.partially by taxes incurred on foreign remittances, including a remittance during the fourth quarter of 2005 pursuant to the AJCA, U.S. .

state and local income taxes and the ihability to record a tax benefit for losses at certain foreign subsidiaries. -

r

In October 2004, the AJCA was signed into law. The AJCA contains a provision that eliminates the benefits of the' extraterritorial
mcome exclusion for U.S. exports after 2006. The company recognized tax benefits of $5.3 million related to the extraterritorial income
exclusion in 2006.. .Additionally, the AJCA contains a provision that enables companies to deduct a percentage (3% in 2005 and 2006;
6% in 2007 through 2009; and 9% in 2010 and.later years) of taxable income derived from- qualified domestic manufacturing
operations. The company recognized tax benefits of approximately $1.6 million r.elated_to the manufacturing deduction in 20086.

In December 2006, the Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006 (the TRHCA).was signed into law.' The TRHCA extends the U.S.
federal income tax credit for qualified research and development activities (the R&D credit), which had expired on December 31, 2005,
through December 31, 2007. The TRHCA also provides an alternative simplified method for calculating the R&D credit for 2007. The
company expects the alternative sir_nplified method to result in an increased R&D credit for 2007, versus prior years.

Discontinued Operations:

2006 2005 $ Change % Change

{Dollars in millions) '
Operating results, net of tax $ 332 & 266 §° 66 24.8%
Gain on disposal, net of tax 12.9 - 12.9 NM
Total . $ 46.1 $ 266 $ 195 73.3%

In December 2006, the company completed the divestiture of its Latrobe Steel subsidiary. Latrobe Steel is a global producer and
distributor of high-quality, vacuum melted specialty steels and alloys. Discontinued operations represent the operating results and
related gain on sale, net of tax, of this business. Refer to Note 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures.in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional discussion.
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Busmess Segments a . I
~ The primary measurement used by’ management to'measure the fmancral performance of each segment is ad]usted EBIT (earnlngs
before-interest and taxes excluding'the effect of amounts related to certain items that management considers not tepresentatrve rof. .
ongoing operations such as impairment and restructuring, rationalization and integration charges, one—tlme gains or losses on.sales of -
nof-strategic assets, allocated receipts recéived or payments made under the CDSOA and loss on the dissolution of subsidiary) Refer

- T to Note 14 — Segment Information in the Notes to ‘Consolidated Financial Statements for the reconciliation of adjusted EBIT by Group
to consolrdated income before income taxes . - o

-

Industrial Group: _ . 7 ’
‘ ' 2006 2005 % Change Change

" {Dotlars in millions} -
, ' -Net ‘sales, including lntersegment sales ’ - $ 20745 $1,9271 $ 1474 . '7._6% K
Adjusted EBIT - : -$ 2013 $ 1999 $ 1.4 0.7%
Adjusted EBIT margin - "o . 9. 7% . 10.4% - . {70} bps ¥

Sales by the Industrial Group mclude global sales of bearings and other products and services lother "than steell to a dwerse customer -
base mcludrng industrial equrpment constructlon and agnculture ra|I and aerospace and defense customers. The Industrial Group

+ -

also mcludes aftermarket dlstnbutron operatlons |nclud|ng automotlve appllcattons for products other than steel . S '.; —_"
The Industrial Groups net sales for 5606 compared to 2005 |ncreased pnmanly aijé to*hrgher demand across most end markets ) ’ H
partrcularly aerospace, heavy industry and industria! distribution markets *While 'sales ‘increased in 2006 adjusted EBIT margin was -

" lower compared to 2005 primarily due to hlgher manufacturrng costs.associated with ramp:ng up new facilities to meet customer . L
demand and investments in the Asian growth initiative and Pro;ect O.N.E, mostly offset by. hlgher volume and increased pricing. The s
company expects the Industnal Group to benefit from contlnued strength in most industrial segments in '2007. The Industnal Group .
is also expected to benefit from additional supply capacity in constralned products throughout 2007 : e

T

Y Automotive Group:

- - . : o f

e Co e .. . 2006 % ' 2005 S Change Change
_ ' . {Dallars in mllllonsl . o v . ) o Tk _ ) . o 7. : ‘_5'- “‘,..‘-
- . "Net sales, mcludmg rntersegment sales . . : S 1, 573 0 : $ 1 661 1 -8 8.0 .. {531% .o
.. Adjusted EBIT (loss) - . . : . : : 13 s 0199 I8 (838 . 0T NM, R
' Ad|usted EBIT {loss) margln . s o (4 7% N 2)% - :' (350] bps R '

+

“The Automotrve Group includes sales of beanngs and other products and servrces (other than steel) to automotive ongmal equrpment . .
o o manufacturers and suppllers The Automotive Group's. net sales in 2006 compared to 2005 decreased prrmanly due 10 lower volume
drlven by reductions in vehicle production by North American ariginal eqmpment manufacturers partlally offset by |mproved pricing. ";'
Profitability for 2006° compared to 2005 decreased. primarity due to lower vqume Ieadrng o the underutrhzatron of manufactunng '
‘ capacity, and an increase of $18.8 million in warranty reserves, partlallv offset by |mproved pricing and a decrease in allowances for
Tore automotive industry credit exposure. The Automotive Group s sales are expected to stabllrze |n 2007 compared to the second half of

20086, and the Automotwe Group is expected to dellver improved margins due to its restructunng initiatives. L o

4

-. During 2008, the company recorded $16.5 million of severance ‘and related beneflt costs, $1 5 million of extt costs and $1.6 million of .

impairment charges assocrated wrth the Automotive Group's restructunng pIans In 2005 the company recorded approxnrnately T

$20.3 million of severance and related benefit costs and $2.8 million of exit costs as a result of envrronmental charges related to the

closure of a manufactunng facility in Clinton, South Carolrna and administrative faClll(leS in Tornngton Connecticut and Norcross, Georgia.: s L
% . The Automotive Group's adjusted EBIT {loss) excludes these restructurlng costs, as they are not representatlve of ongomg ‘operations. -

- - w

. . ¥
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Steel Group:

_ 2006 2005 $ Change Change
{Dollars in millions) ' - : : .- '
Net sales, including intersegment sales . o ' -$1,4723 $1,4151 § 6572 4.0%
Adjusted EBIT . - 8§ 206.7 $ 1758 $ 309 17.6%
Adjusted EBIT margin . . A ) 14. 0% - 12.4% - 160 bps

. The Stee!l Group sells steel of low and mtermedrate aIon and carbon grades in both solld and tubular sections, as well as custom—made
steel products for both automotive and industrial applications, mcludrng bearings.

In December 2008 the company completed the sale of its Latrobe Steel subsidiary. Sales and Adjusted EBIT from these operations
are included in dascontrnued operations. Previously reported amounts for the Steel Group have been adjusted to-remove the Latrobe
Steel operations. The Steel Group’s 2006 net sales increased over 2005 primarily due to increased prlcmg and surcharges to recover
high raw material and energy costs, as well as strong demand in industrial and energy market sectors, partially offset by Iower
automotive demand, The i increase in the Steel Group's profitability in 2006 compared to 2005 was prrmarrly due to a'favorable sales
_ mix, improved manufacturlng productlwty and increased pricing. The company expects the Steel Group to continue to benefit from
strong dermand in rndustnal and energy market sectors The company also expects the Steel Groups Adjusted EBIT to be slrghtly
higher in 2007 pnmanly due 10 pnce mcreases and hsgher manufactunng productrwty Scrap costs are expected to decline from their
‘current level, while alloy and energy costs are expected to remain at hrgh levels. However, these costs are expected to be recovered

]

through surcharges and price mcreases ] ' ) T ' R
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2005. compared to 2004 : ; . oo L

Overview: . . oL e ]
S . T S T . 2008-°.. . 2004 .8 Change . % Change . . .
*_{Dottars in millions, except earnlngs pershare} . 4 o P " Lot ey LS : 3 cpo- ek . ;
" Net sales —_— . . B © .$4,8232. $42872 § 5360 |, 125% v
Income from continuing operations : ’ i - 2337 134.1 886 . . 743% -
- - Income discontinued ‘operations - o '26.6 16 ~250° " NM -
- Netincome ~ . ' o .. 2603 1357 1246 ¢ . 918% N
- . Diluted earnings per share: Coee : o . ' .
Continuing operations . $ 252 § 148 $. 104 . 70.3%, L
Discontinued operations . 0.29 0.01 028 NM 3
& Netlincome per share N ‘ $ 23 $ 1.49 $ 132 BB.E%: -
* Average number of shares — diluted - . .. 92,537,529 90,758,671 - -. - 2.0% B
THE STATEMENT OF INCOME e e
"\N . Sales by Segment . . . . - R R ‘.; - T
C A - . 2005 2004.  $ Change % Change . i
.""' tDoIIars in millions, and exclude intersegment sales) . R . LI "R MR ’ '
. Industrial Group ' $1 925 2 ‘S 11,7098  § 2154 12 6% ‘
Automotive Group N ‘ _ 1,661.1 15822 - 788 ., 50%
. SteélGroup _~ o o © "1,2369 995.2 " . * 24177 '243% U
Total ‘comipany ' s T o o 5‘4'8232 $4287.2 - % '5360 12 5% . %S
™ * - - ) B Lot o W' ARt} " T A
L The 1ndustr|al Group s net sales mcreased from 2004 to 2005 due to h|gher volume and 1mpr0ved product mnx Many end markets :
L-. were strong espemally mining, metals, rail, aerospace and oil and gas which also drove strong dlstrlbutlon sales tThe Automotrve "-.'~‘_ E N.
_5": . Group s net sales increased from 2004 to 2005 due to improved pricing’and growth in medlurn- and heavy -truck markets The Steel KRR i
Groups et sales increased from 2004 to 2005 due to strong industrial, aerospace and energy sector’ demand as well as mcreased - N
pricing and surcharges to recover high raw material and energy costs. - T
A " Gross PrOfIt L LI . . : : oL ST A PR - . : S .. '
- ‘_ R : : L " 2005 . 2004 S Change Change bt
e (Dollars in millions) i . _ _.
i Gross profit ) $ 1,000.0 $ B244 $ 17586 21._3% T
Gross profit % to net sales S 207% . 192% . - . 150bps = o
Rationalization and |ntegratnon charges included in cost of products sold . s " 1458 $ 4.5 $ . 100 NM C
o Gross profit benehted from price increases and surcharges, favorable sales volume and mix. In 2005, manufacturlng ratlonallzatlon C

o '\f -and |ntegratron charges refated to the rationalization-of. the company 's Canton Chic: beanng facilities and costs for certain fac:htles in A
Torrlngton Connecticut. In 2004, manufacturing rationalization and integration charges related primarily to expenses assomated W|th
N the integration of Torrington.
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Selling, Ac_iministrativ'e' and General Expenses:

. 2005 2004 £ Change ' Change
{Dollars in millions} - i .
Selling, administrative and general expenses L . . $ 6469 $ 5759 § M0 12.3%
Selling, administrative and general expenses % 10 net sales 13.4% 13.4% ‘ - 0 bps
Rationalization expenses included in selling, admmlstratwe and . . N
‘general expenses . $ 28 $§ 225 $ {19, 7 ' (87.8)%

The increase in selling, administrative and general expenses in 2005 compared to 2004 was primarily due to higher costs assomated
with performance-based compensation and growth initiatives, partially offset by lower rationalization and integration charges. Growth
initiatives included investments in Project O.N.E., as well as targeted geographic growth in Asia.

in 2005, the raticnalization and integration charges primarily related to the rationalization of the company’s Canton, Ohio bearing
facilities and costs associated with the Torrington acquisition. In 2004, the manufacturing rationalization and integration charges
related primarily to expenses associated with the integration of Terrington, mostly for information technology and purchasing initiatives.

Impairment and Restructuring Charges: : ' o '

2005 2004 % Change

{Dollars in millions} . . . . ’
Impairment charges’ .~ ) ' i $ 08 3 8.6 $ o7
Severance and related benefit costs 20.3 . 4.3 16.0
Exit costs : 5.0 0.7 -~ 4.3
Totat R _ $ 261 $ 135 $§ 128

In 2b05 the company recorded a.pproximately $20.3 million of severance and related benefit Costs and $2.8 million of exit costs as
a result of environmental charges related to the closure ‘of manufactunng facnhhes in Clinton, South Carolina, and admlmstratwe
facilities in Torrington, Connecticut and Norcross Georgla These closures are part of the restructuring plans for the Automotive Group
announced in July 2005,

Asset impairment charges'of $0.8 million and exit costs of $2.2 million related to environmental charges were recorded in 2005 as a
result of the rationalization of the company’s three bearing plants in Cantan, Chio within the Industrial Group.

In 2004, the impairment charges related primarily to the write-down of property. plant and equipment at one of the Steel Group’s
facilities, based on ithe company's estimate of its fair value. The severance and related benefit costs related to associates who
exited the company.as'a result of the integration of Torrington. The exit costs related primarily to domestie facilities,
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" 1 . [

s .Interest,_Expense and Income: ' - ‘ B ‘
T - B 0 ' . 2005 2004 $ Change % Change

{Dotlars in millions) . " : ‘ vl
| Interest expense : P ., % -516 ' § .508 $ -08 - 1. 6% .
Interest income : R $ 34" §. 14 $ 20 -‘142.9%
R ‘-" Interest expense in 2005 compared to 2004 increased sllghtly due to higher effective interest rates: lnterest income increased. due-to - "
higher cash balances and,interest rates. R < : i - .
. § . . ) . . -
. . . ¥ ¥
-Other.lncome-and Expense:. - L T IR
o e : : .- o Lo - 20054 2004 $ Change” ‘% Change .~ o
o +".> {Dolars in, millions) ol L e . e Sl . oL el L e o . .
s "5CDSOA receipts, net of expenses . ) N .8 771 $ 444 % 327 . 736% R
K Other, expense -.net: S ' - s '_ e ‘ h . el e
! Gain on divestitures of non'strategrc assels - o 8. 89 . ;_$ < 18 4 $ {7Bh.. .(45. 7)%
. & Losson dlssolutlon of subsrdrary LT o EE (o) - .(162) . 156 .96 3% .
.t Others " ‘ Lo S 7n - Y28 148 455%- ;.
et Other expense “net ' L e T T (94) S (32 3 % 22 g%, v+ 70.9% "

: w CDSOA recelpts are reported net of apphcab!e expenses In 2005 the company recerved CDSOA recelp:ts net of expenses of
< $77 1 million. In, 2004, the CDSOA recerpts of $44 4’ mrllron were net.of. the: amounts that kaen delrvered o the sel!er of the
Torrrngton busrness pursuant. ‘to. thé. terms of the agreement under. whrch the- companwpurchased Torrrngton Inw2004 kaen Lot

. dehvered to the seller of the Torrmgton busrness 80% of the CDSOA payments reéceived for Torrlngton ] bearlng busrness . ) ‘
ST [AFORRY A P T
3 " In 2005 the garn on drvestrtures of non-strategrc assets of $89 mrlhon related to the sale. of certaln non strategrc assets, whrch

rncluded NRB Bearlngs a rolnt venture based in Indra and the Industnal Groups Lrnear Motron Systems busrness based in Europe
ST 2004 the $16.4 miltion garn included the- sale of real’ estate at a facility in Duston England which ceased operatlons in 2002

2 " offset by a Ioss on'the sale of the company 's Krlran Jbearing busrness whrch was acquired-in the Tornngton acqwsrtron C - a3 '

- In 2004, the company began the process of liguidating one of its |nactrve subsrdrarres Bntrsh Timken Ltd., located in Duston, England. i e
The company recorded non-cash charges on dissolution of $0.6 mllhon and $16; 2 mllhon in 2005 and . 2004 respectlvely, WhICh T
related prrmarrly to the transfer of cumulative foreign currency translatron Iosses to the Statement of lncome . . -

- For 2005 other expense’ |ncluded Iosses on the dlsposal of assets, Iosses from equrty mvestments donatrons mrnonty |nterest5 and e
¥ ;.forergn currency exchangé Iosses For 2004 other -expense mcluded losses from equrty rnvestments Iosses on the drsposal of assets,
'toretgn currency exchange losses, donations, mrnonty |nterests and’a non-cash charge for the adophon of FASB. Interpretation No. 46,
Consolldatron of Varable Interest Entltles an interpretation of Accountlng Hesearch Bulletrn No 51" {FIN 46). _During 2004, the ,' v )
company consolldated its rnvestment inits joint venture, PEL, in accordance with FIN 46. The company prevrously accounted for :ts

1nvestment |n PEL using the equity method. Refer ta Note 12 - Equity Investments in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements e 1!__,‘
. 4 for addltronal discussion. . L . o e T
o . - L . ' . }; S
) N n: ¥ . ' . ;
- . B .
. .
- N . . - ' ' V“' .
— .
. s A o
Vo -
o - . o "‘
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Income Tax Expense:

e B W T 80 i R b R £

" ) 2005 2004 = % Change Change

* (Dollars in millions} ) '
Income tax expense - - . % 1129 $ 635 $ 494 77.8%
Effective tax rate . S 32.6% 32.2% . 40 bps

The effective tax rate-for 2005 was less than the U.S. statutory tax rate due to tax benefits on foreign.income, including the-extrater-
ritorial income exclusion on U.3. exports, tax holidays in China and the Czech Republic, and earnings. of certain foreign subsidiaries
being taxed at.a rate less than 35%, as well as the aggregate tax benefit of other U.S. tax items. These benefits were offset
partially by taxes |ncurred on foreign remittances, including a remittance during the fourth quarter of 2005 pursuant to the AJCA U S~
state. and local income taxes and the inability to record a tax benefrt for losses at certarn forergn subsrdrarles e '

S s

. . - |

The effectlve tax rate for 2004 was less than the U.S. statutory tax rate due to beneflts from the settlement of prior years liabilities,
the changes in the tax status of-certain forergn subsidiaries, benefits of tax holidays in China and the Czech Repubhc earnmgs .of
certam subsrdrarles being taxed at a rate Iess than 35% and the aggregate impact of certain other items. - These benefits were partlally
offset by the establrshment of a valuatlon “allowance agalnst certain deferred tax assets assocrated ‘with loss carryforwards
attnbutable to a subsidiary that was in the process of - Irquldatron .S, state and Iocal mcome taxes taxes incurred on forergn
remmances and the mabrhty to record a'tax beneflt for losses at certain forelgn subsidiaries. ) T : ‘

T A

[P TR S

Discontinue'd Operations: ’

4
]

T , 2005 2004 $Change % Change
-IDollars in millions) ' n

_ Operating results, net of tax ~ $ 266 $ 16§ 250 NM !

In:December 2006 the company compfeted the divestiture of its Latrobe" Steel subsidiary. Dlscontrnued operations represent the
operating results net’ of tax, of this' busrness in 2005 and 2004. ' . !

i
i
¥
]

1
4
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R S 2005 .-2004 . § Change Change -
(Dollars in millions} : ~ e .ot . e S '
Net sales, including mtersegment sales , . $1661.1  $1,5822 5, 789 . 5.0%
Adjusted EBIT (loss) $ (199 ,% 159 . $. (358 _

B Adjusted EBIT {loss) margrn 2% - "10% 7 - (220) bps

4

Business Segments:.

B

Pl o
Industrial .Group: ' . o : ;.
, ' ‘ P 2005° 2004 " $ Change Change
(Doilars in millions) : - . i N
Net sales, including intersegment sales $ 19271 §1,711.2 § 2169 12.6%
Adjusted EBIT "§ 19%9 % 1779 & 220 124%
Adjusted EBIT margin 10.4% 10.4% ) - .. Obps

The Industrial Group s net sales increased in 2005 due_to h:gher volume and rmproved product mix, Many end markets were strong
especrally mining, metals rail, aerospace and oil and gas, which also drove. strong d:strrbutron sales. While sales increased in, 2005

ad;usted EBIT" margm was comparable t 2004, as volume growth and prrcrng were pamally offset by hlgher manufactunng COStS -
assocrated with ramping up of capacity to meet customer demand, |nvestments in, the Asia growth initiative: and Prorect ON. E and

wnte—offs of obsolete and. slow -moving inventory. During 2005, operations ‘were expanded in Wuxi, Chrna to serve rndustrral

customers. The company also mcreased capacrty at two large-bore bearings operations Iocated in Ploiesti, Romania ‘and Randleman ’
. [Asheboro), North Carolina.

.—;_ a .

.._,.,,.J,_-,

Automotlve Group

4 e

NM .,

»

The Automotrve Group s net sales |ncreased in 2005 due to improved pricing and increased demand for heavy truck products partrally
offset by reduced volume for ||ght vehrcle products. While the Automotive Group s improved sales favorably impacted profrtablhty it
was more than’offset by the hrgher manufacturing costs- assocrated with ramplng up plants servrng -industrial customers ‘and. from

increase in the accounts receivable reserve.-

During 2005, the.company announced a restructunng plan as part of its effort to improve Automotrve Group performance and address -

T

’ reduced unit volume from light vehicle customers Automotive results were also tmpacted by investments in Pro;ect O.MN.E. and an

o e

challenges in the automotivé markets The' company recorded approxrmately $20 3.million of severance and'Telatad benefrt costs and
$2.8 million-of ‘exit costs: as a result of envrronmental and curtailment charges related-to the closure of manufactunng facrlrtres in
. Clinton; South Carolina and admrnrstratrve facilities in:Torrington, Connecticut and Norcross, Georgla ’

T

|l'

Steel Group: '

’ 2005 2004 $ Change ~ *- Change
tDoIIars in millions) » e v . ’ - E
Net sales, including: |ntersegment sales - " §14151 5711571 $ .2880 ' 223%
Adjusted EBIT . - $ 1758 $ 527 $ 1231 *: NM
‘Adjusted EBIT margin ' - 12.4% 46% . c.a- - 780 bps

o

The Steel Groups 2005 net sales-increased over 2004 due to strong, demand in industrial and .energy market sectors as weli as
mcreased prrcrng and surcharges to recover high raw material ana- enargy costs The Steel Group s rrnproved profrtabrlrty reflected
pnce mcreases and surcharges to recover hlgh Taw materral costs |mproved volume and mrx as weII as contlnued hlgh labor
. productrvrty -

-

B - +
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THE BALANEE SHEET

Total assets, as shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2008, increased b\( $37.8 million from December 31, 2005.
This increase was primarily due to increased property, plant and equipment — net, and working capital from continuing operations
required to support higher ‘sales, partially offset by the decrease in assets of discontinlied operations that were part of the sale of
Latrobe Steel.

Current Assets:

12/31/06 12/31/05 % Change % Change
(Dollars in millions) . . -

Cash and cash equivalents . - $ 1011 $ 654 $ 357 54.6%

Accounts receivable, net 673.4 657.3 16.1 2.4%
Inventaries, net 952.3 900.3 52.0 5.8%
Defeired income taxes ' 85.6 a97.7 12.1) 12.4)%
Deferred charges and prepaid expenses . 1.1 . 17.9 (6.8) (38.0)%
Current assets of discontinued operations - 162.2 162.2) (100.00%

_ Other current assets 76.8 . 825 (5.7) {6.9)%
Total current assets oL $ 1,900.3 $1,983.3 $ 8300 - 42)%

The increase in cash and cash equ-i\(alents in 2006 was primarily due to proceeds from the sale of Latrobe Steel, offset by the
_ payment of debt. Refer to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for further explanation. MNet accounts receivable increased
primarily due to the impact of foreign cusrency translation and higher sales in the fourth quarter of 2006 as compared to 2005. The
increa.se in inventories was primarily due to the impact of foreign currency translation, higher volume and increased ram;' material costs.
The decrease in deferred income taxes was the result of the utilization of certain loss carryforwards and tax credits in 2006. Current
assets of discgntinued operations at December 31, 2005 reflect the total current assets of Latrobe Steet. '

'

Property, Plant and Equipment - Net;

"12/31/06 12/31/06  $Change % Change

{Dollars in millions}

Property, plant and eguipment, - . $ 3,664.8 $344186 $ 2232 6.5%
Less: allowances for depreciation . (2,063.3) . {1.967.5) (95.8) 4.9%
Property, plant and equipment — net $ 1,601.5 $1,4741 $ 1274 . 8.6%

The increase in property, plant and equipment - net was primarily due to capital expenditures exceeding depreciation expénse and the
impact of foreign currency translation.

OCther Assgts:

12/31/06 12/31/05 $ Change % Change

{Dollars in millions}

Goodwill $ 2019 £ 204 $ 2.2) 1.1%
Other intangible assets : ' 1041 179.0 (74.9) (41.8)%
Deferred income taxes 1694 1.9 167.5 NM
Non-current assets of discontinued operations - 81.2 8120 {100.0)%

_ Other non-current assets ' : ' 54.3 70.1 {15.8} (22.5)%
Total other assets ) . $ 5297 - $ 5363 $ (6.6} (1.2)%

The decrease in goodwill in 2006 was primarily due to the impairment loss recorded on Automotive Group goodwill of $11.9 million in
- accordance with SFAS No. 142, mostly offset by acquisitions. Other intangible assets decreased primarily due to adoption of SFAS
No. 158, “Employers” Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements
No. 87, 88, 106 and 1324R),” which eliminates the pension intangible asset. The increase in deferred income taxes was primarily-due
to deferred tax assets recorded in conjunction with the adoption of SFAS No. 158.' Non-current assets of discontinued operations at
December 31, 2005 reflect the total non-current assets, including property, plant and equipment, of Latrobe Steel.
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Cur_rentLiabilities:- ot . i T .

12/31/06 12/31/05 g Change % Change

(Dollars in millions) + _ . f

Short-term debt ' . $ 402 $ 634 $ (2320 -(366%
Accounts payable. and other liabilities « . 506.3 471.0 . 353 ©75%
" Salaries; wages and benefits - ' 225.4 3640 - (138.8) (38.11%
Income taxes payable 52.8 305 223 7131%
"-Deferred income taxes. 0.6 49 . - {43) - (B7B%
Current liabilities of discontinued operations - 417 LT 100.0%
Current portion of long-term debt - 10.2 - 958 : - (85.6) ° (89.4)%
Total current habilities ) $.:°8355 $ 10713+ $ (2358 . (22 0}%

The decrease in short-term debt was the result of the repayment of debt held by PEL an equrty investment of the company The

increase in accounts payahble and other liabilities was pnmanly due 1o an increase |n severance accruals and forergn currency'
translation. The decrease in salaries, wages and benefits was pnmanly due 10 a decrease in the current portlon of accrued pension
cost. At December 31, 2006, the current portlon of acerued pension costs and acerued postretlrement costs relate to unfunded plans '

and represent the actuarial present value of expected payments related to these plans to be made over the next twe|ve months

- pursuant to SFAS No. 168. At December 31, 2005, the current portlon of accrued pensron costs was based upon the’ companys
estimate of contnbutlons to its pension pIans in the next twelve months. Thei |ncrease |n rncorne taxes payable was prrmarrty due to the
-l utlhzatlon of U.S. tax loss carryfomrards and the impact of a tax audit settlement in 2006, The current liabilities of discontinued

* operations at December 31, 2005 Teflect the total current liabilities of Latrobe Steel. The current portion of long-term debt decreased

-

pnmarr!y due to the payment of debt, partially offset by the reclassification of debt maturing within the next twelve months to current

Non-Current Liabilitiés; - i o, R
. L _ . 12{31/06 ~_ 12/31/05 = $ Change.. % Change

{Dollars in millions)

Long-term debt ~ : - C s sa74 s s6i7 0§ g, 3)

(2.51%

Accrued pension cost , . ! T 410.4 2424 168.0 . 69.3%*
Accrued postretirement benefits cost : : e . 6829 . 4885 c 19440 .« 398%
Deferred income taxes Voo 6.7 . .36.6 .o 1299 8 %
Non-current liabilities of discontinued operations B L a 359, (359 (100.0%
Other non-current liabilities ) 724 60.2 122 203%

- Total non-current liabilities o ) ST 81,79, 8 $1,425.3 $ 2945 20.7%

' B -

: The decrease in-long-term debt was primarily due to the reclassmcatton of long-term debt to current for debt maturing wrthrn the next -

twelve months, partially offset by debt assumed in the’ consolrdatnon of-ajoint venture. The |ncrease in accrued pens:on cost and
accrued postretirement benefits cost increased as a result of the adoptlon of SFAS No. 158. The amounts at December 31, 2006 for
both ‘accrued pensron cost and acerued postretrrement benefits cost reflect the funded status of the companys defined benefit
pensron and postretirement benefit plans. In 12005, the.net unrecogmzed actuarial . Iosses unrecogmzed prior servrce costs and

" unrecognized transrtlon obhgatlon remalnlng from the initial adoption of SFAS No. 87 and SFAS No. 106 ‘were netted agalnst the

funded status. Refer to Note 13 — Retirement and Postretlrement Beneflt P!ans in the Notes to Consolrdated Frnancral Statements

- The non-current ||ab|I|t|es of drscontlnued operations at December 31, 2005 reﬂect the total non-current liabilities’ of Latrobe Steel. The

decrease in deferred income taxes was primarity due to an adjustment to reflect a tax audit settlement in 2006 and the classification
of the year-end net asset balance to non-current deferred tax assets.

L . vt
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Shareholders’ Equity: _ e S

(20.9)

. . . . L - . ) .
The increase in common stock in 2006 related to stock option exercises by employees and the related income tax, benefits Earnings
|nvested m the business were rncreased in 2006 by net mcome partialty reduced by dividends declared The increase in accumulated
other comprehensrve loss was pnmanly due to the amounts recorded in conjunction with the . adoptron of SFAS No. 158 pamally

- offset by thei |ncrease in the foreign currency translation ad;ustment The increase in the foreign currency translatlon adjustment was

due to weakemng of the U.S. dollar refative to other currencies, such as the Romanian lei, the Brazilian real and the Euro. For discus-
slon regardlng the |mpact of forergn currency translation, refer.to [tem 7A. Ouantltatlve and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

-

LI

EASH FLI:IWS : e
‘ 12/31/06 12/31/05 '$ Change
(Dollars in millions) - - L . .
Net cash provided by.operating activities $ 3369 § 387 $ 182
Net cash psed,by investing activities . {130.9) (242.8) 1119
" . Net cash used by financing activities {176.7) (56.3) {120.4)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash . 6.3 . (5.2) 11.5
Increase-in cash and cash equrvalents ° ' $ 356 % 14 4 $ 212

The net “cash provided by operatmg actrvrtres “of $336.9 million for. 2006 |ncreased from 2005 with operating. cash frows from
drscontmued operations increasing $426 mrlhon pamally offsét by operating cash flows from continuing operatrons decreasrng
$24 4 mrllron The decrease in net cash provrded by operating activities from continuing operations was primarily the result of; lower
- income from contrnurng operations of $176:4 million, adjusted for non-cash items of $266.5 million in 2006 compared to income from |
conunurng operatrons of $233.7 million, adjusted for-non-cash items of $301.3 million, in 2005. The decrease in non-cash items was
driven by a deferred tax benefit in 2006 compared to expense in 2005, partially offset by higher impairment and restructurrng charges
and losses on the sale of non- strategic assets. The lower net.income from continuing operations, ad;usted for non—cash |tems was |
partlally offset by the reductlon in the-use of cash for working capital requtrements primarilyinventories, partially offset by accounts
payable and accrued’expenses.

a source of ‘cash of’ $120.3 million.in 2008, compared to a source of cash.of $175.7 million in 2005 The company made cash
contnbuuons toits U.S-based' pensron plans in 2006 of, $242.6 mrllron compared to $226.2 million in 2005 The increase in’ operatrng
cash flows from d:scontlnued operatrons was prrmanly due to workrng capital items, primarily mventory L s

The decrease in net cash used by anvestrng actrvrtles in 2006 compared to 2005 Wwas primarily due to higher cash proceeds from dlvestr-
tures and lower. acqursmon actrvrty partrally offset by hrgher capital expendrtures The cash proceeds from dwestrtures mcreased
$181.5 million prrmanly due to ‘the sale of the company's Latrobe Steel subsrdrary Capltal expendltures increased $78 7 mrlhon in 2006
cornpared to 2005 pnmarrly to fund Industrial Group growth initiatives and Pro;ect O.NE’

actrwtres of discontinued operations increased $18.3 million in 2006 pnmanly due to the buyout of a roIIrng mill operating lease in -

conjunctron with the sale of Latrobe Steel.

The increase in nét cash used by financing activities was primarily due to the company decreasing its net borrowings $141.4 miflion
in 2006 after decreasing its net borrowings $40.9 million in 2005.- In addition, proceeds from the exercise of stock options decreased

during 2006 compared to 2005.

- [ P
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_ Inventory was a use of cash of $6.7 mrllron in 2006 compared to a use 'of cash of $137.3 million in
' 2005 Exclud:ng cash contributions to the company's U:s. based pensron plans, accounts’ payable and- accrued expenses were

In addmon cash used by |nvestlng .

RPN

12/31/06 12/31/05 -~$Change % Change
{Dollars in millions) - -
~ Common stock . ! . § B062 3 7721 $ 341 4 4%

* Earnings invested in the busmess . 1,217.2 10529 .+ 1643 1. 6% .
Accumutated other comprehensrve loss {544.6) {323.5) (221.1) . 68.3%
Jreasury shares " 2.6} 4.4 . . 18 -{40.9)% ‘e

Total shareholders’ equity $1,4762 - $1,497.1 $. 4% '

‘
]
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES ‘- °~ ~ ~. Lo

Total debt was $597.8 miilion at December 31, 2006 compared t6/$720.9 million at December 31, 2005. Net debt was $496.7 million
at December 31, 2006 compared to $655.5 million at December 31, 2005. The net debt to caplta1 ratro was 25.2%-at December 31,
+ 2006 compared to 30 5% at December 31, 20057 ; '

Reconcmat:on of total debt to net debt and the ratio of net debt to capital: -~ -~ s

Net Debt: e s .,'. o o L o s o
YT 12/31/06° 12/31/05 . :

{Dollars in millions) T
Short-term debt $ 4.2 - 3% 634
Current portion of long-term debt- 102 858
‘Long-term debt . 547.4 561.7

Total debt 597.8 .720.9 '
Less: cash and cash equivalents . ' (101 " (65.4) .

Net debt o $ 496.7 $: 6555

LR *. . ' .

Ratio of Net Debt to Capital: RN "
e b 12/31/06 ~  12/31/05
{Dofars in millions) ' ' D
Net debt . § 496.7 $ 6555
Shareholders’ equity 1,476.2 . + 1,487

Net debt + shareholders’ eqmty {capital) . . . v $1,972.9 $2,152.6 .
Ratio of net debt to capltal " ot 25.2% _30.5% :

The ‘company presents net debt because it beheves net clebt is more representatwe of the company s, mdtcattve funanclal posmon

. At December 31, 2006, the company had no outstanding borrowings under |ts $500 million Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

_' (Senior Credit Fecility), and letters of credit outstanding totaling $33.8 million,._which‘redu'ced ,t_he aveilabilityiunder'the‘Senior Credit

Facility to $466.2 million. The Senior Credit Facility,matures on June 30, 2010. Under'the Senior.Credit Facility, the company has two

financial covenants: a consolidated leverage ratio and a consolidated interest coverage retio At December 31, 2006, the company was

in full compliance with the covenants under the Senior Credit Facility.and its other debt agreements Refer. to Note 5i~ Financing
Arrangements in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for-further dlscussaon o . e TR ‘

At December 31, 2006; the company had no outstandmg borrowmgs under the company s Asset Securitization, which prowdes for
borrowangs up to $200 miillion, limited to certain borrowmg base calcutations;” ‘and is secured by certaun domestic” trade receivablés of
the company. As of December 31, 2006 there were Igtters of credlt outstandmg totahng $16 7 mrlhon wh|ch reduced the ava|lab|l|ty

under the Asset Securitization to $183.3 million. - . R oo - I R L B

toeta f E P PR t

The company expects that any cash requwements in excess of cash generated from operatlng actuwttes w:II be met by the avatlab:hty under -
its Asset Securitization and Senior Credit Facility. The cormpany beheves it has suﬁlc:ent Ilqmdlty to meet its obhgatrons through 2010. ' ,

PR . ' ._.\:'
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F.’ayr_nents due by Period:

Financing Obligations and Other Commitments : . - - : P .r. C

‘The company ‘s contractual debt obltgattons and contractual commttments outstanding as of December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Less than s More than

Contractual Obligations r - Total - 1 Year 1-3Years 3-5Years . 5 Years

' {Dallars in millions}) v . i T : c ' .
Interest payments R .+, $°3366 $ 339 § 620 $ 358 § 2049
-’Long-term debt, mclud:ng current portion . ,- 557.6° o102 34.0 ‘299.9 2135
.Shorttermdebf *- - -+« . O 40.2 - 402 SRS - R
* Operating leases : ' 133.8 28.7 38.9 241 - 42.1

' Total " $1,068.2 $ 1130 $ 1349 $§ 3598 § 4605
The interest payments are primarily related to; medlum term notes that mature over the next twenty-eight years. el " o ’

The company expects to make cash contributions of $100.0 million to its global defined benefit pension plans in 2007 Refer to. Note '

13> Retlrement and Postretlrement Beneflt Plans in the Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements S 3

ool - - ek

Dunng 2006, the campany did not purchase any shares of its common stock as authorized under the company's 2000 commeon stock >
. purchase plan. This plan authorized the company to buy in the open market or in privately negotiated.transactions up to four.million '
' shares of common stock, which are td be held as treasury shares‘and used for specified purposes, and authorized'purchases uptoan . .

aggregate of $180 rillion.” This plar’éXpiréd on December 31,2006, On November 3, 2006 the company sdopted its 2006 common

« stock’ purchase plan, effective January 1, 2007. The 2006 commaon stock purchase plan authorizes the company to buy in the open

market or in pnvately negotiated transactions Op to four million shares of common stock. This plan authorlzes purchases up to an °
aggregate of $180 million. The company may exercise this authorization until December 31, '2012.. The company does not expect Lo

be active in repurchasrng its shares under the plan in the near-term. . - - - - -

" The company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements with unconsoltdated entities or other persons

5 - L ""~ . . . *

Recently Adopted Accounttng Pronouncements : . S ' T

In December 2004, the FASB lssued SFAS No 123 (revised 2004), (SFAS No. 123(R)) "Share-Based Payment " which requires the !
measurement and recognttton of compensatlon expense based on estimated fair value for all share-based payment awards including .

: grants of employee stock options. “The company adopted the. provrsrons of SFAS No. 123(R} using the modified prospective transition
method beglnnlng January 1, 2006 Pnor to the adoption of SFAS No: 123(R), the company previously accounted for stock-based

. payment awards in accordance wrth Accountlng Pnncrples Board Opinion, No 25 (APB 25), Accounttng for’ Stock Issued 1o
Employees In accordance wrth the transmon method ‘the company did not restate pnor periods .for’ the effect of compensatlon P

‘ expense calculated under SFAS No. 123IRI The cornpany selected the Black Scholes optlon~pncmg model as the most approprlate
method for determlntng the estrmated fair value of all of fts awards The adoptron of SFAS No.-123(R} reduced income before i incorne

. faxes for 2006 by $6.0 million and reduced net income for 2006 by $3 8 l'T’II||I0n {$0 04 per drluted share). The adoptlon of SFAS No.

123IRI had no material effect on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for 2006. See'Note 9 - Stock-Based Compensatron |n the
Notes to the Consolldated Ftnancral Statements far more mformatlon on the impact of this new standard. .

In May 2005 the FASB issued’ SFAS No. 154 “Accounting Changes and Error Correctlons " which changes the accounttng for and ,

‘ reportlng of 2 change in accounting prmcrple This statement also carries forward the guidance from APB No. 20 regardtng the
- correction of an error and changes in accounttng estimates. This statement requrres retrospective application to pl’lOf period financial

statements “of changes in accountrng principle, unless it is impractical to determine either the period-specific or cumulative effects

of the change:* SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes made in fiscal years begtnmng after December 15, 2005. “The

. adoptlon of this standard did not have an impact on the company 's results of operations or fmancral condutlon
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In'September 20086, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “"Employers’ Accounting for Deflned Benefit Pension and Other Postretlrement -

" Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No 87, 88, 106 and 132(R).” SFAS No. 158 requires a company to (a} recogntze inits state—
ment of financial position an asset for a pIan s over funded status or a liability for 2 pian's under funded status, (b) measure a plan (]

assets and its abligations that determine its funded status as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year, and {c} recognize changes in the -

_ funded status of a defined postretirement plan in the year in which the changes occur (reported in comprehenswe income). The

requtrement to recognize the funded status of a benefit pfan and the disclosure requirements were adopted by the company effective

Plans for addmonal dlscussmn on the impact of adoptlng SFAS No 168.

ot

,

“ December 3‘I 2006 and reduced stockholders equity by $332.4 million. Refer to Note 13 — Retirement and Postretrrement Benefrt :

D
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In September 20086, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin {SAB) 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior. Year Misstatements

when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial ‘Statements.” SAB 108 requires that:public companies utilize a *dual-

approach” to assessing the quantitative effects of financial misstatements..: This dual approach includes both an income statement
focused assessment and a balance sheet focused assessment., The guidance in.SAB 108 was adopted by the company effective

December 31, 20086, and the'guidance did not have a material effect on the company's results of operations and financial conditi_on.-;. g

Recently tssued Accountmg Pronouncements

In July 2006 the FASB issued FIN 48, "Accountrng for Uncertainty in Income Taxes." This interpretation clarifies the acc_ounting'for '

uncertain tax positions recognized 'in an entrtys financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 108, “Accounting for Income
Taxes “-FIN 48 prescribes requirements and other gu|dance for financial statement recognition and measurement of positions taken
or ‘expected to be .taken on tax’ returns.. -This interpretation is effective for flsca_i years beginning after December 15, 2006. - The

" cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48-is recorded as'an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the period of adop- -

tion: - The-company will adopt FIN 48 as of January-1, 2007. Management is currently in the process of évaluating the impact of FIN
48 on the companys Consolidated Fmancra! Statements : BRI . K3

_In September’ 2006, the FASB issued 'SFAS_No. 157, “Fair Value Measureménts.” SFAS No.!'157 establishes a fr'almework' for
measuring fair value that'is based:on the assumptions market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability "and
" establishes a fair value higrarchy that prigritizes the mformatron to’ develop those assumptrons Additionally, the standard expands the
- disclosures about fair value measurements to include separateiy disclosing the fair valie measurements of assets or liabilities within

"+ each level of the fair value hierarchy. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years-beginning aft_ér‘No(rember 15, 2007. The company is

currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157 on'the company’s results of operations and financial condition.

Critical Accounting Pohmes and Estlmates
" The companys frnancral statements are prepared in accordance wrth accountlng principles generalty accepted in the United. States.
- The preparatron of these fmanmal statements reqwres management to make estlmates and assumptrons that affect the reponed

amounts of assets and Irablhtles at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 'of revenues and expenses durlng -

the penods presented The followmg paragraphs include a dlscussron of some critical areas that requrre a higher degree of |udgment
estimates and complexrty !

Revenue recognition: . Co '

R

The- companys revenue recognition’ policy is'to recognrze revenue when title passes to the'customer. This occurs at the shrpprng '
paint, except for certain exported goeds and certain foreign entities, for which it occurs when the goods reach therr destination. Selllngv

prrces are fixed based on purchase orders or contractual. arrangements

Gooder . : Do AU §

SFAS No. 142 requrres that. goodquI and mdefmrte—lrved intangible assets be tested for-impairment at least annually. .Furthermore, -
goodwill is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes-in circumstances indicate that the carrvmg valug may not be’

" recoverable. The company engages an independent valuation firm and-performs its annual impairment test dunng the fourth quarter
. after the_anpual forecastmg process is;complgted. In 2006, the.carrying value of the.company’s Automotive reportmg units
exceeded Iheir fair value,. As a result an,impairment loss of $11.9 million was: recognlzed Refer to Note 8 - Goodwrll and Other

Intangtble Assets in the Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements. In 2005 and 2004, the fair values of the company's reporting

units exceeded their carrying values,. and no |mpa|rment losses were. recognized, , , -

Restructuring costs: .« . - L
. The companys policy is to recognize restructuring costs in' accordance with SFAS No. 146, *Accounting for Costs’ ‘Associated with
Exit or- Drsposal Activities” and SFAS No. 112, "Employers’ Accountrng for Postemptoyment Benefrts —-an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 5 and 43.” Detailed contemporaneous documentatlon is maintained and updated to aensure that accruals are
properly supported If management determrnes that there is a change i in estimate, the accruals are adjusted to reflect this. change

1
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" Benefit plans: . : .
. The company sponsors a number of defined benefit pension plans whrch cover eligible associates. The cornpany also sponsors

several unfunded postretirement plans that provide health care and life insurance benefits for-eligible retirees and dependents. The o

méasurement of liabilities related to these plans is based on rmanagement’s assumptions related to future.events, including discount .
rate ‘return on.pension plan assets; rate of compensation |ncreases and health care cost trend rates. The: drscount rate is. determmed

-‘using a mode! that matches corporate bond securities agarnst pro;ected future pansron and postretrrement disbursements. Actua! o

pensron plan asset performance either reduces or |ncreases net actuarral gains or Iosses in the current year whlch ultrmately ah‘ects
net income |n subsequent years '

For expense purposes in 2006 and 2005 the company applied a drscount rate of 5. 875% and an expected rate of return of 8. 75% for
the company’s pension plan assets. The assumption for expected rate of return on plan assets was not changed from B.75% for 2007. .
A 0.25 percentage point reduction in the discount rate would i rncrease pension expense by approximately $5.0 million for 2007.. A 0.25
percentage point reduction in-the expected rate of return would rncrease pensron expense by approxrmately $4.7 mrllron for. 2007.... x

For measurement purposes for postretirement benefits, the company assumed a werghted average annual rate of increase in the per -

caprta cost {health-care cost trend rate) for medica! henefits of 8.0% for 2007, decllnrng gradually to 5.0% in 2010 and thereafter .and’,

: 11 25% for.2007, declining gradually 10 5.0% in 2014 and thereafter, for prescnptlon drug beneflts The, assumed health care cost

t_rend rate may have a significant effect on the amounts reported. A one percentage point increase in the assumed health care.cost

trend rate would have increased the 2006 total service and,interest components by $1 :2 -miflion and would have increased the
postretirement obligation by $20.9 mrllron A one percentage point decrease would provide corresponding reductions of $1.2 mrl!ron
* and $20.0 million, respectively. = - A . L

The U.S. Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 {the Medicare Act) was signed rnto taw on
Becember B, 2003. The Medicare Act provrdes for prescrrptron drug benefrts under Medrcare Part D and contarns a subsrdy to plan
sponsors who prowde actuarlally equrvalent prescrrptlon plalns In May 2004 the FASB |ssued FASB Staff Posmon No FAS 106—2

Accountrng and Drsclosure Requirements Re!ated to the Med:care Prescrrptlon Drug, Improvement and Modernlzatron Act of 2003" o

(FSP 106—2) Durlng 2005 the company s actuary determrned that the prescrlpt|on drug benefrt provrded by the company 's postretrre—
ment plan is considered to be actuarrally equwalent to the benefit provided under the Medicare 'Act. The effects of the Medrcare Act
are reductions to the accumulated postratirement benefit obligation and net periodic postretirement benefit cost of $53.3 mrllron and
$7 8 mrllron respectively. The 2006 expected Medrcare subsidy was $3 1 mrllron of whrch $1.0 million was received in 2006." = .

. " - : .. . "Q o

!ncome taxes: o .

Deferred income taxes aré prowded for the temporary dlfferences between the frnancra! reportrng baSIS and tax bas:s of the

companys assets and liabilities. SFAS No 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” requires that a valuation allowance be establlshed
- ‘when it is more likely than not that all of a portion of a deferred tax asset will not be realized: The company estimates current tax due’
- and temporary differences, resulting from the different treatent of items foi tax and finaricial repofting purposes. -These differences

“result in deferred tax assets and liabilities that are included within the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Based on known and projecttad;

éarnings information and prudent tax planning strategies, the company then assesses the""likelihood that déferred tax assets will‘be
. realized. 'If the company determrnes itis more likely than not that a deferred tax asset will’ not be’ reahzed ‘a charge is recorded to'
". @stablish a valuation allowance’ agarnst it: which increases |ncome tax: expense in the penod in which such determrnatron i$ made

the event that the company-later determanes that realization of 'the-deferred tax asset is more Irkely than not, ‘a. reductron in the

valuatlon allowance is recorded, which reduces income tax expense in the perrod in whichi $uch determination is made™ Net deferred.

tax assets relate primarily to pension and- postretirement benefits, which the company belreves are more likely than: not to result in'
future tax benefits. Significant management judgment is.required in determining the provision for income taxes, deferred tax assets=
and-liabilities, . and . any valuation allowance .recorded against deferred tax- assgts. -Historically, actual results have. not differed
significantly-from those used in determrnrng the estimates descrrbed above. . .pe . T ¢ L . ,' oyt el

Other loss reserves: < T T . .

" The company has a number of loss exposures incurred in the ordinary course of business such as envjronmental claims, product
liability, “product warranty, litigation and accounts receivable ‘-reserves. Establishing loss reserves for these matters requires,
‘management’s estimate and judgment with regards to risk exposure and ultimate liability or realization. These loss reserves are,

. reviewed periodically and adjustments are made 1o reflect the most recent facts .and circumstances.
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..Other Matters: - , P e S

ISO 14001 : - : , t :
" The company :continues its efforts ta protect the environment and comply with environmental protectron laws. Additicnally,.it has
. mvested in pollution” control equipment and updated plant operational practices. The company is committed to implementing a
documented environmental management systemn worldwide and to becoming certified under the ISO 14001 standard to meet or
exceed customer requirements. As of the end of 2008, 30 of the company’s plants had ISO 14001 certification. ‘The company believes
" it has establlshed adequate reserves to cover,its enwronmenta! expenses and has a werl-establrshed environmental complrance audit
program, ‘which |ncludes a proactive approach to bnnglng its domestrc and mternahonal units to hlgher standards of enwronmental
performance. This program measures performance agalnst Iocal Iaws as well as standards that have been established for aIl units
worldwide. It is difficult to assess the possible effect of comphance wuth future requrrements that dlffer from existing ones. As
prevrously reported the company is unsure of the future flnancral impact to the company that could result from the Unrted States
. Environmental Protectlon Agencys fEPAs) final rules to trghten the National Ambtent Alr CQuality Standards for fine partlculate and

ozone.

The company and certain of its U.S. subsrdlanes have been desrgnated as potentlally responsrble parties by the EPA for site !nvestlga-

tion and remediation at certain sites under the Comprehensive Environmental’ Hesponse Compensatlon and Laabr!rty Act (Superfund) )

The claims for remediation have been asserted against numerous other entmes which are beheved to be frnancrally "solvent and are
_expected to-fulfill their proportionate share of-the obllgatron Management believesiany ultlmate Irablllty with respect to all pending
: actlons will not materially affect the company s results of operatlons cash flows or flnancral position.

Lo- e . Lo ! L

Trade Law Enforcernent
The U.S. government prevrously had e|ght antudumprng ‘duty, ordersin effect covenng balf beanngs from France Germany, Italy, Japan
Singapore and the Unitéd Kingdom, tapered roller beanngs from China and sphencal plarn beanngs from France The company is a
producer of all of these products in the United States. The U.S. govérnment conducted fwe—year sunset reviews on each of these

eight antidumping duty orders in order to determine whether or.not each should remainsin effect. On August-3, 2008, the u.s:-

International Trade Commission continued six of the eight antidumping arders_under reviewﬁ’ Two antidumping orders, relating to
spherical- plain, beanngs from France and.ball bearings from Singapore,’ are no-longer in effect ¢ The other six orders, covenng ball
bearings from France, Germany Italy, Japan and the Unrted Kingdom and tapered roller beanngs from Ch|na quI remain in effect for

an additional five years, when another sunset review. process will take place. "The non-renewal of t_he' two a__ntldumpmg orders is not . |
. expected to have a material adverse impact on the company's revenues or profitability. o ' - st

~ Continued Dumpmg and. Subsrdy Offset Act (CDSOA) . -
The CDSOA prowdes for dlstnbutron of monles collected by U.S, Customs. from antldumplng cases to qualrfylng domestic producers
' where the domestic producers have continued to invest in their technology, equlpment and people. The company reporied. CDSOA
recelpts net of expenses of $87.9 million; $77.1 million and $44, 4 million in 2006 2005 and 2004, respectwely

In September 2002 the WTO ruled that such payments are not ‘consistent wrth |nternat|onal trade rules In February 2006, U.S.
- legislation was enacted that would-end CDSOA distributions for imports covered by antidumping duty orders entering the U.S. after

" September 30! 2007, Instead, any such antidumping duties collected would remain with the U.S Treasury. This Ieglslatron is not

- expected to have a srgnrfrcant effect on potentlal CDSOA distributions in 2007, but would be expected to reduce any drstnbutlons in’

years beyond 2007 with distributions eventually ceasrng . ) ) ) : Yt

In separate cases in July and September 2006, the U.S. Court of. International Trade (CIT) ruled that the procedure for determtnrng g

' _recipients ellglble to receive CDSOA distributions is unconstitutional. The CIT has not ruled en other matters, including any remedy
as‘a result of its* rullng The company expects that these rulings of the CIT will be appeated. The company is unable to determine, at
this time, if these rulings will have a material adverse impact on the company’s financial results,

In addition to the CIT rulings, there are a number of other factors that can affect whether the company receives any CDSOA

- distributions and the amount of such distributions in any year. These factorsinclude, among other things, potential additional changes
in the law, ongoing and potential additional legal chalienges to the law and the administrative operation of the law. Accordingly, the
company cannot reascnably estimate the amount of CDSOA distributions it will receive in future years, if any. ’

Quarterly Dividend ) : P

On February 6, 2007, the company's Board of Dlrectors declared a quarterly cash dwudend of $0.16 per share. The drvrdend erI be pald
on March. 2, 2007 to:'shareholders of record, as of February 18, 2007.. This will be the 339th consecutive dividend paid on the
- common stock of the company.
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FDRWARD - LDDKINE STATEMENTE

. Certaln statements set forth in this document and in the company's 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders (including the company’s
forecasts, beliefs and expectations) that are not historical in nature are “forward-looking” statements within the meaning of the anate
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, ln particular, Management's . Drscussron and AnaIyS|s on‘pages 19 through 39 contaln
numerous forward- Hooking statements The company cautions readers that actual results may differ rmaterially from those expressed
-or |mpl|ed in forwardHooking statements made by or on behalf of the company due to a variety of important-factors, such as:

~a) changes in world economic conditions; in'cluding additional adverse effects from terrorism or hostilities. This inctudes, but'is -

not limited to, political risks assocnated with the potential instability of governments and legal systems in countries in whtch the
" company or its customers conduct busmess and S|gn|f|cant changes in currency valuattons

the effects of fluctuatlons in customer demand on.sales, product mix and prices in the industries in which the company operates

g

| . _ This rncludes the ability of the company to respond to the rapld changes in customer demand, the effects of customer stnkes the

- impact of changes in industrial business cycles and whether conditions of fair trade continue in the U 5. market

¢
|

c competltrve factors including changes in market penetratlon |ncreasmg prlce cornpetmon by existing or new foreign and

—

. domestlc competrtors the rntroductlon of new products by existing and new competttors and new technology that may |mpact the '

way the company s products are sold or distributed;
d

-—

changesin operating costs. .This includes: the effect of changes in the companys manufacturing - processes; changes in costs

associated with varying levéls of operations and manufactunng capacny. hrgher cost and avallabrhty of.raw materials and energy; '

the company s ability to mitigate the impact of fluctuations in raw materials and energy costs ‘and the DpEFaIIDn of the cornpany 's

surcharge mechanlsm changes |n the expected costs associated W|th product warranty C|aImS changes reSuItlng from mventory. -

RS . management and cost reducnon |nrt|atrves and different Ievels of customer demands the effects of unplanned work stoppages;
‘ ,and changes in the cost of labor and beneflts - o

ra

'the success of the company ‘s operating plans, |ncludrng its ab|I|ty to achieve the benefits from its ongoing contlnuous improvement
and rattonallzatton programs; the ability of acqulred companies 10 achieve satisfactory operattng results; and the company's ability
to-maintain appropriate relations with’ umons that represent company associates in-certain Iocatrons in order to avoid dlsruptrons of

"busmess : . S — . ‘ ' T

e

. ) unanticipated I|t|gat|on clatms or assessments "This lncludes but is not I|m|ted to claims or problems related to mtellectual
. property, product liability o wardanty and environmental | issues; ' ' :

7g‘

andlor cause changes in the economy which affect customer demahd and T . -

.

hl those items |dent|f|ed under ltem TA. Fllsk Factors on pages 8 through 12

Addmonal nsks relating to the company’s-business,. the industries in which the company operates or thé companys common stock
may be'described from time to-time in the company’s filings with the SEC. All of thesé risk factors are d|f_f|cult 10 predict, are subject
to material uncertainties that may affect actual results and may be beyond the company’s control.

Iooklng statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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changes in worldwde financial markets, including interest rates to the extent they affect the companys ability to ralse caprtal or- _
increase the company's cost of funds have an impact on the overall performantce ‘of the cornpany s pensian fund rnvestments a

Except as requrred by the federal securities laws, the company undertakes no “obligation 16 publlcly update or revise any forward- ’
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QUANTlTATIVE AND I.T,IUAerATlVE DISBLDELIRES ABDUT MARKET RISK -'

T -

ITEM T7TA.

Changes in short-term interest rates related to. several separate fundrng sources |mpact the companys earnlngs These sources
are borrowrngs under an Asset Securitization, borrowrngs under the $500 mllllon Senror Credit Facrhty, floatrng rate tax-exempt ust

municipal bonds with a weekly reset mode and short-term bank borrowrngs at mternatlonal subsrdlanes The company is also

sensitive to market nsk for changes in mterest rates, as they rnfluence $80" mrllron of debt that is sublect 0 rnterest fate swaps The

‘company has’ rnterest rate’ swaps with a total notional value of $80 million to hedge a portion®of |ts‘ fixed-rate debt . Under the terms.

of thé rnterest rate swaps, the companv receives interest at fixed rates and pays:interest at variable rates! The maturlty dates of the
interest rate swaps are, January 15, 2008 and February 15, 2010. If the market rates for short-térm borrowrngs increased by one-

N percentage ‘point around the globe the rmpact would be an increase in interest expense of $2.3 rnrllron with a correspondrng detrease

’ ‘bonds mterest rates

f in rncome before income taxes of the same amount The amount was determined by consrderrng the impact of hypothetlcal interest

- t
. . . : [

rates on the companys borrowrng Cosi, year end debt balances by category and an estimated impact on the tax-exempt munrcrpal

w . . - : L e
FIuctuatrons in the value of- the U.Ss. dollar compared to forergn ‘currencies, predomrnately in European countrres aiso" |mpact the
companvs earnings. The greatest r|s|< relates io products shlpped between the companys European operatrons and the- Unrted

. States Forelgn currency forward éontracts are used to hedge these intercompany transaotrons "Additionally, hedges are used to cover

-~ third- -party purchases of product and equrpment As of December 31,2006, there were $247 6 million of hedges in place A unrform .

10% weakenrng of the' U.S. dollar against all currencres would have resulted in a charge of $20.4 million for these hedges In addmon
to the dlrect impact of the hedged amounts, changes in exchange rates also affect the volume of sales or forergn currencv sales prrce
as competitors’ products become more or, Iess_ attractive. . Cos. ok

ar,
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#iNANClAL STATEMENTS AND SLIF'F'LEMENTARY'DATA

Year Ended December 31

0

- T - 1
i
W e R

2006 "7 .

" 2004

(Dallars in thousands, except per share data)

" 2005

$ 4:287,197

! Net sales®~ - St S $ 4973365 ° - $ 4823167 _
A COSI of produgts'solds = % ¥ - 3,967,521 . . 7 3823210 3462 821 |
- ' Gross Profit + ". o 1,005,844 |+ ..999957.- - - 824,376 :
T . Sell:ng ‘administrative and general expenses 677,342 7 646,904 - 575,910
' Impalrment and restructunng charges HRIDIE 44881 i 26,003, " 13 538
.o 07, Loss on-divestiturés. : " ea271 o R
X e ‘L, . Operatmg lncome . . , 219,350 ° . 326,960 234 928
et lnterest expense, - .. . " ' . . (49,387) (51,585) (50 834)
! i Interest income : ’ 4,605 \ 3,437 1,897
Recemt of Contlnued Dumplng & Sub5|dy Offset Act (CDSOA) . - . S
‘ “ payment, net of expenses 87,907 77,069 L 44429 .
" .Other expensa - net . _ -18,241) (9,343) (32,329}
' o, Income Before income Taxes $ . 254,234 $ 346,538 $. 197,591
Proviéion for income taxes 777,795 - 112,882 - 63,545
] ".Income from continuing operations $ 176,439 $ 233,656 $ 134,046
R a Income from d|scont|nued operatlons net of income taxes 46,088 L 26,625 1,610 :
Net Income - : - $ 222527 | % 260,281 $ 135656
‘' .. Eamnings Per Share: o ' n '
) _ - Basic earnings per share )
: » Continuing operations $ 1.89 '3 2.55 3 1.49 -
| . Discoritinued operations 0.49 0.29 ©0.02 -
. Net income per share ' $ 2.38 $ ° 284 $ 151
Diluted earnings per share . ' . , '
" Contiriuing operations ) s 1.87 % 2.52 $ 148 -
- Discontinued operations 0.49 .+ 029 © 001
Net income per share $ 2.81 S -1.49

$. -~ 236 -

D
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‘See accomf)énying Note's to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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+ CONSOLIDATED BALANCE

. Il
Dacember 31°

e

+

.ot

L

'

.

-

- S ©2006 " 7T 772005
- {Dollars in thousands} z et
ASSETS . .
Current Assets .
Cash and cash equrva!ents 101 012" | $ 65 417
* Accounts receivable, less allowances: 2006 $36 673; 2005 $37, 473 673 428 ) 657 237 .
, Inventories — nat 952 310 , 900 294
‘ Deferred income taxes 85,576 _ 97712
Deferred charges and, prepard expenses ; N * 11,083 ’ © 17.926
Current assets of discontinued operatlons . ' : ‘ B 162,237 -
! Other current assets T 76811 “ . 82,486
o ' Total Current Assets " . c 1, 900 280 2 983 309 -
Property, Plant and Eqmpment Net e 1601 559 ; Y 7Y
Other Assets =~ . : , : . _
P Goodwnt . T i ' 201,899 . 204,129 °
' Other lntanglble assets - 104,070 -179,043
.-‘Deferred income taxes . . ) . 169,417 . 1,918 ¢
Non-current assets of dlscommued operat:ons - o - 81,206
. Other noncurrent assets . & . . - N s ¢ ... .. 54,308 70,056 . - -
Total Other Assets o A ’ 529,694 ° 536,351
Total Assets _-_'-» Lo } © § 4,031,533 $ 3,893,734
o LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EOUITY Ve T T T T e e T
. Current Llahalmes - . . T . SV, TR
"o Shortterm debt . . Vi : , $ ' 40,217 $ . .63, 437
"+ "Accounts payable and other Ilabllmes N : T s T - ., '506,301 . , 470 986"
‘- " Salaries, wages and beneflts : T, ' 225,409 -+ 364, 028
L + . Income taxes payable - : R :52,768 30,497
S Deferreq income taxes , s, - L ] " 638 ‘4,880
AN “Current Ilabllmes of dlscontlnued operatnons RS T T e TR 41,676
i Current pomon “of long- term debt e S 10,236 , 95,842
;%1 .Total Current Ijlapglltles o o ‘y. ., 835568-. & . 1}071;326
"* Non-Current Liabilities * : ' a ) '}. P .
- Long-term debt ° o . 547390 . - 561 747
- Accrued pension cost - T ) .. 410,438 L 242,414
- ;" . “Accrued, postretlrement benefns CoSt’ o wee. o oF . , 1,682,934 . ", . 488506
e Deferred income taxes. .. N _ T L 6,659 36,556
ST Non~current liabilities of duscontanued operatlons ) ) : e LT - 35 878
e ; Other non:current Ilabllmes " o R ‘ ) - 72,363 ° " 60,240
o Total Non-Current Llabllltles ' T ) L 11,719,784' L nABs3M
. ' Shareholders Equity P T A ) ' 7. o, . o '
v -4Class | and Il Serial Preferred Stock wnhout par value ' o ) . -y
:i -+ ;] Authorized = 10,000,000 shares each class, noneissued o S St T AR -
~ . Common stock without par value: : : R , . ' e . .
- r""Authorrzed 200,000,000 shares -, - . JERE L
- - Issued (including shares in “treasury) (2006 - 94,244,407 shares; [
' 2006 - 93,160,285 shares} : . v
Stated capital 53,064 ° - 53,064
Other paid-in‘capital ; 753,095 - 718,001,
Earnings invested in the business - i 1,217,167 - .. 1,052,871 :
. Accumulated other comprehensive loss ' {544,562 ; '(323 449)
Treasury shares at cost {2006 - 80,005 shares; 2005 - 154,374 shares) ©o(2588) 4, 420)
Total Shareholders’ Equity’ : .. 1,476,180 1,497,067 .
Total Liabilities and Shareholders” Equity " $ 4,031,533 - $3,993,734 -

‘See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GDNSEIL‘IDATE.D STATEMENT aF CAsSH 'FLD-}NS

]

-Year Ended December 31

- 2006 2005 2004
t {Dellars in thousands) . - a
CASH PROVIDED (USED)
Operating Activities
Net income ) $ 222527 $260,281 $ 135 656 .
Net-(income} from dnscé'ntlnued ‘operations (46,088) (26,625) - - (, 610)
Ad|ustments to reconcne income from continuing operauons ' -
to net cash prowded by operating activities: . . Yy
. Depreciation and amortization 196,592 299,656 201,173
_ _lmpair'ment and restructuring charges 15,267 770 10,154
1, Loss on sale of assets : 65,405 211 6,062
-Deferred income tax {benefit) prowsmn (26,395) 81,393 56,859
) Stqck -based compensation expense . 15,594 9,293 - 2775
Changes in ‘operating assets and liabilities: . o
Accounts recelvable L (5,987) (12,399) (102,848) .
B Inventories " (6,743) {137,329) (116,332} -
‘ Other assets 4,098 (22,888) ALY
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (122,326) (50,_533) ' ’(59;201)
Foreign currency translation (gain} loss l19,319) 5,157 - 2‘690 .
. Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities — Continuing Operattons 292,625 316,987 142,485
- Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities — - o, . .
Discontinued Operations - -+~ ~ - R -44,303 - =174 - T2, 956)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Actlwtles . 336928 v .. - 318701. ~.120,529
Investmg Activities , . ‘ i n
Capital expenditures ™ . . (286,093) (217 411) {143,781)
"Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equment ' - 9,207 - 5, 271 -5,223 '
Divestitures 203,316 27838 50,690 - '’
Acquisitions {17.,953) (48,996) "~ (9,359)
Other (2,922) 4,622 . (7.626)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities — Continuing Operations’ {104,445) {234, 676 ) '(104 853) "
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities - Discontinued Opérations {26,423) . (8.126)- 3 72m)
. Net Cash Used by Investing Activities {130,868} (242,802_) {108;581)
Financing Activities o LTt
Cash dividends paid to shareholders {58,231) " {65,148} (46,767)
Net proceeds from ¢ommon share activity 22,963 39,793 17.628
* Accounts receivable securitization financing borrowings - 170,000, 231,500 19$;000
Accounts recewable securitization financing payments (170,000} - . (231 500) {198,000}
‘Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 272,549 " 346,454 ' T 335,068
Payments on Iong~term debt {392,100) K (308, 233) 1328,651)
" -Short-term debt activity — net . 121,891) {79, 160) ' 120,860
" Net Cash Used by Financing Activities . (176,710) (66,294) {1,862)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash © 6,305 (5,155) 12,255
Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents .. 35,655 14,450 . 2230
" Cash and cash souivalents at beginning of year ¢ : . £5,417 50,967 28,626
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 101,072 $ 65417

% 50,967

See accor_nbanyihg Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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_CONSDLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQuUITY .

Common Stock ! Earnings - Aecumulatod .
e o . Other® -." Invested *.Other %7 . . h
. Stated - . , Paid-ln_l in the Comprnhcnslve N Treasury L : '
5 BN Total ‘Capital Capital - Business . ‘Losst © .7 "' Stock - T
{Dollars in thousands, except per share datal: .= - L o ‘ ! SRR B ‘. :‘s-;
Year Ended December 31; 2004, T ’ I REPIEES !
Balance at January 1, 2004 . $1.089.627 § 53064 & 636272 § 758,849 .$ (358382} .5 (176) * - |
Net income , 135,656 135,656 ' e T
Foreign currency translation adwstments . ) . ) i
(net of income tax of $18,766) 105,736 106,736+ .
‘Minimum pension liability adjustment - . BT S 4
- {net of income tax of $18,391) {36,468) ' H (36.468), © * . V]
Change in fair value of derivative ' : ‘u o
financial instruments, net of A 5 7
" reclassifications * (372} {372). T
-Total comprehensive income 204,552 . R N o ‘,:
 Dividends - $0.52 per share (46,767) PR (46,767) .. . X
-Tax beneﬂt from stock comper]sauon : 3,068 3.068
Issuance {net) of 3,100 shares from treasury'“ 11,067) « . 11,045) (22}
lssuance of 1,435, 719 shares from authorized™ ] 20 435 k 120,435 . ) ) .
Balance at December 31, 2004 $1 289,848 $ 53,064 & 658,730 $ 847,738 § (289485 § (198} I
Year Ended December 31, 2005 o ' - o i
" Netincome _260.281 260,281
"+ Foreign currency translation adjustments : : .
‘(net of income tax of $1,720) (49,940 49,9400 S
~Minimum pension liability adjustment - . ) e e ’ ;
 "inet of income tax of $24,716) ' 13,395 _ 13,395 . ' T
" Change in fair value of derivative B - B o
- financial instruments, net of L. g M e
*"- reclassifications 2,582 2582 :: - Loy
Total comprehenswe income, . 226,318 ) ) ) P -;;i N S
» Dividends ~ $0.60 per share’ ST G54y T R (85,148} LT TV o e
.} “Tax berefit trom-stock compensation ' gt v _ © . 8,151 ' DU o
"¢ Issuance inet) of 146,873 shares from treasury” s, 831) o 11,609) ’ W a2y T
Issuance of 2,648,452 shares from authorized® - ' '53,729 53,729 - R . .
_Balance at December 31, 2005 - $1.497.067 ° $ 53064 § 719,001 -$1,062,871-7 $ (323,449) -..$ (4,420}
;. Year Ended Decerﬁﬁér 31 2006 T oo . T
oo Neti income" . 222521 . 222521 S S
S e Foreugn currencv translatlon adjustmerlts : . : ... ",,
lnet of income tax of $386) 56,293 . 56,293 L
Mlnlmum pension: llablllty adlustment A e T T
prior to adoption of SFAS No. 158 P - : , : T
“(net of income tax of $31 723) 56,411 56411 .., N
. Change in fair value of derivative " ’ ’ ' -l
 financial instruments, net of L "
. reclassifications *': _{1,451) (1,451) :
Total comprehenswe income = ° 333,780 -t : ‘ o
Ad|ustment recogmzed upon adoption , P
of SFAS No. 158 {net of income - : - . . 4
tax of $184,453) ' (332,366) ; : (332,366) - © e
_ ledends $0.62 per share . (58,231) . {58,231) ‘ . e
Tax benefit from stock compensatlon . ) 4,526 " 4,526 ' — :
. Issuance {net) of74,369 shares from treasury‘” . 1,829 - . : L. '1.836._ . !
lssuance of 1,084/121 shares from authorized" 29,575 : 29575 " - . S o
Balance at December 31, 2006 . $1,476,180 $ 53,064 ' $ 753,095 -$1217.167 § (544,562) .§'(2,584)
See accompanylng Notes to Consol:dated Flnanmal Statements o - A
™ Share activity was in conjunction with employee penefit and stock option plans o . s :
THE TIMKEN COMPANY- L 45« 0 :
' it . .;-i'- A 13‘
L - e , S e




NOTES TO-CONSOLIDATED FINANC:IAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

L s

1 SIGNIF'ICANT ACCDL.INTING FDLIEIES

Pnncrples of Consohdatron The consolldated financial statements |nciude the accounts and operatlons of The kaen Company -
and its subsidiaries (the company ). All sugnlflcant intercompany ‘accounts and transactlons are eliminated upon consolldatlon

. Investrnents in affiliated companies aré accounted for by the equity method; except when they qualify as variable interest.entities in

whlch case the' investments- are’ consolidated in accordance with FASB Interpretatlon No. 46 (revused December 2003} (FIN 46)
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of Accountlng Research Bulletin No, 51."

Revenue Recogniﬁon: The company recognizes revenue when title passes to the customer. This is FOB shipping point except for

- certain exported goods and certain foreign entities, which are FOB destination. Selling prices are fixed based on purchase orders or

.46  THE TIMKEN COMPANY

contractual arrangements. Shipping and handling costs are included in cost of products sold in tha Consolidated Statement of Income.

) CaSh Equivalents : The company consuders all highly liquid investments with a maturity-of three months or less when purchased )
, to be cash equlvalents

A!Iowance for Doubtful Accounts The company has recorded-an allowance for ‘doubtful’ accounts, wh|ch represents an

estimate of the losses expected from the accounts receivable portfolio, to reduce accounts receivable to their net realizable value. The
allowance was based upon historical trends’in collections and write-offs, management’s judgment of the probablhty of collectlng
accounts and management'’s evaluation of business risk. The company extends credit to customers satlsfylng pre-defined 'credit
crltena The company believes |t has limited concentratlon of credlt nsk due to the diversity of ItS custorner hase. s

) .

Inventones Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market with 45% valued by the last-in, firstout {(LIFQ) method and the -
remaining 55% valued by first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. If all inventories had been valued at FIFO, inventories would have been

$200,900.and $189, 000 greater at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectlvely The components of inventories are as follows: -

- R December 312 .
2006 2005
" Inventories: . ] ; - : Lo .
- Manufacturing.supplies = : - . ' $ 84,398 $ 71,840 -
Work in process and raw matérials P ' ) . ' 390,133 - 395,306 -
Finished products’ . _ ‘ ' ‘ _ 472,779 433,148
Total InVentories o a7 : - $952,310 - ° . $3900294

The company has elected to ¢change its method of |nventory valuation for certaln domestic mventones effective January 1 2007 ‘from
FIFO to LIFO As a result all domestic |nventorles will be valued using the LIFQ valuation method begmnmg in; 2007

2 . . -
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- Goodwrll The company tests goodwull and |ndef|n|te-l|ved mtangrble assets for mnparrment at ledst annually.. The | company engages

‘ Romama as bemg ina h:ghlyrnflat:onary country ‘ S .

Note 1 Srgnlflcant Accounting Policies {continued} , . b . e C o T .

\ . S -
Property, Plant and Equipment; ‘Property, plant and equupment is valued at cost less: accumulated depreciation. Maintenance
and repairs are charged o expense as-incurred. Provision for depreciation rs computed pnncrpally by the straight- I|ne method based
upon the estimated usefu! lives of the assets. The useful lives are approxmately 36 years "for burldmgs five to seven years for com-
puter software and three to 20 years for machinery and equrpment Depreciation expense was $185,896, $199,902 and $191,1729n
20086, 2005 and 2004, respectlvely The components of property, plant’and equment are as follows:.

El i ] -

DecembeIr 31

o T S 2006 L 2008 - -
’ Property Plant and Equipment: . . L o L
Land and buildings : o o v B 1 sza 542 s 613 326.
Machinery and equipment C . - s N 3,036,266 1 T 2828267
Subtotal R . ‘ : - - 3,664,808 3441593 |
Less allowances for depreciation . . _ (2,063,249) " (1,967.519)
Property, Plant and Equipment - net . . ' . $ 1,601,559 ' § 1,474,074 .-

Impa:rment of long-llved assets is recognized when events or changes in circumstances |nd|cate that the carryrng amount of the asset or

' related group of assets may not be recoverable. If the expected future undrscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the
asset an impairment-loss is recognized at that time to reduce the asset 10 the Iower of |ts falr value or its net book value i in. accordance-
o wrth Statement of Fmancral Accountlng Standards (SFAS) No 144 Accountlng for the Impalrment or Drsposal of Long Lrved Assets

w l -~

an independent valuation f|rm and performs its annual impairment test during the fourth quarter, after the annual forecasting process.is

completed Furthermore goodwrll is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying.
value’ may not be recoverable in accordance with SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” S e ~

. 'f -
Income Taxes: Deferred income taxes are provrded for the ternporary différences between the financial reportlng ba5|s and tax basrs
of the company's assets and liabilities. -Valuation allowances are recorded when and to the extent the company determmes |t |s more
likely than not that all or a portlon of its deferred tax assets “will not be realized.’ T v o o

Forelgn Currency Trans!atron Assets and Ilabllltles of subsrdtarles other than those Iocated in hlghly |nflat|onary countrres are

_ translated at the rate of exchange in effect on the balance sheet date incorme and expenses are translated at, the average rates of

exchange prevailing.during the year. The related translation® adjustments are reflected as'a separate component of accumulated ‘other.

comprehensive loss. Gains and losses” ‘resulting trom foreign’ currency transactlons and the translation of frnancral statements of -

subsidiaries in hrghly inflaticnary countries-are included in the Censolidated Statement of Income The company recorded a foreign’
currendy exchange.loss of $5,354 in 2006, a gain of $7, 031 in"2005 and'a loss, of $7.739 in- 2004, Dunng 2004, the Américan Institute
of Centified Public Accountants SEC Regulations Committée’s Internauonal Practices Task Force concluded that Romania 'should come
off highly mflat:onary statiis no later than October 1, 2004. Effectwe October 1, 2004 the company no Ionger accounted for kaen

i
¥
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g The effect on ‘net income and earnrngs per share as if the company had applied the fair value recognmon provisions of SFAS No. 123 10

‘NOTES' TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

{Dollars in thousands, except per share data) * : 2 : .
Note 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Stock-Based Compensatron On January 1, 2006, the company adopted the provusrons of SFAS No. 123(R), "Share-Based .
Payment,” and elected to use the modufred prospective transition method. - The modified. _prospective transition method requires that
compensatlon cost be recognrzed in the frnancral statements for all stock option awards granted after the date of adoption and for aII :

I unvested stock option awards granted prior to the date of adoptron In.accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), prior period amounts were

not restated Prior to the adoption'of SFAS No. 123{R), the comipany utilized the intrinsic-value based method of accounting "undér APB .

e Opinion No. 28, "Accountrng for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations, and adopted the disclosure requrrements of
SFAS No 123 Accountlng for Stock Based Compensatron '

s

. .
4

"

all outstandrng and nonvested stock optron awards is as follows for the years ended December 31:

.. B 3 . © 2005 2004

Net income, as reported T ' i o '$ 260, 281 .0 $135656
Add: Stock based employee compensatlon expense net of related taxes ) h 5 955 . 1 884 .
- Deduct: Stock-based employee compensatron expense determ:ned under fair value . - .
- based methods for all awards, net of rélated taxes e T 7 {10,042) "~ (6,751)
Pro forma net-income T : o ) - . L $ 256,194. . $.130,789 .
Earnings pér share: - Ve _ S : L o
Basic —as reported . - R . - $2.84 $1:51
Basic — pro forma . o . : . $2.80 %146
_ Diluted - as reported’ g o : .- $281 . $1.49
" Diluted - pro forma - - . _ $2.77 '$1.44

Earnirtg's Per Share: Eamings per share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted- airerage number of common shares

_ -outstandlng durrng the year, Earnings per share - assuming dilution are computed by dwrdrng net income by, the wenghted average -
. number of common shares outstandrng adjusted for the drlutrve |mpact of potentral common shargs for share based compensatuon

: Derrvanve !nstruments The cornpany accounts for its denvatrve instruments in accerdance with SFAS No. 133 "Accountrng for y
1

Denvatrve Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended. The company recognizes all derlvatrves on the balance sheet at faJr value.

. Denvatwes that are not desrgnated as hedges must be adlusted 1o fair value through earnrngs If the derrvatrve is desrgnated and.

qualifies as a hedge dependrng on the nature-of the hedge, changes in the fart value of the derrvatrves are either offset against the
change in fair value of the hedged assets liabilities,-or frrm commitments through earnings or recoghized in other comprehensive loss

o until the hedged item is recognrzed in earnlngs The company 's holdings of forward forergn exchange . comracts have been deemed -
derivatives pursuant to the criteria. establrshed in SFAS No. 133, of which the company has designated certain of those derivatives as -«
:.'hedges The critical terms, such as the notional amount and timing of the fonNard ‘contract and forecasted transaction, coincide,"
: 'resultlng in no sugnrfrcant hedge rneffectrveness In 2004, the company entered into interest rate ‘swaps to hedge a portion of its

fixed-rate debt. The critical terms, such as principal and notional amounts and debt maturrty and swap termination dates, coincide,

. resulting.in no hedge meffectrveness These instruments qualrfy as fair-value hedges Accordingly, the gain or loss on both the '

hedgmg instrument and the hedged itemn attributable to the hedged risk are recognized currently in earnings.

.-
.
a
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Note .1 Significant Accounting~Policies (continued)
Recent!y Adopted Accounting Pronouncemenl‘s : : : v

In May 2005, the Flnanmal Accountmg Standards Board {FASB) issued SFAS No. 154, "Accountlng Changes and Error Correctlons
which changes the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting pnncsple This statement also ¢ carrles forward the gutdance

from APB No. 20 regarding the correction of an error and changes in accounting estimates. This statement requires’ retrospectwe '
appllcatlon to ‘prior-period financial statements of chahgés in accounting pnnclple unless it is- |mpract|cal to detéerming either the

period- specrfrc or cumulative effects of the change. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accountmg changes made in fiscal years beglnnung
_after December 15 20085, The company adopted the prowsnons of SFAS No. 154 eflectlve January 1,:2006. The adetIOl’l of SFAS No: .

1

154 did not have an |mpact on the company’s results of operatlons or financial condltlon - . : *f._

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 1568, "Employers Accountlng for Deflned Beneflt Pensmn and Other Postretlrement
Plans-an amendment of FASB Statéments No 87, 88, 106 and 132(Hl SFAS No. 158 reqmres a company to 8l recognlze in. |ts state—
ment of financial posmon an asset fora plan s over funded status ora llablht\/ for a plan s under funded status, {b) measure a plan 5"
. assets and its obllgatlons that determtne its funded status as of the end of the employer s fiscal year and (c} recogmze changes in the
‘ funded status of a defined postretlrement plan in the year in whlch the changes oceur (reported ‘in ‘comprehensive |ncomel The
requurement to recognize the funded status of a beneflt plan and the disclosure: requnrements were adopted by the company effective
December 31, 2006 and reduced shareholders’ equity by $332,366. Refer to Note 13 - Retirement and Postretlrement Beneflt Plans

¥ N N ~

for addltlonal dlscussmn on the lmpact of adopting SFAS No.’ 158 R < .

In September 2006 the SEC staff issued Staff Accountlng Bulletln (SAB) 108 Consudermg the Effects of Prior Year Mlsstatements
when Ouantn‘ymg Mlsstatements in Current Year Financial Statements 'SAB 108 requwes that publlc companles utlllze a “dual-
approach to assessmg the quantttatnve effects of fmancnal mlSStatementS This dual approach includes both an income statement

. focused assessment and a balance sheet focused assessment. The gutdance in SAB 108 was adopted by the company effective ]

-+ December 31, 20086, and the guidance did not have a material effect on the company's results of operations or financial condition.
N - R e

Recently lssued Accountrng Pronouncements ]
In July 2006 the FASB |ssued FIN 48, ”Acc0unt|ng for Uncertamty in Income Taxes, " which clanfles the accountmg for uncertain tax
posmons recognlzed in an entlty s, f|nanC|a| statements in_accordance with SFAS No. 109, "Accountlng for lncome Taxes " FlN 43
prescnbes requnements and other guidance for fmanc1al statement recognltnon and measurement of posltlons taken or expected to
‘be taken on income tax returns. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 186, 2006. The cumulative effect of
. adopting FIN 48 ‘will be recorded as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the penod of adoption. The company
wull adopt FIN 48’ as'of January 1, 2007. Management is currently in the procéss of evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on'the company 's
Consolldated Fmancnal Statements.

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 establlshes a framework for measur-
ing fair value that i is based on the assumptions market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability and estabhshes a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the |nformat|on to develop those assumptions. Additionally, the standard expands the drsclosures about
falr value measurements. to include separately dlsclosmg the. fair value measurements of assets or liabilities W|th|n each level of
the falr value hlerarchy 'SFAS No. 157 is ‘effective for fuscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The company is currently

evaluatmg the impact. of adoptnng SFAS No 157 on the company's results of operations and financial condition.
[

Use of Estlmates The preparatlon “of flnanmal statements in conformlty W|th U.s. generally accepted accounttng pl’lnCIpleS requires

management to make estlmates and assumptlons that affect the amounts reported in the fmancral statements and accompanymg

notes These estlmates and assumptlons are rewewed and updated regularly to reflect recent experlence

R -

Reclassrﬁcatlons Certaln amounts reported in the 2005 and 2004 Consolldated Fmancaal Statements have been recla55|f|ed to conform -

. to:the 2006 presentation.- P : oL . ' v

. [l . - -

S
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- Acquisitions o . : .
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4

NDTES TD DEINSDLIDATED FINANBIAL STATEMENTS

- . . . 1

(Dollars in thousands except per share data) e Y a

‘2 AEQUISITIDNE AND' _DIVESTITLIRES
v - Ay

a N

[

“ The company purchased the assets of Turbo Engines, Inc., a provider of aircraft engrne overhaul and repair.services, in December 2006
for. $13 500, .including acquisition costs The company has preliminarily allocated the purchase price 1o assets of $14,983, including
© $4, 487 of amortizable intangible assets. and liabilities of $1,483... The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets
acquured was recorded as goodwill in the amount of $1,9823. The company also purchased the assets of Turbo Technologies, inc., a
provlder of aircraft engine overhaul and repair services, in July 2006 for $4,453, tncludrng acquisition costs.” The company acquired net

assets of $4 300 |nclud|ng $1, 288 of amortrzable rntangrble assets The company assumed no Ilabrlltles The excess of the purchase .

pnce over the fair value of the net assets acqurred was recorded as goodwill in the amount of $153. The results of the operatrons of
Turbo Engrnes and Turbo' Technologles are_included in the company 'S Consohdated Statement of Income for the penods subsequent
to the effectrve date of acqursutton Pro forma results of the operatrons are not presented because the effect of the acqursrtrons are
.not srgnrfrcant ' - _

The company purchased the stock of Beanng Inspectron Inc. (Bn) a provider of bearing inspection, recondltlonrng and engrneenng
. services dunng ‘October 2005 for $42, 367, including acquisition costs. The company acquired net assets of $36,339, including $27, 150

" of amortizable’ |ntang|ble assets. The company also assumed liabilities with a fair value of $9 315. The excess of the, purchase pnce

over the fair value of the net assets acqurred was recorded as goodwill in the amount of $1 5, 283 The results of the operatlons of Bii

are included i in the company’s Consolidated Statement of Income for the perrods subsequent to the effectrve date of the acqu:srtron
Pro forrna results of the operations aré not presented because the effect of the acquisition was not srgnlflcant

' Dunng 2004, the company finalized several acquisitions. The total cost of these acquisitions amounted to $8 425..The purchase pnce
- was allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired, based on their fair values at the dates of acqursrtron The fair value of the assets '

acqutred was $5,513 in 2004 and the fair value of the liabilities assumed was $815 The excess of the purchase prrce over the fair -

value of the net assets acqurred was allocated to goodwrll The company ‘s Consolrdated Statement of Income rncludes the results of

operatlons of the .acquired busrnesses for the periods subsequent to the effectrve date of the acqursntlons Pro forma results of the
s |

operatrons have not been presented because the effect of these acqursrtrons was not srgnlflcant :

Drvestrtures T .

Cn, December 2006, the company comp!eted the divestiture of its subsrdrary Latrobe Steel. Latrobe Steel is a leadrng global producer

and’ dlStrlbUtOl’ of high-quality, vacuum melted _specialty steels and alloys. This business was part of the. Steel Group for segment
reportrng purposes. The foIEowrng results of operations for thrs business have been treated as dlsconttnued operatrons for all penods

presented .

2006 ) 2005 2004
Net sales o . . P $ 328,181.- . $ 345,267 $ 226, 474
Earnings before’i income taxes o . . 53510 t 44,008 s 2, 188
Net income - : . - 33239 . 26625.. . . .1610°
Gain on divestiture, net of tax ) ’ 12,849 L - I

, The garn on drvestature in 2006 was net of Jtax of §8, 355 As of December 31 2006 there were no assets or Irabrlrtres remarnrng from )

accounts receivable, net, $98, 074 of rnventory and $72,970 of property, plant and equrpment ‘net. The !rabrlrtres of dtscontrnued

*and benefrts and $29,543 of accrued pension and postretirement beneflt costs. Refer to Note 13 = Retrrement and Postretrrement
Benefit Plans for drscussmn of pensron and postretirement benefrt oblrgatrons that were rétained by Latrobe Steel and those that are
the responsrbrlrty of the company after the sale.

In Decermnber 2006 the company completed the divestiture of its automotive steerrng busmess This business was part of the
Automotive Group. The divestiture of,the automotive steering business did not qualrfy for drscontrnued operations because it was not-

a component of an’entity as defrned by SFAS No. 144. The company recognized a pretax loss on divestiture of $54,300, and the Ioss s
* is reflected in Loss on divestitures in the Consoltdated Statement of Income. In June 2006,_ th‘e company completed the divestiture . -

- of its Timken Precision Components — Europe business. This business was part of the Steel Group. The company recoghized a

pretax loss on divestiture of $3,971, and the loss was reflected in'Loss on divestitures in the’Consolidated Staternent of Income The
‘results of operations and net assets of the divested businesses were immaterial to the: consotidated: results’ of operations - ‘and

pt

financial position of the company. .

50 THE TIMKEN COMPANY *

- the divestiture of Latrobe Steel 'The assets of drscontrnued operatlons as of December 31, 2005 prlmarrly conS|sted of $54, 546 of )

: operatrons as of December31, 2005 prlrnanly consisted of $30,458 of accountis payable and other habrlrtres $11,236 of salaries, wages LV
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3 EARNINGS F’ER .SHARE - - o o - AR

" The followrng table sets: forth the reconciliation of the numerator and the denominator of basnc earnings per share and drluted

v earnrngs per share for the years ended December 31:- : ) .
2006 2005 - - 2004 TR
‘ . Numerator: . - E - 3 . S : LT b
: - Income from contlnurng operatrons for basic earnings per share . ., . . e . -t BT '
. - and diluted earnings per share ) . . %, 176,433 § ..233656". §- 134,046' e
it . . e . i ¥ oo L A LN .
G Denomrnator + - e . e T e s e
: ) Welghted—ave@ge number of shares outstandlng basm . .. - 9_3,325,729' cor 91,533,242 4 89 875 650 ‘ T
7, 7. [Effect of dilutive Securities: ¢ . - R R !,_’_“_ T " L e
ERRR O .Stock options and. awards — based on the treasury stock method - - 988 987 T . ...1.004,287 . - 883,921 R .
AT Werghted-average number of shares outstanding, . T .' T . - S sp'.{ o
S assuming dilution of stock options and awards* . e 94,294,716—' L 92:637.529 . ©.90.759.571" L
" Basic earnings per share from continuing operations =« ~ - 8189 . %2585 .t § 149 ¢
Drluted earmngs per share from continuing operations . o, . $ 1'87 . $ 252 % 148 ¢
“ TS e - EN L e
The exercrse prrces for certaln stock options that the company has awarded exceed the average market prrce-of the companys
- ARt
common stock Such stock optlons are’ antrdllutlve and were not' mcluded in the computatlon of diluted earnlngs per share? The ant:dl- . N
Iutlve stock options outstandlng were 737, 122 1,327,056 and 2,464,025 dunng 20086,.2005 and 2004; respectlvely . f-‘ i '
Under the performance unit component of: the companys Iong-term mcentwe plan the Compensatron Commrttee of the Board of l;'_
Drrectors can elect 1o make paymenis that become due in the form of cash or shares of- the company 's common stock. Hefer to Note . ._' '
9- Stock Compensatron Plans for addmonal drscussron Perforrnance units gramed if fully earned would represent 394 068 shares ’ n
_ of the companys common stock at December 31 2006 These performance unrts ‘have not been mcluded in the calculatlon of Y
] . i L .
dilistive securrtres ‘ . . . . oo . K Co
- . - .. L fe e e - R S I . Lo - .
N st .l«. } B PR . N - ] R tr i, e o Ea . . . :
a4 AI:I'.'.‘IJMULATED OTHER CEIMF'REHENEIVE ‘Lasg Y Cd Ty
, Accumulated other comprehenswe Ioss consusts of the followrng for the years ended December 31 r i S W " e '.. S i,
‘---' T LY T HA 7 ’. 'Al‘i
g e L e .. a2006. .. 2005 .. . ,2004 VA
. . — - - - R '.
. " Foréign currencv translatron adjustment net of ta§< " {' S v $ 106 631 P T 50 338' S $ 100 278 oo b
" Pension and postretirerment benefits ad|ustments net of tax S . I650 310] . (374 355} : (387,750) «
- Farr Value of open féreign currency cash flow hedges, net oftax .- . - = (883 -. ;568 - . . {2.014)
: s Accumulated.Other Comprehensive Loss |, -, ) _§ (544,562) _ $ (323,449}. _  $(289,486)

'-'In' 2006 the company recorded non-cash crédits' of $5,293 on dissolution-of inactive subsidiaries, "v'vhich related primarily to the _ '
transfer of cumu[atlve fareign currency translation losses to the Consolidated Statement of Income which were included in other )

- expense < net. A TN S . SR

N " In 2004, the company Tecorded a non-cash charge of $16 186 on dlssoiutron that related prlmarrly to the transfer of cumulatrve forergn
; '. currency translation losses to the Consolidated Statement of Income; WhICh was |ncIuded in other expense — net.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS oo S

s

(Dollars in thousands except per share data)
S-FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS - - . -
Shon:lt'erm"debt at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was as follows: - ' .

. ‘ ) | .. 2006 2005

.o > - - Fy
Variable-rate lines of credit for certain of“the company's European and Asian subsidiaries ;
W|th various banks with |nterest rates ranglng from 3.32% 10 11.5% and 2.65% to 7. 70% Sl 4
at Dacember 31, 2006 and 2005, respectlvely L o . § 27,000 % '2_3,884‘-
Variable-rate Ohio Water. Development Authorltv revenue bonds, for PEL : . R IR
{3.59% at Decefriber 31,2008) - - “© ST I CoeT .. 23,000
: _leed-rate mortgage for PEL with an interest rate of 9.00% ’ . o A TR
Fixed-raté ‘short-term loans of an Asian subsidiary with interest rates rangung from. o C R ‘
'6.76% to 6.84% at December 31, 2006 , . R 10,005 - -
Other . . : : . L3212 | 5062
Short-term debt - : L - . §. 40,217 $ 63,437

In Januaw'ZOOGT'tné company repaid, in full, the $23.000 balance outstan_ding of the revénue bonds held by PEL Technologies LLC

{PELJ, an equity investment of the company. In June 20086; the cornpany continued to liguidate the remaining assets of PEL yvith"land.

and buiidings exchanged for the 'fixed-rate mortgage. . Refer to Note 12 — Equity Investments for a further discussion of PEL.

The lines of credrt for certain of the company s Européan and A51an subsidiaries provrde for borrowmgs up to $217,109. At December

. 31,2008, the company had borrowrngs outstandirig of $27 000, whrch reduced the avallabrllty under these facilities to $190 109.-

On December 30, 2005 the company entered into a new $2OO 000 Accounts Recewable Secuntrzatron Fmancrng Agreement (2005;
Asset Securitization), replacing the $125 000 Asset Securitization Flnancmg Agreement that had been in place since’ 2002 The 2005

* Asset Securmzatnon prowded for borrowrngs up to $200,000, llmlted to certaln borrowing, base calculatlons and was, secured by

certain domestlc trade recelvables of the company On December 30 2006 the company entered into a $200 000 Accounts
Recewable Secuntization Flnancmg Agreement (2006 Asset Secuntuzatlon) replacmg ‘the 2005 Asset Securitization. Under the terms

of the 2006 Asset Securitization, the company sells, on an ongoing basis, certain domestic trade recelvables to Timken Recewablesn T
Corporatlon a wholly-owned consohdated subsrdlary that in turn uses the trade recelvables to-secure the borrowrngs which are

funded through a vehicle that issues commermal paper in the short-term market. Under the 2006 Asset Securitization, the company

also has the ability to issue letters of credrt As of December 31, 2006; 2005 and 2004, there were no amounts outstanding under the

receivables securitization facmty As of December 31, 2006, the company had issued letters of credit totaling $16,658; which reduced

the availability under the 2006 Asset .Securitization to $183,342: . Any amounts cutstanding under -this facrlrty would-
- be reported on the compeny's Consolidated Balance Sheet in short-term debt~ The yield on the commercial paper, which |s the
‘commercial paper rate:plus_program fees, is considered a financing cost and is included in interest expense on the Consolldated

Statement of Income This rate was 5.84%, 4.58% and 2.57%, at December 31 2006, 2005 and 2004, -respectively.

v
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Note 5 Financing Arrangements (continued) ] . . - S

"Long-term debt at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was as follows; .

"7 2006 "7 2005
‘ Frxed rate Medium-Term Notes, Serres A; due at various dates through - I o o
May 2028, with interest rates rangrng from 6.20% 1o 7.76% o $ 191,601 $ 286,474
Varlable rate State of Ohio Air Quality and Water’ Deve!opment ) i .
Revenue Refunding Bonds, maturlng on November 1, 2025 . -
.« -{3.63% at December 31, 2006} .- . 21,700 , 21,700
Variable-rate State of Ohio Pollution Control Revenue Refundlng ' ! )
Bonds, maturing on June 1, 2033 (3.63% at December 31, 2006} - 12,000 17,000
Varrable-rate State of Ohio Water Development Revenue <
Refunding Bonds, maturrng on May 1, 2007 (3.63% at December 31 2006) ' 8,000 . © 18,000
Variable-rate State of Oh|o Water Development Authority Solid Waste e i o .
Revenue Bonds, maturing on July 1, 2032 ~ - , ‘ C o - ~ 24,000
" Variable-rate Unsecured Canadian Note, maturing on December 22,2010 - o o L
(5.98% at December 31, 2006) =~ ' : : 49,593 49,759
Fixed-rate Unsecured Notes, maturing on February 15, 2010 with an |nterest rate of 5 75% - s 247,773 247,651
_Variable- rate’ credit facility with US Bank for Advanced Green Components, LLC, maturing on - T - :
July 18, 2008 (6.28% at December 31, 2006) ] 12,240 : -
Other : ' ' 9,719 3,005
: ’ o 557,626 657,589
Less current maturities : ) ‘ 10,236 © 95,842
- Long-term debt - . ' . % 547, 390 -« $ 561,747

The maturities of Iong-term debt for the five years subsequent to December 31, 2006 are as follows 2007—$10 236; 2008-
$32 467 2009—-$‘| 483 2010-%$298,652; and 2011—$1 272, - R :

Interest paid was approxrmately $51,600 in 2006, $52,000 in 2005 and $52 000 in'2004. This differs from interest expense due to0
timing of payments-and interest caprtalrzed of $3,281 in 2008, $620 in 2005 and $541 in 2004. The weighted-average mterest rate on’
short-term debt during the year was 4.6% i in 2006, 3.9% in 2005 and 3.1% m 2004: The weighted- average interest rate on short-term .
debt outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was 5.8% and 4. 9% respectlvely .

The- company has a $500 000 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement {Senior Credit Facility) that matures on June 30, 2010. At
December 31 ’2006 the company had no outstandlng borrowmgs under the $500,000 Senror Credrt Facility and had |ssued letters.of
credit under thrs facrluty totaling $33,788, which reduced the availability | under the Senior Credit Facility 10 $466,212.. Under the Senior
Credit Facility,-the company has two flnancral covenants: a consolidated Ieverage ratio and 8 censolidated interest coverage ratio. At
Decerber 31; 2008, .the company was in-full compliance with the covenants under the Senior Credit Facrlrty and its other debt
- Bgreements. '

e ot

in December 2[505 the company entered into.a 57,800 Canadian Dollar unsecured 6an in Canada. The principal batance of the-loan
ls payable in full on’ December 22, 2010. The interest rate is variable based on the Canadtan LIBOR. rate and interest payments are -

S due quarterly.

In August 2006, the company repald in fuII the $24,000 balance outstandrng under the variable-rate State of Ohio Water Development

Authority Solid Waste Revenue Bonds: - ﬁ‘ ’ s L

Advanced Green Components LLC (AGC) |s a joint ‘venture of the' company formerly accounted for using the equity method The
company is the guarantor of $6 120 of AGC s "credit facrlrty Effective September 30 2006 the company consolrdated AGC and its
outstandlng debt Refer to Note 12— Equrty Investments for addmonal drscussron P ‘ ) -

I

The company and its subsrdtarres Iease a varrety of real property and equrpment Rent expense under operanng Ieases amounted to
$31 027 $22, 799 and $17.486 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. At December 31, 2006, future mrmmum lease payments for
noncancelable operatlng leases ‘totaled $133,823 and” are payable as follows: 2007—$28 664; 2008—$22 086 2009—$16 851
2010—$13 301; 2011-$10,803; and $42,118 thereafter. * .
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“In November 2006, the company announced plans to vacate its Torrrngton Connecticut offrce complex. In 2006, the company recorded

' related benefrt costs related to, other company initiatives.

" b4 ‘ THE TIMKEN .COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

6 IMF'AIRMENT AND RESTRUETURINE CHAREES

Impalrment and restructunng charges are comprised of the followrng for the years ended December 31 L e

o w R browo Frene T
e P O ’ ! 2006 r 2005 .,2004 ¥
Imparrment charges o <. . % 15267 $ 770 ' § _8.554 Y
" Severance: expense and related bénefit costs : - 25837 ' 20284 14,369 -
Exit costs - - 3777- : °- -6039 *:+ . 715
~Total = . Tt N e “$ 44,881 © - § 26,0937 "% 13,538
. Industrial . P - . -

In May 2004, the company’ announced plans to rationalize the company's three bearrng plants in Canton, Ohlo within the Industrlal
Group On September 15, 2005 .the company reached a new four-year agreement with the United Steelworkers of America, WhICh

’ went |nto effect on September 26,2005, when the prror contract expired. Thrs rationalization |n|t|at|ve |s expected 1o deliver annual

pretax savrngs of, approxrmately $25 000 through streamlining operations and workforce reductlons wrth pretax costs of approxrmately
$35 000 to $40,000 over the next three years. - . Ce

In 2006 the company recorded $om of impairment charges and $571 of exit costs assocrated with the Industnal Group s ratlonalrza-
tlon plans. In 2005, the company recorded $770 of impairment charges and environmental exit costs of $2,239 associated wrth the
Industrral Group s ratronalrzatlon plans Including rationalization costs recorded in cost of products sold and sellrng admmrstratrve and
general expenses the Industrlal Group has incurred cumulatlve pretax costs of approxrmately $22 026 as of December 31 2006 for
these restructurrng plans . i . S .. o ) . " !

. - PR . o ‘. - L

$1 501 of severance and related benefit costs and $160 of impairment charges associated with the Industrial Group o f'; Wi

ln addition; the company recorded $1,356 in environmental exit costs‘in 2006 related to a former plant in Columbus Ohio and another

S 8147 in severance and related: benefits related to other company |n|t|at|ves PR . A

F - . . M
Automotrve A C ' -

"n July 2005, the company dlsclosed plans for its Automative Group ta restructure its business and improve performance. These plans.- N
' |ncluded the closure of a manufacturmg facility in.Clinton, South Carclina and englneerlng facilities in Torrrngton Connectrcut and »o

Norcross Georgra “In February 2006 the company announced additional ‘plans: 1o rationalize. producticn: capacrty at lts Vierzon, France
bearing manufacturlng facility in response to changes in-customer demand. These restructunng efforts are targeted.to deliver ;
" annual pretax savrngs of approxrmately, $40,000 by 2008, with,expected net workforce reductions of"apprommately 400. to 500*

n

" (Dollars in thousands, except per. share data) ° : G

H
rd
B

posrtrons and pretax costs of approximately $80,000 to $90, 000.- . . o © T gy

In September 2006, the company ‘announced further planned reductions in its workforce of approximately 700 associates.- These
additional plans are targeted to deliver annual pretax savrngs of approximately $35,000 by 2008, wrth expected pretax costs of

2

approxrmately $25,000. S _ - T o kf

In 2008, the company. recorded $16,602 of severance and related benefit costs,"$1, 558 of exit costs and $1,620 of impairment charges
associated with the Automotive Group's restructuring plans. In 2005 the company recorded approximately $20 284 of severance and

- related benefrt costs and $2,800 of exit costs as a result’of envuronmental charges related to the closure of a manufactunng facllrty in’

Clrnton South Carollna and admtnlstratlve facrlrtres in Torrrngton Connectrcut and Norcross Georgla lncludrng ratronalrzatron

! expenses recorded in cost of products sold and selltng, admrn:stratrve and general expenses the Automotrve Group has mcurred

cumulatlve pretax costs of approxrmately $60 558 as of December 31 2006 for these restructurlng plans. *

4_ g 1 'l'

In 2006 the company recorded an addmonal $654 of severance and related benefit costs and $241 of |mpa|rment charges for the
Autornotrve Group related 1o the announced plans 10 vacate its Torrrngton campus office complex and another $143 of severance: and

P

ln addition, the company recorded rmparrment charges, of 11, 915 in 2006 representing the wrrte off of goodwull for the Automotlve
i
Group in accordance with SFAS No. 142, Refer to Note '8 — Goodwill and Other Intangible ‘Assets for a further drscussron of goodwrll

|mpa|rment charges. : . »
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The roltforward of restructuring accruals is as follows for the years ended December 31:

'The restructunng accrual for 2006 2005 and 2004 was included in accounts payable and other I:abnlmes in the Consohdated Balance

LI

Note 8 Impairment and Restructuring Charges {continued) .- ©

Steel . , -

In October 2008, the company announced its intention to exit during 2007 its European seamless steel tube manufactl#nng operations
located in Desford England The company recorded approximately $6,890 of severance and related beneflt costs in 2006 related to
this action. In addition, the company recorded an impairment charge and removal costs of $652 related to the wnte-down of property,
plant and equipment at one of the Steel Group's facilities. : :

Impairment and restructurrng charges by segment are as foilows:
Year ended December 31, 2008: .

- Industrial Automotive . Steel . Total
Impairment charges ) . B RS $ 13,776 s 360 $ 15,267
Severance expense and related beneﬂt costs 1648 17, 299 ! 6,890 ' 25,837
[Exit costs ' 1,927 1,558 ° 292 * 3,777
Total , $ 4,706 - :-$'32,633 ., $.7542 = $44.3881
Year ended December 31, 2005: . . : ’ e o .
Industrial Automotive Steel-; ~*  Total
Impairment charges 3 770 $ - 5 ) ;S 770
Severance expense and related benefit costs - 20,284 - 20,284
Exit costs 2,238 2,800 - 5,039
Total $ 3,009 $ 23,084 3 - $ 26,093
Year ended December 31, 2004:
Industrial Automotive ~ Steel Total
Impairment charges . g - $ - $ 8454 . 3 8,454
Severance expense and related benefit costs 2652 1.717 - 4,369
Exit costs 715 : - - . 715
" Total ~ T $ 3,367 $ 1.7117 § B.454 .- $13,538

2006 2005 2004

Beginning balance, JanuaryI : ' $ 18,143 $ 41186 § 4358 ] .
Expense .t - 29,614 - 17,638, .. . 5084
Payments . {15,772) . 3,611} {5,326)

Ending balance, December 31 "% 31,985 $ 18,143 ° $ 4 116 '

e

Sheet. The restructunng accrual at December 31 2005 excludes costs related to curtailment of pension and postretirement beneflt
plans. The majority of the restructurlng accrual at December 31, 2006 wilt be paid by the end of 2007,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-(Dollars in thousands, except per share data}

7 EDNTINGENI‘.‘:IES

The company and certain of its U.S. subsuiaanes have been designated as potentially responsuble parties (PRPs} by the United States

Environmental Protection Agency for site investigation and remediation under the Comprehensive Environmental Response,..
Compensation and Liability Act {Superfund) with respect to certain sites. ‘The claims for remediation have been asserted against

numerous other entities, which are beligved to be financially solvent and are expected to fulflll their proportlonate share of. the
obhgatlon in addition, the company is subject to various lawsuits, claims and proceedmgs whuch arise in the ordinary course of |ts
business. The company accrues costs associated with environmental and legal matters when they become probable and reasonably
estimable. Accruals are established based on the estimated undiscounted cash flows to settle the obligations and are not reduiced by

any potential recovenes from insurance or other mdemmflcatlon claims. Management believes that any ultimate liability with respect '

" to these actions, in excess of amounts provided, will not matenally affect the company's Consclidated Financial Statements.

The company is also the guarantor of debt for AGC, an equity mvestment of the company. The company guarantees $6,120 of AGC s
outstandmg long- -term debt of $12,240 with US Bank. In case of default by AGC, the company has agreed to pay the outstanding °
balance, pursuant to the guarantee, due as of the date of default The debt-matures on July 18, 2008. Refer to Note 12 ~ Equity

“Investmants for. addmonal discussion,

- . LTI

Product Warrantres '

The company provides warranty policies on certain of its products. The company accrues liabilities under warranty policies based upon
specrflc claims and a review of historical warranty claim experience in accordance with SFAS No. 5. The company records and
accounts for its warranty reserve based on specific claim incidents. Should the company become aware of a-specific potentlal
warranty claim, a specific charge is recorded and accounted for accordingly. Adjustments aré made quarterly to the reserves as claim
.data and historical experience change. The following is a rollforward of the warranty reserves for 2006 and 2005:

_ . . . . - 2006 - 2005

Beginn'ing balance,’ January 1 ) s 910 $ 45688
" Expense ' .20,024 . 707

Payments {911) . (4,485}
Ending balance, December 31 $ 20,023 $ - 910 :

The product vlvarranty charge for 2006 related primarily 1o a single production line at an individual plant that occurred during a limited

period. The product warranty accrual for 2006 and 2005 was included in accounts payable and other liabilities in the Consolidated .

Balance Sheet.

" .

8 GooODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

' ‘S'EAS No..142 yequires that goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets be tested for impairment at least'annually. The CO{T\DE}ny_ !

engages an independent valuation firm and performs its annual impairment test during the fourth quarter after the annual forecasting

process is completed. tn 2006, the company concluded that the entire amount of goodwill for its Automotive Group was impaired,'
The company recorded a pretax impairment loss of $11,915, which was reported in impairment and restructuring charges. The com-

pany. has determined that there were no further impairments as of December 31, 2006. There was no impairment in 2005 or. 2004,
Changes in the carrying value of goodwill are as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2006:

"Beginning R Ending

Balance Acquisitions Impairment Other . Balance
Goodwill: ' -
Industrial . $202,058 $ 2,076 $ - §(2,235) $201,899
" Automotive ’ 2,071 - {11,915} 9,844 .-
Total '$204,129 $ 2076 S {11.915) $ 7,609 $201,899

“Other” for 2006 mc!udes $9,612 of goodwill related to the consohdatlon of AGC, an equity mvestment of the company. Refer to Note

12 - Equity 1nve5tment5 for additional discussion. The remaining portion of “Other” primarily includes foreign currency translation
adjustments. The purchase price allocations are preliminary for acquisitions completed in 2006, because the company is waiting for
final valuation reports, and may be subsequently adjusted.
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.Note B Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets {continued) . . e e vl

Year ended December 31, 2005: . DLt
' Beginning . : . Ending .

Balance ‘Acquisitions .+ Impairment ' ! Other - Balance .
Goodwill: ' . : I ey :
Industrial $187,066 $ 16689 . % - -. §(1,697) -$202,058
_Automotive oo 22233 o e BN R ST Y (162) 2,071
Total . . $189,299,° . $ 16688 ..% - . '8°(1,859) |, $204,129

“Other" for-2005 primarily includes fore|gn currency translation adlustments T

- . . - ]

The followmg table displays other intangible assets as of December 31

- T R 2006 - - - 2006 .- . .
P Gross ) * Net - Gross - ! ' Net S
* Carrying Accumulated . Carrying Carrying Accumulated , Carrying Ty

Amount Amortization Amount Amount “Amortization Amount

Intangible assets subject to amortization: ' N ’ ) -

Industrial: a : - : e e oo ‘-
Customer relationships - $ 31,773 $ 3762 'S 28011 ° $ 27339 § 2333 § -25006 '
Engineering drawings . . 2,000 - 1,667 . 333 . 2000 - . 1,349 . 651
Know-how transfer 1162 © + .54 - . . B18 - 1,065 M2 - - B53
Patents 1,742 . 765 977 1328 . 487 ., . 861
Technology use ’ 5,373 1,430 3.943 4,823 787 4.036
Tradernarks ' 1,734 1,346 388 1,720 - 931 798
Unpatented technology - . 1,370 2,903 T 8,867 7,370 2127 . 5,243
PMA licenses . - 3500 : 337, . 3,163 2212+ 168 2,044

© Automotive: . . . C . . P s - e ;
: Cu'_sxomer relationships 21,960 4,255 17,705 - 21,960 3,157 18,803
Engineering drawings - 3,000 2500 °_'500. ' 3000 . 2,024 976 . - i
Land use rights . ¥ 7122 199 - 5126  “Ye7e2t . cauett. 5151 1

. Patents. - - © 19513 - 7873 - ‘i:l,5;l0 - 1899? - 5,771 -~ 13,226 .:
~Technology use- ae et . BESRRSERNEE b ¥ 3 11,621-4p- l‘r.‘;;4f‘l_96 + - 5736~ -+ - 0936 - 4800 S
Trademarks 2178 . 1655° :- 7 523 . . 2225 - 1280-_.",: CN9As e,

. Unpatented téchnology . . 11055 . 4385 . 6700 1,085 +MI"Fq80 " '7865‘- Ul

. ‘Steel trademarks 864 313 . . 551 ‘gogq 233" ) et v -

: . ; $126,063 $37,322 $ 88,741 $118495 " $ 26,776 ° $91,719.. °°

Intangible assets not subject to amortization: - . : C R e ‘
Goodwill . $201,899 § - $201,899  $208129 $ . - $204,129 e
Intangible pension asset ' ' - - = 712015 o 72016 -,
Automotive land use rights - a8 . - 148 k<< T < < :
Industrial license agreements 15,181 - 15181 ‘15176 - 15,176 L

: . ' $217,228 ve ot e $217,228 . $201.453 - $291,453
Total intangible assets ’ $ 343,29 $ 37,322 $305,969 ©$409,948 $.26,776 $383,172 £

Amortization expense for intangible assets ‘was approximately $10,600 and $9, 800 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and, -
2005, respecnvely, and is estlmated to be approximately $9,200 annually for the next five years. The intangible assets subject to
amortization have useful lives rang:ng from 2 to 20 years with a weighted-average useful life of 12 years. " The intangible assets

_sub|ect to amortlzatlon acqwred in 2006 have not been f|nalnzed because the company-is waiting for final valuation reports.

Preliminarily, $5,775 has been allocated to :ntanglble assets, subject 1o amortization, for acquisitions completed in. 2006. PO
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. A ’ . co Weighted
' L Weighted Average Aggregate
, Number of Average’ Remaining “Instrinsic
o v Shares E_'xarcise Price Contractual Tarm Value {000's)-
Outstanding - beginfing of year * =~ - o 5,439,913 ~  $2278 ’
. Granted’ 817,150 30.94
Exercised : : (906,259} 21.12 5
Canceled or expired {81,696) " 30.45
Qutstanding — end of year ) 5,269,108 $24.21 . - 6 years $31,755 °
Optionsexercisable : I 3,410,233 $23.07 - . 5 years ' $24,479

E

'NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in thousands except per share data) ]

9 ST'I:II:K CCIMF'ENSATIDN PLANS

Under the company's long-term incentive plan, shares of common stock have been made avanable to grant at the discretion-of the
"Compensation Committee of the Board of Dlrectors to officers and key associates in the form of stock option awards. Stock optlon
awards typically have a ten-year.term and generally vest in 25% increments annually beginning on the first anniversary of the date of
grant. In addition to stock optlon awards the. company has granted restricted.shares under the.long-term incentive plan.. Restncted
shares typlcally vestin 25% |ncrements annually begrnnmg on the first year anmversary of the date of grant and have hrstorlcally been
expensed over the vesting period. . . .

'.'- R : : Do

On January 1, 2006, the- company adopted the provisions of, SFAS No. 123(R) and elected to use the modrfred prospective transition

method The modified prospectlve transition method requires that compensation cost be recogmzed in the financial statements " ;
for allllstock option awards granted after the date of adoption and for ali unyested stock option awards granted prior to the date of -

adoption. In accordance with SFAS No. '123(8) prior period amounts were not restated.  Additionally, the company. elected to
ca|culate its initial pool of excess tax. benefits using the simplified alternative approach described in FASB Staff Position No.. FAS
123(R) 3, “Transition Electron-Related to Accounting -for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards.” Prior to the: adoption of
" SFAS No. 123(R} the company utilized the.intrinsic-value based method of accounting under APB Opinion No. 28, “Accounting for

Stock Issued to- Employees,” and related mterpretatlons and adopted the dlsclosure requirements of SFAS No, 123, Account:ng for

Stock Based Compensatuon e

Prior to January 1, 2006, no stock-based compensation expense was recognized for stock option awards under the intrinsic-value
_based method The adoption of SFAS No. .123(R} reduced operatnng income before | mcome taxes for 2006 by $6,000, and reduced
net mcome for-2006 by $3,800+($.04 per basic and diluted share). The effect'on net income and earnings per share as if the.company

had applled the fair value recognmon prows:ons of SFAS 123(R} 10 prier years is included in Note 1 - Significant Accountmg Pohcues

The fair value of sugmfrcant stock optlon awards granted dunng 2006 and 2005 was esnmated at the date of grant usmg a Black-'

R S LR MYl e T A Y 21 T R

4

WAL

saffiy

Scholes optlon-pncmg method wrth the' followmg assumptlons ¢
,-.\- : I S _ '_ Y T ,-. S 2006 . . 2008
Assumptlons T e B k o L
DA Welghted average fair value per optnon v i ot o o+ § 959 8 797,
Risk-freg intereist rate ;_;, _ ' 4.53% CA412%
" Dividend yield o - LT r ‘ } 2.14% ©.3.28%
-“Expected stock volatility -~ - - ) © 0.348 0.360 -
Expected life — years : . _ 5 -

Hustoncal mformauon was the pnmary basis for the selection of the expected dividend yield, expected volatlhty and the expected lives ‘
of the options. The dividend yleld ‘was revised in 2006 from five years quarterly dlwdends to the last dividend prror to the grant ,

compared to the trarlrng 12 months’ dauy stock prices. The risk-free |nterest rate was based upon yields of U.5. zero coupon issues

and U.S. Treasury issues, W|th a term equal to the expected life of the optlon being valued for 2006 and 2005, respectwely Effective
January 1. 2006 forfenures were estlmated at 2%.

.

| -

A summary of option actlwty as of December 31, 2006 and changes during the year then ended is presented below:
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A summary of restncted share and deferred share actrvrty for the year ended December 31, 2006 is as follows: ¢ : -;l -

Note 9 Stock Compensatron Plans (contrnued) . . ~ ;

e o -

' The company has also issued performance based nonqualrfred stock options that vest contingent upon the company 's common shares

reachrng specrfred fair market values. No performance—based nonqualrfred stock options were awarded in 2006 and 2005, respecfrvely

The number of performance-based nonqualrfred stock options awarded in 2004 was 25,000. Compensatron expense under these plans ’
. was zero, $3.500 and zero in 2008, 2005 and 2004, respectrvely .t

Exercrse prices for optrons outstanding as of December 31, 2006 range from $15.02 t0 $19.56, $21. 99 10 $26.44 and $28.30 t0 $33 75

The number of options outstanding at December 31, 2006, which correspond with these ranges, are 1,736,016, 2,226,055 and
1,307,037, respectrvely The number of optrons exercisable at December 31, 2006, which correspond to these ranges are 1 ,449,005,
1,448, 629 and 512, 599 respectrvely The weighted-average remarnrng contractual life of these opfrons is six years.

As of December 31,2008, a total of 895 898 deferred shares deferred drvrdend credits, restrrcted shares and drrector common shares
have been awarded and are not vested. The company drstrrbuted 261 877 146 250 and 73 025 shares in 2006, 2005 and 2004 respec-

tlvely, asa result of these awards The shares awarded in 2006 2005 and 2004 totaled 433 861, 413, 267 and 3n, 650 respectrvely :

The company ofters.a performance unit component under its long term incentive plan to certain employees in whrch awards are
earned based on company performance measured by two metrics over a three-year performance period. The Compensatron

: Commrttee of the Board of Directors can elect to ‘make payments that become due in the form of cash or shares of the company’ ‘s
common stock. A total of 47,153, 38,788 and 34,398 performance unrts were granted in 2006 2005 and 2004, respectlvefy Since the '

|ncept|on of the pfan 30, 824 performance units were cancelled. Each performance unrt has a cash value of $100 . e

The number of shares avaitable for future grants for all plans at December 31, 2006 is 3,299,542

The tota! intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $11,000; $22,600 and’

$8,700, respectively. Net cash proceeds from the exercise of stock options were $18.700, $39,800 and $17,600, respectively. Income
tax benefits were $3 900, $8,200 and $3,100 for the years ended Decernber 31, 20086, 2005 and 20D4, respectively.

4

' - ' © o Number * " Weighted-Average
v - ’ . , of Shares ~ Grant Date Fair Value L
Qutstanding — beginning-of year . B 755,290 - S e $24.46
Granted . 433,861 i 3119
Vested {261,877} 25.49
Canceled or expired - b . (31,376) P 27.38
- Outstandrng end of year : . r 895'898 $27.32

' .The company recognrzed compensatron expense of $9 600, $5 800 and $2 900 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and

2004, respectively, relating to restricted shares and detferred: shares L L U . ,

-

As of December 31, 2006, the company had unrecognuzed compensation expense of $23,200, before taxes,.related to stock option-

awards restricted shares and deferred shares. The unrecognrzed compensatron expense is expected to be recognrzed over a total

" werghted average period of two years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in thousands, except per share data) . . -

10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As a result of its worldwide operating activities, the company is exposed to changes in foreign. currency exchange rates; Wthh

affect its results of operations and financial condition. The company and certain subsidiaries enter into forward exchange contracts v

to manage exposure to currency rate fluctuations, primarily related to anticipated purchases of inventory and equipment.. ‘.At
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the company had forward foreign exchange contracts, all having maturities of less than eighteen
months, with notional amounts of $247, 586 and $238,378, respectively, and fair values of a $4,099 liability and a $2,691 asset, respec-
tively. The forward foreign exchange contracts were entered into primarily by the companys domestic entity to manage Euro
exposures relative to the U.S. dollar and by its European subsndaarles to manage U.S. dollar exposures. For derivative instruments
that qualify for hedge accounting, unreahzed gains and losses are deferred and included in accurnulated other comprehenswe mcome

" These deferred gains and losses are reciassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss and recognized in earnings when the

future transactions occur. For derivative instruments-that do not qualify for hedge accounting, gains and losses are recognized
immediately in earnings. : - . ' : SR

During 2004, the company entered into intarest rate swaps with a total notional value of $80,000 to hedge a portlon of its flxed rate
debt. "Under the terms of the mterest rate swaps, the company receives interest at fixed rates and pays interest ‘at variable rates,
‘The maturity dates of the interest rate swaps are January 15, 2008 and February 15, 2010. The fair value of these swaps was $2.626
and $2,875 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and was included in other non-current liabilities. - The critical terms, such
as principal and notional amounts and debt maturity and swap termination dates, coincide resulting in no hedge ineffectiveness:
These instruments are designated and qualify as fair value hedges. Accordingly, the gain or loss on both the hedging instrument and
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized currently in earnings.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, commercial paper, short-term borrowings and accounts payable
are a reasonable estimate of their tair value due to the shortterm nature of these instruments. The fair value of the company's
Iong -term fixed-rate debt, based on quoted market prices, was $440,700 and $525, 000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectlvely
The carrying value of this debt at such dates was $450,200 and $538,000, respectlvely

~ir

"1 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The company performs research and development under company-funded programs and under contracts with the federal governme'nt
and others. Expenditures committed to research and development amounted to $67,900, $60,100 and $56,700 for 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. Of these amounts, $8,000, $7, 200 and $6,700, respectlveiy, were funded by others. Expenditures may fluctuate
from year to year depending on special projects and needs.

T#
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12 EQUITY INVESTMENTS. . : . - N

- e -7 . i

The balances related to investments accounted for under the equity method are reported in other non-current assets on the

Consaolidated Balance Sheet, which were approx|mately $12 144 and $19, 900 at December 31 2008 and 2005 respectlvely In 20086,
the company sold a portion of Colinx, LLC due to the addmon of another company to the: ;ornt venture. ln 2005, the company sold a

' 10|nt venture, NRB Beanngs based in Ind|a

Equtty mvestments are reviewed for |mpatrment when circumstances (such as lower than—expected flnanclai performance or change

"in strategrc d|rect|on) lndlcate that the carrylng value of the investment may not be recoverable. |f |mpa|rment does exist, the equity
investment.is wntten down 10 its tair, value With a correspending charge to the Consohdated Statement of income. No |mpatrments .

were recorded durlng 2006 relatlng to the company ‘s equity mvestments
PEL

ot : "

' Dunng 2000, the company s Steel Group mvested ina |0|nt venture PEL to commeruahze a propnetary,technology that converts iron
unrts into engmeered iron oxides for use in ptgments coatings and abraswes In the fourth quarter of 2003, the company concluded .

its investment in.PEL was |mpa|red due to the following indicators of |mpattment htstory of negative cash flow and-losses; 2004

operating plan with continued losses and negative cash flow and the continued requued support from the company or another party .
In the fourth quarter of 2003, the company recorded a non cash rmparrment Ioss of $45 700, whrch was reported in other expense -

net-on the Consolidated Statemerit of incorné. L R . ' Co

The company concluded that PEL was a vanable intere’st enttty and that the company was the’ prlmary beneftcrary |n accordance with
FIN 46 “Consoltdatlon of Vanable Interest Entities, an mterpretatlon of Accountrng Research Bulletrn No 51 the company consol|~'
“dated PEL effectwe March 31,72004. The adoptlon of FIN 46 resulted in A charge representtng the cumulatlve effect of change in

accountung pnncuple of $948, which was reported in other expense net on the Consolrdated Statement of Income In addmon the

. adoptlon of FIN 46" |ncreased the Consolidated Balance Sheet as follows current assets by $1, 659 property plant and equrpment by

EAe’vancec:f Green Components o | .

. $1‘l 333; short term debt by $11,561; accounts payable and other llabtlmes by $659; and other non-current habtlrttes by $1, 720."All of
- %PELs assets were collateral forits: oblrgatlons Except for PELs mdebtedness for whrch the company was a guarantor PELs credrtors

had no recourse to the general credit of the company

) In the f|rst quarter. of 2006 plans were. fmalrzed to liguidate the assets of PEL, and the company recorded a related gain-of approxt-

mately $3,549:- In. January 2006,-the company repaid, in full, the $23,000 balance’ outstanding of the revenug bonds held by PEL.
June 2006,-the company continued.to liquidate PEL. with land and buildings exchanged and the buyer’s assumption of the ftxed—rate
mortgage, which resulted ina galn of $2, 787

< .. -

Dunng 2002, the company's Automotive Group formed a jaint venture, AGC with Sanyo Spectal Steel Co., Ltd. lSanyo) and Showa
Setko Co., Ltd. (Showa) AGC is engaged in the business of converting steel to machined rings for tapered bearings and other

related products.- The company has biéen accounting for its investment in AGC under the equity method since AGC's mcephon :
Durlng the.third quarter of 2006, AGC reflnanced its long-term debt of $12, :240. The company guaranteed half of this obligation. The
. company concluded the ‘refinancing represented a reconsideration event to evaluate whether AGC wasa variable interest entity under

.FIN .46 (revrsed December 2003). The company concluded that AGC was a variable interest entity and the company was

the primary beneficiary. Therefore, the company consolrdated AGC, effective September 30, 2006. As of September 30, 2006
the net assets of AGC were $9,011, prtmanly consrstrng of the foIIowrng inventory of $5 697; property plant and equtpment of
$27 199; goodwill of $9.612; short- term and long-term debt of $20,271;.and other non-current liabilities of $7,365. Thé $9 612 of
goodwill was subsequently written-off as part of the annual test for impairment in accordance with SFAS No 142, All of AGC's assets

. are collateral for.its obligations. 'Except for*AGC's indebtedness for which the company is a guarantor, AGC's creditors have no

recourse 1o the general credit of the company.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘{Dollars in thousands, except per.share data)

13 RETIREMENT AND F'DETRETIREMENT BENEFIT F'LANS

The company sponsors defined contribution rettrement and savings plans coverlng substantially all assomates in the United States and.
certain salaried associates at non-U.S. locations. The gompany contrtbutes shares of the company’s common stock 1o certain plans based
on formulas established in the respective plan agreements. At December 31, 2006, the plans had 11,129,438 shares of the company"s i
common stock with a fair value of $324,757. Company contributions to the plans, including performance sharing, amounted to $28,074

" in 2006, $25 801 in 2005 and $22,801 in 2004, The company paid dwrdends totaling $6,947 in 2008, $7,224 i in 2005 and 36,467 in 2004,

to plans holdmg shares of the company’s cormmon stock. :

L e o A N i A e

PR T T

The company and rts subsidiaries sponsor several unfunded postretlrement plans that provide ‘health care and life msurance benefrts
for eligible retirees and dependents Depending on retlrement date and assomate classification, certain health care plans contarn
contributions and cost—sharmg features such as deductibles and coinsurance. The remaining health care- and life insurance plans are
noncontnbutory

The ‘company and its subsidiaries. sponsor a number of deflned benefit pensron plans, whrch cover ehgrble associates. The cash
contnbut:ons for the company’s defined beneflt pensaon plans were $264 756 and $238 089 in, 2006 and 2005 respectwely

On December 31,2008, the company adopted the recognition and dlsclosure prov:srons of SFAS.No. 158, . SFAS No. 158 requrred the
company to recognize the funded status (i.e., the dufference between the company’s fair value.of plan assets and the pro|ected beneflt
oblrgatlonsl of its defined benefit pensnon and postretrrement beneftt plans (collectlvely the postretirement benefit plans) in the December 1
31, 2006 Consohdated Balance Sheet, with a correspondlng adjustment to accumulated other comprehenswe income, net of tax. The - !
adjustment to accumulated other comprehenswe mcome at adopuon represents the net unrecognlzed actuarial losses, unrecogmzed pnor

servrce costs and unrecognized transmon obllgatton remarnrng from the initia! adoption ‘of SFAS No. 87 and SFAS No. 106 all of whrch

were prevtously netied against the plans funded status in the company 5 Consolldated Balance Sheet in accordance with the provrsnons :
of SFAS No. 87 and SFAS No. 108. These amounts will be subsequently recognized as net pertodlc benefit cost in accordance with the '
company’s historical accounting policy for amortizing these amounts. In addition, actuarial gains and losses’ ‘that arise in subsequent

periods and are not recognized as net periodic benefit cost in the same periods will be recognized as a component of other comprehen-

sive income. Those amounts will be subsequently recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost on the same basis as the

amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income at adoption of SFAS'No. 158. - ‘

The incremental effects of adopting the provisions of SFAS No. 158 on the company’s Consolldated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2006
are presented in the following table. The addption of SFAS No. 158 had no effect on the company’s Consolidatéd Staterient of Incoma
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectwely, and it will not affect the company s operating results in subsequent penods

4

At December 31, 2006

' Prior to Effect of " As Reported |
- - Adopting - -Adopting  at December -
. 'Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans . - .SFAS No. 158 SFAS No. 158 31, 2006 .
Assets: R . - : o e ‘
Other intangible assets . ' , $ 166,642 $ (62572) $ 104,070 .
Other non-current assets 50,579 3,729 . 54,308 °
Deferred income taxes 70,540 184,453 254,993
Total assets ' $3,905,923 $ 125610 $4,031533
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity: ' : ) . o
- Pension and postretirement benefit liabilities ‘ * § 860,805 $ 457,976 $1,318,781
Accumulated other comprehensive income {212,196) {332,366} (544,562)
* Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $3,905923 ' $ 125,616 $4,031,533-

In the table presented above, deferred income taxes represent current and non-current deferred income tax assets on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2006. In addition, pension and postretirement benefit liabilities represent salaries,
wages and benefits, accrued pension cost and accrued postretirement benefits costs on the Consolidated Balance Sheet-as of
December 31, 2006. ‘ -
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-2006 2005 . 2006 . . 2005
Change in benefit obligation. ) Lol v e
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 2,771,673  $2,586,146 $ .821,246 $ 820 595
Service cost 45414 40,049 5277 5,501
Interest cost 154992 152,265 43099 45, 847
. Amendments - * 879 4,730 T 25,717
" “Actuarial fosses (gains) 2 .53,405 - 188,962 (44,285) (32,662)

* Associate contributions 1,010 993 T -
Internaticnal plan exchange rate ¢change 48,607 . (38,588): . {11) 117
Acquisition (dlvestltures) (503} - - -
Curtailment (gam) Ioss {740} 729 - B8.141
Benefitstpaid {166,552) - . (163,613)- . (51,653} -.(52,010)

" Settlements ) -{106,703) - . (34,442) - -
‘Benefit obligation at end-of year - 295 2,801,482 -$2771673 $ 740,231, § B21,246°
Change in plan assets”. : o -

.Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year "$ 2,104,175 - $1,840,866

Actual return on plan assets - -, : . . P 255,290 210,234

Associate contributions ' 1,010 © 993

Company contributions 264,756 . 238,089 .

International plan exchange rate change 32,385 (24,216) -

Benefits.paid {166,552} {161,791)

" Settlements (101,679} 2 - ‘
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 2,389,385 $2,104175 $ - % -
Funded status at end of year - $ (412,097) . § (667,498) $ (740,231} $(821,246)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 812,353 254,307

* Unrecognized net asset at transition dates, net of amortization - {500}

Unrecognized prior service cost (benefit) 88,059 (2,361} .
~*+Net amounts recognized $ 232,414 $ (569,300)

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Noncurrent assets $ 3729 $ 775967 $ - 3 -9

Current liabitities {5,388} © {160,183)" {57.297) (65,529)*

Noncurrent liabilities (410,438) {246,692} (682,934) (513,771)* -

Accumulated other comprehensive income - 561 :694 o - -

: ‘ $ (412,097) $ 232,414 $ {740,231) $(569,300)

Amounts recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income

Net actuarial loss - $ 730,234 N/A @ $ 188,742 - Nf

Net prior service cost (credit) 72,157 N/A @ (420} N/A @

Net transition obligation {asset) (333} N/A® - N/

Accumulated other cormprehensive income $ 802,058 - N/A® $ 188,322 N{A @

Note 13 Retirement and Pestre{irement Benefit Plans (continued)' 4

The following tables set forth the change in benefit obllgatlon change in plan assets, funded statu 1
Consolidated Balance Sheet of the defined benefit pension and postretnrement benefxts as of. December 31, 2006 and 2005 P :
- L 3 b

FEE

Defined Benef’t v
. Pension Plans

!-fi ; ;o

P L x NG A;‘i

/... Postretirement Plans:

N -, sﬂ

e

s and amounts recogmzed in-the

: "" Plan assets are primarily invested in listed stocks and bonds and cash equivalents.

‘o Effective November 30, 2008, the cornpany sold its Latrobe Steel subsidiary. As part of the sale, Latrobe Steel retained responsibil-

ity for the pension and postretirement.benefit abligations with respect to current and retired employees covered by collective
bargaining agreements. Amounts in 2005 for defined benefit pension plans and pdstret%rement plans include $5,580 of non-current
assets, $3,521 of current liabilities and $29,543 of non-current liabilities related to Latrobe Steel, which are included in discontinued
operations on their respective line of the Consolidated Balance Sheet. In addition, accumulated other comprehensive income

includes $9,964 related to these plans retained by Latrobe Steel.

effective for the year ended December 31, 2006,

THE TIMKEN COMPANY

e These disclosures are not applicable to 2005 defined benefit pension plans and postretirement plans due to SFAS No.158 being
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) $2 108,000; and thie fair value of plan asséts was $l 840,000 at December 31, 2006. L . ) N

NCITES TI:I CEINSDLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in thousands except per share datal .

* Note 13 Retirement and Postretrrement Benefit Plans lcontlnued)

as of. December 31 .20086.

- Certain of the company’s international postretirement benefit plans have an overfunded status as of December 31, 2006. As a result

these amounts are included in. other non-current assets on the. Consolidated Balance Sheet. The current portion of accrued pension
cost, which is mcluded in salanes wages and benefns on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, was $5, 388 and £160,200 at December
31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, The current portion of accrued postretirement benefit cost, which i is :ncluded in salaries, wages and
.benefits on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, was $57,297 and $55,500 at Decemnber 31, 2006 and 2005, respectlvely In 2006, the
current portion of accrued pension cost and accrued postretirement benefit cost-relates 1o unfunded plans and represents the
-actuarial present value of expected payments related to the plans to be made over the next 12 months. v - )

In 2006 investment performance and company contributions increased the company’s pension fund asset values.

The accurnulated benefit obligations at December 31, 2006 exceeded the.market value of plan assets for the majority of the

" Defined benefit pensron plans in the United States represent 84% of the benefit obligation and 86% of the fair value of plan assets -

company's plans.: For these plans, the projected benefit obligation was $2,209,000; the accumulated beneht oblrgatlon was

For 2007 expense, the company's d:scount rate willbe-5.875%, the same discount rate used for calculating 2006 éxpense

r

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005 the companys "defined benefit pension plans did not hold a material amount of shares of the
company’s common stock.

B4 THE TIMKEN COMPANY
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Note 13 Retnrement and Postretlrement Benefit Plans {(continued) -

The following table summarizes the assumptions used by the consulting actuary and the related benefit cost information for the
years ended December 31:

. '

Pension Benefits *.'Postratirement Benefits '

‘ 2006 . 2005 2004 . 2006 2005 - 2004
Assumptions . B - SR T . .
Discount rate 5875%. 5875% ' 6.00% 5.875% 5.875% 6.0%
Future compensanon assurnptron 3% to 4% 3% 4% 3% 4% ’
Expected long-term return on plan assets - 8.75% - 875%  8.75%

Cornponents of net penod:c benefit cost - . . ’
Service cost $ 45414 $ 40,048 § 37,112 $ 5277 % 5501 §$ 5751
Interest cost ‘ 154,992 152,265 145,880 44,099 45,847 48,807

"+ Expected return on plan assets {173,437} - -(153,493) (146,199 ' oL h - -
Amortization of prior service cost - - 12,399 12,513 15,137 ‘11,941)  “(4.446)'  (4.683)
Recognized net actuarial loss + 56,779 49,902 3307 - 12,238 16,275 17.628
Cost of SFAS 88 events -~ - 9,473 - 900 c - {25,400) 7,649 -
Amortization of transition asset ‘ : T 018 - {108) - i - L : -

Net periodic benefit cost . $105,449 .$102,018 $ 84,899 $ 34,273 $70, 826 $67,503

Other changes in plan assets and benefit’ S oo
- obligations recognized in other
comprehensive income', . ‘ _ ) . . -
AQCI at December 31, 2005 ' $561,694 N/A "N/A ] - N/A N/A
Net lossfigain) . - NfA N/A . - o NA N/A
Recognition of prior sefvice cost/(credit) - N/A N/A - N/A N/A
Recognition of loss/{gain) ‘ . e
Decrease prior to adoption of SFAS No. 158 {88,133} . . NA - N/ - L. N/A N/A
+ - Increase dueito adoption of SFAS No.!158 328,497 . . N/A N/A . 188,322 N/A N/A
oL Total recognrzed in other comprehensrve . . s, o
" . intome at Decémber’ 31 2006 : $802, 058 CONIA N/A suis 322 N'/A" _p ';N/A

- . e pem - = M D — A — - P C o -

“ These disclosures are not applrcable to 2005 and 2004 defined benefrt pension plans and postretlrement plans due to SFAS No 158
berng effective for the vear ended December 31, 20086. -

‘"The net periodic benefit cost includes $4,272, $3,521 and $4,471 in 20086, 2005 and 2004 respectrvely for defined beneflt pensron
and postretlrement plans retained by Latrobe Steel classrhed as discontinued operatrons !

The estrmated net Ioss pnor service cost and _net transition (asset)/oblrgatron for the defined beneflt pen5|on plans that will be
amortlzed from accumulated other comprehenswe income into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are $47 988, $11,301
and $(162), respecttvely

o, . %
The estrmated net toss and prior serv:ce credit for the postretirement plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehen-
-srve rncorne into-net periodic beneflt cost over the next fiscal year are $10,306 and $(1,877), respectrve1y L

As a result of the companys sale of its Latrobe Steel subsidiary, Latrobe Stee! retained responsrbrlsty for the pensron and postretlre-

ment benefit obligations W|th respect to current and retired employees covered by collective bargaining agreements. As a result, the
company recognlzed a total settlement and curtarlment pretax loss of $9 383 for the pension benefit obligations. In addmon the
company recognrzed a curtarlr'nent gam of $34 442 less a portion of an unrecognlzed loss of $9 042, resulting in-one- t|rne |ncome of

Y $25.400 assocrated with the postretirement benefit obligations retained by Latrobe Steel “Pension and postretrrement benefrt_

, obl:gatlons for the’ Latrobe Steel salaried associates and renrees “will continue to be the companys responsibility. -

o~ Tt ST Ty



NOTES TO CDNSDLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - v S
(Dollarsmthousands -except per share data) - . ) s
Note 13 Retlrement and.Postretirement Benefit Plans (contrnued)

.For measurement purposes, the company assumed a werghted-average annual rate of increase in the per capita cost (health care cost

trend rate) for medical benefits of 8.0% for 2007, declining gradually to 5.0% in 2010 and thereafter; and 1 1.25% for 2007; dechnlng

) gradually to 5.0% in 2014 and thereafter for prescription drug beneflts e

The assumed health care cost trend rate may have a sugnrflcant effect on the amounts reported. A one'percenfege point increase in"

the assumed health care cost trend rate would increase the 2006 total service and interest cost components by $1,222 and would
* increase the postrenrement benefit obhganon by $20,876. A one percentage point decrease would provide correspondmg reducnons
of $1,179 and $19,971, respectlvely . i

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization: Act of 2003 {the Medicare Act) was signed into law on\December
© 8, 2003. The Medicare Act provides for prescription drug benefits under Medicare Part D and contains a subsidy to plan sponsors
. who provide "actuarially equivalent” prescription plans.” In May 2604, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 1062,

" Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related 10 the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003"

(FSP 106-2). During 2005, the _company’s actuery determined that the prescription drug -benefit 'provided by the company's
' postrenrement plan is. consu:!ered to be actuarially equivalent to,the benefrt provided under the Medicare Act. In accordance with’ FSP

106-2, all rneasures of the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation or net periodic. postretirement benefit cost in the flnanmal

statements or accormpanying notes reflect the effects of the Medicare Act on the plan for the entire fiscal year,,

The effect on the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation attributed to past service as of January 1, 2006 is a reduction of
$53,273 and the effect on the amortization of actuarial losses, service cost, and interest cost compenents of net periodic benefit cost.

is a reductlon of $7,790. The 2006 expected subsidy was $3,100, of which $975 was received pnor to December 3‘I 2006.

_ Plan Assets:
The company’s pension asset allocatuon at. December 31, 2006 and 2005 and target allocation are as follows:
! - Current Target Parcentaga of Penslon Plan

. .o . .
.k . - o ) B i
] .

o . Allocation’ .. ;" Assets at December 31
Asset Category .,2007_ 0 * 2006 72008
Equity securities . i 60% to 70% 67% 67%
Debt securities 30% to 40% 33% 33%

- Total - 2100% 100% 100%

.The company recognizes its overall responsibility to ensure that the assets of its various pension plans are managed effectively and
.-prudently and in compliance with its policy guidelines and all applicable laws,
company also recognizes that appropnate levels of risk are necessary to allow its investment managers to achieve sansfactory
long-term results consistent with the objectives and the flducnary character of the pension funds. Asset allocation is gstablished in a
“manner consrstent with projected plan liabilities, benefit payments and expected rates of return for various asset classes:* The expected

Preservation of capital is important,. however, the '

rate of return for the investment” portiolio is based on expected rates of return for various asset classes as well as hmstencal asset '

class and fund pen‘ormance

[

PR

T

Cash Flows: : -
Employer Contnbutlons to Defned Benef‘t Plans . i
2005 - . .. \ $.238,089
2006 . $"264,756 )
2007 (planned) $°100,078
.'Futufe' be_neflitl payments are expected to be as follows:” . Lo o L '
Benefit Payments B Pension Benefits _ Pqéjtretirement Benefits ‘-‘n..' C

’ Exbe_c‘led " Net Including

~ Medicare - Madicare

K . Gross Subsidies Subsidies .
2007 $ 164,083 $ 62193 $ 3213 $ 58,980
2008 $ 167,800 $ 64,962 $ 3677 5 . 61.285
2009 $ 172,012 ¥ 67529 $ 3495 % 64,034
2010 $ 173,210 $ 68,828 $ 3851 $ 64977
2001 $ 175,529 $ 69166. "7 $ - 4,249 $ 64917
2012-2016 $ 936,643 $ 323,300 $ 28,268 $ 295,032

The eensien accumulated benefit obligation was $2,642,405 and $2,638,920 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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-14 SEGMENT INFORMATION . T, P P AL S :,

Descnptron of types of products and services from which each reportable segrnent denves rts revenues
"The company’s reportable segments are business units that target dlfferent industry segments. Each reportable segment is managed
separately because of the need to specufucaliy address customer needs in these different industries. The company has three reportable
segments lndustnal Group, Automotive Group and Steel,Group.

4 .‘ll.i‘r‘

< The Industrial Group inciudes sales’of bearings ‘and other products and services (other than steel) to a dtverse customer base

|nclud|ng industrial equipment, off hlghway, rarI and aerospace and defense customers, The Industriat Group a!so includes aftermar-
ket dlstnbutron operatrons mc!udmg automotrve applrcatrons for products other than steel The Automotive Group mcludes sales of
bearrngs and other- products and servrces {other than steel) to automative ongtnal equrpment manufacturers lor passenger cars trucks
and trarlers The companys beartng products are,used in a variety of products and applrcatrons mcludrng passenger cars, trucks
Iocomotrve ‘and railroad cars, machrne tools, rollrng mills, farm and constructron equrpment arrcraft mrssrle gurdance systems

L4
i
L
P
'

-

computer pertpherals and medrcal mstruments . ) [ _R“. EEREE

The Stesl Group includes sales of Iow and |ntermed1ate alioy and carbon grade steel in a wide range of solrd and tubular sectrons with
T a varrety ‘of ftntshes \The company also manufactures custom~made ‘'steel produicts, including preC|S|on steel .components. :

Approxrmately 10% of the companys steel is consumed.in its bearing: operatrons In addition, sales are made to’ othertantr fnctlon '

beanng companres and o aircraft’ automotrve forgrng, toolrng oil and gas dnllrng industries and steel service centers. In’ 2006 the’
company sold the Latrobe Steel subsrdrary ThIS business was part of the Steel Group for segment reportrng purposes This busrness
has been treated as drscontrnued operatlons for all perlods presented

Measurement of segment profrt or loss and segment assets : s , ) s "
The company evaluates performance and allocates resources based on return on capital and profitable growth The primary measure-
rnent used by management to measure the financial performance of each Group is adjusted EBIT learnrngs before rnterest and taxes
excludrng specral |tems such as |mpa1rment and restructurlng charges, rationalization and rntegratron costs, one—trme gatns or losses
on sales of assets allocated recerpts or payments made under the CDSOA loss on dissolution of subsidiary, acqursrtron related
currency exchange garns and other |tems similar.i in nature). The  accounting policies of the reportable segments are. the same as those
descrrbed in"the summary of srgnrftcant accountrng poIrc:es Intersegment sales and transfars are recorded at valugs" based on
market pnces whrch creates rntercompany profit on rntersegment sales or transfers that is elrmtnated in consolrdatron TR em s
. . - ¥

Factors used by managernent to’ rdentrfy the enterprrse s reportabl’e segments ' . . .
ot The’ company reports net sales by geographrc area in'a manner that is more reflectrve of how the company operates is segments
' whrch is by the destination of net sales Non-current assets by geographrc area are reported by the location of the subsadrary,

fha ) .
: .

o . United Other . .
Geographic Financial Information ' . .States Europe Countries. Consolidated.
Net sales - ‘4§ 3370244 ' .S -849,915 - 'S 753,206 -$ 4,973,365
Non-current assets 1,578,856 - 285,840 +266,557 .7 72,131,263

.‘2.005 . - . o 4 o
Net sales $ 329517 $ 812,960 $ 715036 .$ 4,823,167 |
Non-current assets . .o 1,413,575 337,657 .177,988 1,929,220

P

2004 . ) . LT

Net sales . $ 2,900,749 $ 779,478 " % 606970 $ 4,287,197

Non-curient assets 1,399155 . 398,925 221,112 2,019,192
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

* (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
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Note 14 Segment Information (continuied)
Segmant Financia! information , - 2006 2005 2004 3
- In_dustl.'ial Group : ) N E
. Net sales tb__external customers _ - " 3'2,072.495 T $1.925211 $1,709,770 ]
~ Intersegment sales ' : ' . 1,998 1,847 "1,437, 1
* Depreciation and amortization . : -74,005 73,278 71,352 }
EBIT, as adjusted®” "~ ‘ : 201,334~ -199,936 - 7177913,
* Capital expenditures * - : ) - : 132,"815 - 87,832 - 49,721 : :"‘
- Assets employed at year-end o ‘ 1954589 1748619 - 1736692 ¢
Automotive Group . - : ‘ I ‘ 135
Net sales to external customers - $1,573,034  $1,661.048 - $1,562,226 " i
_ _Depreciation and amortization. . . ‘ . . 81,091 . 8b,345 o ‘ 78,100 o i
"EBIT (loss) as adjusted . . . {73,696) ‘. {19.886) . - .. 15919 . ;}
Capital expenditures . . 111,079 100,369 . 73,926 é
Assets employed at year-end 1,248,294 1,231,348 1,229,224, ]
Steel Group _ oLl S L et g
Net sales to.external customers ] $1327836 $1,236908 $ 995201 £
intersegrment sales i » i 144,424 178,157 161.9{11. o
Depreciation and amortization . . 41,496 . X ) 51,033 51,721 ; %
_EBIT, as adjusted : 206691 175772 1 52672 .
Capital expenditures * ' | 52,199 dono 20138 %
Assets employed at year-end s ' . 828,650 770,328 " 771,763 . ‘ g
f Discontinued Operations . ‘ . . - . e '__.,, . ‘ ) l-'b
Assets employed at year-end s . - $ 243,442 $ 206,230 y
Total - . T T , L ) S 1
Net sales to external customers . $4,973,365 $4,823167 $4287197 %
Depreciation and amortization 196,592 209,656 201',173 %
- EBIT, as adjusted _ 334,329 355,822 246,504 . - g
|~ Capital expenditures : 296,093 217,411 143,781 3
Assets employed at year-end , : 4,031,533 3993734 3,942,909 . )}
Reconciliation to Income from Continuing Operations ' e ’
Before Income Taxes Ce §
Total EBIT, as adjusted, for reportable segments $ 334,329 $ 355,822 $ 2216,5011 R}
Impairment and-restructuring (44,881) (26,093)  (13,538)
Loss on divestitures ’ (64,271) - ’ -
Rationalization and integration charges 24,393} (17,270 (27,025}
Gain on sale of non-strategic assets, net of dissolution of subsidiary 7,953 8,547 190
CDSOA receipts, net of expenses 87,907 77,089 44,429
Adopﬁon_ of FIN 46 for investment in PEL - - (948)
Other : : (1.210) (194) (719)
Interest expense ' {49,387) (51,585) (50,834)
-Interest income . 4,605 3,437 1,397
lntersegmen.t adjustments 3,582 {3,195) (1,865)
- Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes ) $ 254,234 $. 346,538 $ 197.5:M
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15 INBDME TAXES

Income before income taxes, based on geographic location of the operation to whuch such earnings are attributable, is provided below.

" As the company has elected to treat certain foreign subsidianies as branches for U. S income tax purposes, pretax income attributa-

ble to the U.S. shown below may differ from the pretax income reported on the companys annual U.S. Federal income tax return,

Income befare income taxes

United States o cu - $225,028  $278212 $160,188!
Non-United States : " 29,206 68,326 37,403
Income before income taxes 7 .o $254,234' $345538 - $197891
The' prowsmn for income taxes consisted of the followmg for the years ended December 31
Curren’t: e
Federal $ 86,206 $§ 9.2n £ {8.873)
State and local . (651) (2,559) 4,578
Foreign 18,635 24,778 10,982
SR - - 104,190 . 31,490 ~ 6,687
Deferred: -
. Federal ' - (20977} . 85377 49,019
" State and local . 71,086 1,987 ~ b09
“Foreign ' : S ~ (6,504) . (5,972) . . 7330
N ' ] . - {26,395} 81,392 - 56.858
United States and foreign taxes ‘on income-. - | o . $-77,795 $112,882 — & 63,545

The company made income tax payments of apprommately $90 600 $29 200 and $49,800 |n 2006, 2005 and 2004
respectively., : i B t -

Following is the reconciliation between the provision for i income taxes and the amount computed by applylng us. Federal‘

income tax rate of 35% to income before taxes for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 " 2004
Income tax at the U.S. federal statutory rate ' $ 88,982 $121,288 $ 69,157
Adjustments: ' ) o s
- State and local income taxes, net-of federal tax benefit: w- 283 - (373) - - 3,307
Tax on foreign remittances ' . 6,395 16,124 : . 4,164
Losses without currént tax benefits ' 7,242 1365 . 28630 - ¢
-Tax holidays and foreign earnings taxes at different rates ’ {13,334) 8,515 : - {10,628) .
Deductible dividends paid to ESOP . {2,318) (2,279) .918) .
Benefits related to U.S. exports (5,325} (9,971) - {2,308)
Accrual of 1ax-free Medicare subsidy (2,604) {3,055) {1,384)
_Goodwill impairment. - 3,773 - L.
Accruals and settlements related to tax audits {3,294) 4,001 S (12.673)
Change in tax status of certain entities ' ' - - (11,954)
Other items (net) | {2,005) 5,703} .. {848}
Provision for income taxes | $ 72,795 $112,882 -- - $.63545

Effective income tax rate ' 30.6% 32.6% '32.2%
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NOTES TO CoONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Note 15 Income Taxes (contjnue&)

In connection with various investment arrangements, the company was granted “halidays” from income taxes in the Czech'Republic
and at two different affiliates in China. These agreements wera new to the company in 2003 and are estimated to begin to expire after
2008. In total, the agreements reduced income tax-expenses by $3,700 in 2006, $4,300 in-2005 and $4,500 in 2004, These savmgs

Tesulted in an increase 1o earnings per diluted share of $0.04 in 2006, $0.05 in 2005, and $0.05 in 2004.

The company plans to reinvest undistributed earnings of all non-U.S. subsidiaries, which amounted to approximately $235.000 and °
$152,000 at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, 'resbectively Accordingly, taxes on the 'repatriatioh of such eérningswhave
not been provided. If these earnings were repatriated, additional tax expense of approximately $82,000 as of December 31, 2006 and
$52,000 as of December 31, 2005 would have been incurred. : ‘

In October 2004, the President signed the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the AJCA). The AJCA created a temporary incentive
for U.S. corporations to repatriate-accumulated income earned abroad by providing an 85% dividends received deduction for ceRain
dividends from foreign subsidiaries.” During 2005, the company repatriated $118,800 under.the AJCA. This amount consisted of

dividends, prewously taxed income and returns of capital, and resulted in net incame tax expense of $8,100. The AJCA also contalns
a provision that ellmmates the benefits of the extraterritorial incame exclusion for U.S. exports after 2006. The company: :ecognlzed

tax benefits of approxmately $5, 300 related to the extraterritorial income exclusion in 2006. Additionally, the AJCA contains a

" provision that enables companies to deduct a percentage (3% in 2005 and 2006, 6% in 2007 through 2002, and 9% in 2010 and later

years} of the taxable income denved from qualified domestic manufacturing operations. The company recogmzed tax beneflts of
approxlmately $1,600 relatung to the manufacturmg deduction for 2006.

In December 2006, the Tax Relief and Heaith Care Act of 2006 (the TRHCA) was signed into law. The TRHCA retroactively extends
the U.S. federal income tax credit for qualified research and development activities (the R&D credit), which had expired on December
31, 2005, through' December 31, 2007. The TRHCA also provides an alternative simplified method for calculating the R&D credit for
2Q07. The company expects the alternative simplified method to result in an increased R&D credit in 2007 versus prior years.

The effect of te;'nporary difference_g ggvilng rise to deferred t.ax assets and Iiat;ilitiéé at December 31, 2006 and 20(55 were as fo[lows_:

) . . 2006 2005
Deferred tax assets: ' . s .
Accrued postretirement benefits cost $ 232,638 $205,918
Accrued pension cost 198,576 . 53,447
Inventory . : T 33,244 21,414
Benefit accruals 7,030 15,854
Tax loss and credit carryforwards ' 159,240 172,509
Other - net : . 47,978 . 43,062
Valuation allowance . + (191,894) {171,357)
486,812 340,948
Deferred tax liability — depreciation and amortization {239,116} (282,754)
Net deferred tax assét . $24769% @ S 58 194, :

The company has U.S. loss carryforwards with tax benefits totaling $14,800. These losses will start to expire’in 2008. In addmon the

* company has loss carryforwards in various-foreign jurisdictions with tax benefits totaling $135,200 having various expiration dates, and

state and local-loss carryforwards and credit carryforwards, with tax benefits of $6,300 and $2,800 respectively, which will begin to
expire in 2007.. The company has provided valuation allowances of $146,100 against certain of these carryforwards. The company
has provided valuation allowances of $45,800 against deferred tax assets other than tax losses and credit carryforwards.

The calculation of the company's provision for income taxes involves the interpretation of complex tax laws and regulations. Tax-

' benefits for certain items are not recognized, unless it is probable that the company’s position'will be sustained if challenged by tax
" authorities. Tax liabilities for other itemns are recognized for anticipated tax contingencies based on the company’s estimate of whether,

and the extent to which, additional taxes will be due.
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QUARTERLY FlNANclAL DATA . T R N e R
* {Unaudited) ' S LT . .o
st Co'2nd 8 3rd -0 - 4th! Total
P ? (Dollars in thousands, except pe‘rshare data) . RN ' A e e '
7 2008 ‘ _ , L ' '
s Net sales C ) . . ' $1 254 308 $ 1 302 174 51 185 962 $1 230 921 84 973 365
" Gross profit ' 269,813 ' 293,849 ' '232397 209 785. 1,005,844
* Impairment'and restructuring charges ' ©1,040 ¢ 7469, 2,682 33,690 ", 44,881
!' Lo Income from continuing operatlons“' -57,094- 64,888 ‘38,688 15,769 176,439
' - Income from discontinued operations® W 8846 9803 - 7859 - 19, 580 46,088
Net i mcome T e S 65940 © | 74,691 46,547 .,_35 349 222,527
Net income per share ~ Basuc R, o R . " O R
™ Incorne from contlnumg operations S X B “070 0 ‘o 017 - 1.89
" Income from discontinued operations S 004 0 010 . 0087 0 021 - 049
Total net income per share ° roee S 0.71": -080 - 050 ---038 - 238
Net income per share - Diluted: T
Income from contmurng _operations ) ) . ] Q.|61 . .1 088 0 9 . Coo 17 1.87
Income from dlscontlnued operations - L 009 : _0710' " 0.08 © 0.20° - 0.49
" Total nat income per share k f T ] 079 - - 049 _0.37 ~ 236
Dividénds per share T R ‘ 05 "7 0.15. 0.16 T 016 0.62
2005 R . < o Ist o . vand_ . 3rd ath - Total
Net sales ] . ) . . 81223669 $1.2436717 $1.166.196° $1.189,631 $4.823.167
“Gross profit =7 S ' © 250234" ' 264956 236,444 239323 999 957
<. Impairment and restructunng charges ’ o - ‘(44) ' T244B1° ° “1686- ° 26 093
" Income from contlnumg operations? . 52,876 - 62,276 ° 323%0 -~-86,114 " 233 656
. income Jfrom dlscontlnued -operations® . . 5,359 5,058 .- 7,4_41' ' 8, 767 ., 26,625
~ Netingome = - o N 58,235, 67.334 39831 94881 260, 281
_ Neti income per share - Basnc . ) : g o ’ "
Incorne from continuing operations 058" 0.68_ " " 035 0.93 ‘285
Income from discontinued operations ~ o T ~ 006 - - 006 - 008 - 010 "7 ' 029
_ Total net income per share _ ‘ - 084  +  -0.74 0.43 . 1.03 - 2.84
~ ¢ Net income per share < Diluted: ' o ‘ A T
Income from contmumg operations | 057 . 067 0.35 0.92 2.52
o Income from discontinued operations - : 008 . - 0.06 0.08 ~ 0.08- 029
'_l'otal net income per share ’ . 0.63 . 073 - 043 . 10 - 281

. Dividendspershare ‘ : 0.15 - 015 - 015 015 -f . 060

. Earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented, therefore the sum cf the quarterly earmngs per

share may not equal the total computed for the year. -

™ Ingome from continuing operations for the second quarter includes $10.0 million related to the loss on divestiture of the company's
Timken Precision Components - Europe business. Income from continuing operations for the third quarter includes a $7.0 million
- charge.for product warranty. Income from continuing operations for the fourth quarter includes $54.3 million related-to the toss on

divestiture of the company s steering business, a $11.8 m:Ihon charge for product warranty and income of $87.9 million, resulting ‘

. from the CDSOQA.

@ income from contmumg operatlons mcludes $77.1 million, resulting from the CDSOA.

= DISCOﬂtIRUEd operations for 2006 reflects the operating results and gain on sale of Latrcbe Steel, net of tax. Dlsccntmued operatlons

" for 2005 reflects the operating resulis of Latrobe Steel, net of tax.
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REPORT -OF |NDEF'ENDENT‘ RE'BI'ETERE'D}-F’U-‘BLI'C
ACCDUNTING FIRM ' .

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of The Timken Company

4

'We have audited the accornpanyiné consolidated baiance sheets aof The Timken Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 . -
and 2005 and the related consolldated statements of i lncome shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in’ the ;
perlod ended December 31 2006 Our audits also included the flnancral statement schedule listed in the Index at ltem 15{a}. These.,'-;

f|nanC|a| statements and schedule are the responmbrhty of the Company s management. Qur respon5|b|l|ty is t0 express an oplnlon
on'these fmancral statements.and'schedule based on our audits.

We conducted' our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversrght Board (Umted States). Those

S ,. EEREE

standards requnre that we,plan and perform the audit to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the flnancral statements are

free of material mlsstatemem An audit mcludes examining, on‘a test basis, eviderice supportmg the amounts and drsclosures m the .
hnanmal statements An audrt also mcludes assessrng the accounting principtes used and. srgnlftcant estlmates made by, manage~ .
ment, as weII as evaluatlng the overail frnancral statement presentatlon We believe that our audits prov:de a reasonable basis for.our

opinion.

ave

In our oplnlon the f|nanc:|al statements referred to above’ present fairly, in all matenal respects the consolldated flnanc:al posrtlon

of The Timken Company and subs:dlanes at December 31,

2006 and 2005, and the consohdated results of their operatrons and ;

the:r cash flows for each of the three years in the peried ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted

‘accounting principles.  Also, in our oprnlon the related flnanmal statement scheduie, when considered in- reIatlonr to the basic ‘

fmancral statements taken as a who1e presents fairly in all material respects ‘the information.set forth therein. . RN

As discussed in Notes 9 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements the Company adopted ‘Statement of Frnancral Accountrng'.

Standards No. 123(R), " Shared:Based Payment" and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 168, “"Employers’ Accountlng

for Deflned Benefit Pensron and Other Postretrrement Plans

We also have audrted in accordance with' the standards of the Public Company Accountmg Oversrght Board {United States), the .
effectlveness of The kaen Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria . -
establrshed in, Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsonng Orgamzattons of the, Treadway E

. Commlssron and our report dated February 22 2007 expressed an unqualrfred op|n|on thereon

. -y B L -
- cedu n T3 e P,

4.
*
-

Cigveland, Ohio B
February 22, 2007 *
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1TEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ADCDUNTANTS EIN AGDDUNTING

"AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE : i oL

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A, CONTRDOLS AND PROCEDURES

As of the end of the period covered by-this report, the company’s management carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and .
‘with the: pamcrpatron of the company's principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the efféctiveness of the design and -
operation of-the company’s disclosure controls and procedures as defined to Exchange Act Rule 134-15te). Based upon that evalua- .
tion, the principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the company's disclosure controls and procedures '
were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.

There have been no changes in the company's internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, the company’s-imernal control over financial reporting during the company's fourth quarter of 2006.

- 1

Report of Management on Internai Control Over Frnanclal Reporting
The management of The Timken Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
' reportrng for the company. Timken's internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the preparation
and fair presentation of published financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may
not prevent or detect mrsstatements Also, prolectlons of any evaluation of effectiveness 1o future periods are sub|ect to the risk that
controls may become madequate because of changes in condrtrons or that the degree of complrance with the poIrcres or procedures
rnay detenorate

’ 'kaen management assessed the effectweness of the company's mternal control over frnancral reportrng as of December N, 2006
In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{COSO). --Based on this assessment under COSQ’s “Internal Control-Integrated Framework,” management believes that,.as of

-December 31,°2006, Timken’s internal control over financial reporting is effective. | . . . - . ‘o

Ernst-& Young LLP independent regrstered public accountmg firm, has issued an'audit report on our assessment of kaen s |nternal
control over financial reporting as of Décember 31, 2006, which is presented below. . SR

v . , .- : P . X 1

Management Cemfrcatlons
James W. Griffith, Presrdent and Chref Executlve Officer of kaen has certrfred to the New York Stock Exchange that he is not aware
of any violation by Timken of New York Stock Exchange Corporate governance standards :

Sectlon 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 requrres kaen s pnncrpal executrve offrcer and prrncrpal frnancaal ‘officer to frle certarn
certlfrcauons with the SEC relating to the qualrty of Timken's public disclosures. These certrfrcatrons are frled as exhrbns to this report
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REPORT OF INDEF’ENDENT REGISTERED PLIBLII:: SR
AE:CI:IUNTINE FIRM Co P

- - -
The Board of Directo_rs and Shareholders of The Timken Company

‘We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying,Report‘ of :Management on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting,.that The Timken Company maintained.effective internal cantrol over financial reporting as of December 31, 20086, based
"~ on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework .issued by the; Committee ‘of Sponsoring'Organizations of 'the -
Treadway Commrssron (the COSO criteria). The Timken Company's management is- responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over frnancral reportrng and.for its assessment of the effectrveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responslbrllty

s 1o express an opinion on managements assessment and an opumon on the effectweness of the company’s’internal control over

frnancnal reportmg based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountlng Oversight’ Board (United States). Those
‘standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal controt
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit inciuded obtaining an understanding of internal co'ntrol"o'\'fer
" financial reportrng, evaluating management s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operat:ng effectiveness of’ internal

“control, and pen‘ormrng such other procedures as we considered necessary in the carcumstances “We beheve that our audit provrdes )

IS N

areasonab|e basis for our opinion. * i " st . : R
% 4 LR

A companys |nternal control over fmancral reporting is a process® ‘designed to provrde reasonable assurance regardrng the relrabllrty
‘of financial reportrng and the preparatuon of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted account-
- ing principles. A companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain, to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faur!y reflect the transactions and dlsposmons of the assets of the

company; (2 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial staternents

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are belng made only
,rn accordance with authorizations of management and drrectors of the companv, and {3 prov:de reasonabie assurance regardlng
) preventron or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,’ or drsposmon of the company s assets that could have a materral effect

on the frnancral statements. - - . oo

Because of its |nherent Itmltatrons internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect mrsstatements Also prO|ec-
'~t|ons of any evaluatron of effectlveness to future penods are sub[ect to the risk that controls may become |nadequate because of

.. changes in condmons or that the degree of comphance wrth the polrcres or. procedures may detenorate

i our opmnon management s assessment that The kaen Company maintained effective mternal control over flnancral repomng as
of December 31, 2006, is falrly stated inall matenal respects based onthe COSO cntena Also in our, oplmon The kaen Company’
mamtamed in afl matenal respects effectlve internal control over frnancraf reporting as of December 31 2006 based on the COSO
crlterla -

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of.the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), the-
consolidated balance sheets of The Timken Company as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements
of income, shareholders’ equity, and ‘'cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 of The kaen
Company and our report dated February 22, 2007 expressed an ungualified opinion.thereon. >

]

fs/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Clevetand, Ohio
February 22, 2007
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GDVERNANEE

Required information is set forth under the captions *Election of Directors” and *Section 16ta) Beneficial Ownership Report Compliance”
in the proxy statement fited in connection with the annual meeting of shareholders to be held May 1, 2007, and i is incorporated herein
by reference Information regarding the executive officers of the reglstram is included in Part | hereof Informatlon regardlng the
company 5 Audlt Committee and its Audlt Committee Financial Expen is set forth under the captron " Audit Committee” in the proxy
statement filed in connection with the annuai meetmg of shareholders to be held May 1, 2007, and is mcorporated herein by reference.

The General Policies and Procedures of the Board of Directors of the company and the charters of its Audit Commrttee Compensation
Committee and Nominating and Governance ‘Committee are also available on its website at www.timken.com and are available to any
shareholder upon request to the Corporate Secretary. The’ information on the company's website is not incorporated by reference into
this Annual Heport on Form 10-K. ‘

The company has adopted a code of ethics that applres 10 all of its employees, including its principal executwe officer, -principal

financial officer and principal accountung officer, as well as |ts directors. The companys code of ethlcs The Timken Company*

Standards of Business Ethics PoI:cy. is avanable on its website at wwwrrmken com. The company intends to disclose any
amendment to or waiver from its code of ethlcs by posting such amendment or walver as applicable, on its websrte

. 1

ITEM 1 1 . EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION .

Required information is set forth under the captions * Compensation Discussion and Analysns Summary Compensation Table-"
“2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards,” Outstandrng Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End,” "2006 Option Exercrses and Stock Vested,”
“Pension Benefits,” “Non-Qualified Deferred Compensahon "Plan,” “Termination of Employment and Change-rn-ControI
Agreements,” “Director Compensation — 2006, " “Compensation Cormmittee,” Compensatlon Committee Report” in the proxy state-
ment filed in connection with the annual meeting of shareholders to be held“IVlay 1, 2007, and is incorporated herein by reference.

wou

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
Requrred information, mcludmg with respect to |nst|tut|onal investors ownlng more than 5% of the company s Common Stock, is set

forth under the caption 'Benefamal Ownershlp of Common Stock® in the proxy statement filed in connection with the annual meetmg ]

of shareholders to be held May 1, 2007, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Required information is set-forth under the caption “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the proxy statement filed in connec-
tion with the annual meeting of shareholders to be held May 1, 2007, and is incorporated-herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN' RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND’ ¥
DIRECTDR INDEPENDENCE ' ‘

Required information is set forth under the caption “Election of Directors® in the proxy statement issued in connection with the
annual meeting of shareholders to be held May 1, 2007, and is incarporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINGIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Required information regarding fees paid to and services provided by the company's independent auditor during the years ended

December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the pre-approval policies and procedures of the Audit Committee of the company’s Board
of Directors is set forth under the caption “Auditors” in the proxy statement issued in connection with the annuat meeting of
shareholders to be held May 1, 2007, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV e e : [

ITEM 15, EXHIEITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES .
(a)(ﬂ and (2) — Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts is submitted as a separate section of this report. Schedules I, 1, IV and
V are not applicable to the company and therefore, have been omrtted

@3) Listing'ot Exhibits "*"'-"-‘.'

-

Exhibit ... - : S

{2) Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 8, 2006, by and among The Timken Company, Latrobe Steel Company kaen r
Alloy Steel Europe lerted Tootrock Holding, Inc. and Toolrock Acqulsutron LLC was filed on December 8, 2006 as'an exhlblt to

-c

" Form 8K (Commlsswn Fr!e No. 1-1169) and is rncorporated herein by reference e : o

- .

(3)(|) Amended Artrcles of. Incorporat:on of The Tlmken Company (effectlve Apnl 16 1996) were flled wrth Form S8 dated April 16

(3)(ii) Amended Regulations of The Timken Company effective April 21, 1987, were filed on March 29, 1993 with Form ‘_I'O-'K'f

(4 0) Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of June 30 2005 by and among o
: The kaen Company, Bank of America, N.A. and KeyBank Natlonal Assomatron as Co—Admlnrstratrve Agents JP Morgan Chase .

1996 (Regrstratron No. 333-02553) and are mcorporated here:n by reference ‘ . -

+

|(CommlSSron Flle No. 1-1169},.and are mcorporated ‘herein by reference ot ‘ o BRI R .

-

el e aow L Ly L . '_‘.*?1‘

Bank, N.A. and Wachowa Bank, National Association as Syndrcatlon Agents KeyBank Natlonal Assocuatron as Paylng Agent,
L/C Issuer and Swing Line Lender; and other Lenders party thereto was filed: July 772005 .with Form.8-K (Commrssron File
‘No. 1- 1169) and is incorporated herein by reference. -« - . RN . , I

Al lndenture dated. as of July 1, 1990, _between Timken and Ameritrust Company of I‘\Ie\g‘\_(ork, .wh-ich was filed with Timken's l‘zorm -

S-3 registration statement dated July 12, 1930 (Registration No. 333-35773), and is incorporated herein by reference. - e

(4.2) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 24, 1996, by and between The Timkén Company and Mellon Bank, N.A. was filed

on November 13, 1_996,with‘Form 10-0,(Commiseion File,No..1-1168}, and is.incorporated-herein by reference. FE

T

-

(4.3} Indenture dated as of ' February 18, 2003 between The Trnken Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, provudlng

for Issuance of Notes i in Series was filed on March 27, 2003 with Form 10-K (Commlssmn File No 1- 1169) and is |ncorporated
herein by reference. ’ : .

{4.4) The company is also a party to agreements with respect to other long-term debt in total amount less than 10% of the registrant's

consolidated total assets. The registrant agrees to furnish a copy of such agreements upon request, .- C

{4.5) Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of December 30. 2005 by and.among:- Timken Recervables

" Corporation; The Timken Corporation; Jupiter Securmzation Corpoaration; and JP Morgan Chase Bank; N A was filed on January, B,

© .. 2006 with Form 8-K {Commission File No. 1-1169} and is incorporated herein by reference.- -

(4.6} Amended and hestated Receivables Sales Agreement dated as of Dec‘ember 30 ‘2005 by and between Timken Corporatlon and

Timken Receivables Corporation was filed on January 6, 2006 with Form-8-K (Commission.File No. 1- 1169) and is_incorporated

hereln by reference.
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_ Listing'of Exhibits {continued)

3" Management Contracts and Compensation Plans

Exhibit
{10.0

(10.1}

- (10.2)

21103)
_ 10.4)
{10.5)
: (1o.er
(10.7)

{108)

- {109

' rreference Each differs only as to name and date executed

The-Management Performance Plan of The Timken Company for Officers and Certain Management-Personnel as revised
on January 31, 2005 was filed on March 15, 2006 with Form 10-K {Commission File No. 1-1169) and is incorporated
harein by reference.

The TimKen Company 1996 Deferred Compensation Plan for officers and other key employees, amended and restated as

of April 20, 1999 was filed on May 13 1999 with Form 10-Q {Commission File No. 1-1189) and is mcorporated herem by -

reference

Amendment to The Timken Company 1996 Deferred Compensation Plan was filed on March 3, 2004 with Form 10-K
{Commission File No. 1-1169) and is inco'rporated herein by reference. . '.'

The Timken.Company Long-Term Incentive Plan for dnrectors officers and other key employees as amended and restated

-as of February 6, 2004 and approved by shareholders on April 20, 2004 was fited as Appendix A to Proxy Statement filed

on March 1, 2004 [Commrssmn Frle No. 1- 1169) and |s rncorporated herein by reference

The form of Indemnification Agreements entered into with alt Directors who are not Executrve Officers of the’ company
was: frled on April 1, 1991 with, Form 10-K (Commrssron File No. 1- 1169) and is rncorporated herein by reference Each
drffers only as to.name and date executed. !

The form of Indemnification Agreements entered into with all Executive Officers of the comipany who are.not Directors
of the company was filed on Aprrl 1, 1991 with Form 10-K (Commrssmn Frle No. 1- 1169) and is mcorporated herern by

[ T . S '

. - . -
, wo o P T

The form of Indemnrflcatlon Agreements entered into with aII Executive Officers of the company whao are also Drrectors P

of the company was filed on Apnl 1 1991 with Form 10-K "(Commission File No. 1- 1169] and is mcorporated herern by
reference. Each differs only as to’ name and date executed.

s

The form of Employee Excess Beneflts Agreement entered mto with aII active Executlve Officers, certarn retrred Executive
Officers, and certain other.key employees of the | company was filed on March 27, 1992 with Form ‘IO—K (Commlssron File
No. 1-1168). and is incorporated herein by reference. Each differs only as to name and date executed

Amendment to Employee Excess Benefits Agreement was filed'on May 12, 2000 with Form 10-Q tCommission Frle
No. 1-1169) and is incorporated-herein by reference.,

-0 . . ' . ’ ’ BN o N . . '
The amended form of Employes Excess Benefits Agreement entered into with certain Executive Officers and certain key .

employees of the company was filed on August 6, 2004 with Form 10-Q {Commission File No. 1-1 169} and is incorporated
herein by reference. Each differs only as to name and date executed.

{10.10) Amended form of Excess Bénefits Agreement entered into with the President & Chief Executive Officer and Senior Vice

{(10.11) The Amended and Restated Supplementa! Pension Plan of The Timken Company as adopted March.16, 1998 was fl!ed on -

President ~ Technology {now President — Steel) was fited on August 6, 2004 with Form 10-Q {Commission File No. 1-1169)
and is incorporated herein by reference. '

March 20, 1998 with Form 10-K {Commission File No. 1-1168) and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Listing of Exhibits (continued) . ' o v

Management Contracts and Compensation Plans.. . R LI A LTI N PORT o

Exhibit

78

-(10.12)Amendment to the Amended and Restated Supplemental Pension Plan of the Timken Company executed on December 29, )

- 1998 was filed on March 30, 1999 with Form 10-K {Commission File No. 1-1169} and is incorporated herein by reference

.

{(10. 13)The form of The kaen Company Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for nontransferable optrons W|thout dividend credit

- adopted on Aprit 17, 2001 was hled on May 14, 2001 with Form 10-0 {Commlssron File No: 1- 1169) and is mcorporated. "

herern by reference.”

{10.14) The form of The Timken Company Nonqualitied Stock Option Agreement for special award options {(performance vesting) as

. . adopted on April 18, 2000 was filed on May 12, 2000 with Form 10-Q {Commission File No. 1-1169} and is incorporated here-
in by reference. : :

T4

(10 15)The form of Non—Ouahfred Stock Option Agreement for Officers adopted on January 31, 2005 was filed on February: 4 2005

2+ . as an exhibit to Form 8-K (Commrssron File No. 1-1169) and:is |ncorporated herein by reference. .-

n 0.16)The form of Non-Oua!ified Stock-Option Agreement for.Ofﬁcers adopted on F'ebruary 6: 2066' was filed on February 10, 2006 *-
v as.an exhibit to.Form 8-K (Commission File No. 1-1169} and is incorporated herein by reference. .. et '

s, .t

' '(10.1' 7) The Timken Company Senior Executive Management Performance Plan as Amended and Restated as of February. 1, 2005 and

. approved by shareholders April 19, 2005 was filed as Appendix A to Proxy Statement filed on-March 14, 2005 (Commission File
*. No. 1-1168) and is incorporated herein by reference. .+ - N . s - o

: '(10 18) The kaen Company Non—Oualrfred Stock Optlon Agreement entered into wrth James W Griffith and adopted on December 16, .

- 1999 was filed on March 29, 2000 with Form 10-K (Commrssuon Frle No. 1-1169) and |s moorporated herein by reference.
(10 19) The kaen Company Durector Deferred Compensatron Plan effectrve as of February 4, 2000 was frled on May 12, 2000 wrth
Form 10—0 (Commrssnon File No. 1-1169) and is incorporated herem by reference

(10 20)The form of The Timken Company Deferred Shares Agreement as adopted on April 18, 2000 was filed on May 12, 2000 with
Form 10-0 (Commrssmn File No. 1-1168} and is |ncorporated herein by reference.

1.

(10.21) The amended form 'of The Timken Company Deferred Shares Agreement was frled on August 6, 2004 with Form 10-0

{Commission Fite No. 1-1169) and is incorporated. herein by reference. | ' .
(1 0.22) The form of The Timken Company Restricted Share Agreement as adopted on January 31, 2005 was fiied on February 4, 2005
as an exhibit to Form 8—1( {Commission File No. 1-1 169) and is incorporated herein by,reference.

110.23) The form of The Timken Company Restricted Share Agreement as adopted on February 6, 2006 was frled on February 10, 2006
" asan exhibit to Form 8-K (Commtssmn File No. 1-1169} and is incorporated herern by reference. '
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_ Listing of Exhibits (continued) . . . L

4

1
i
‘

Management Contracts and Compensation Plans

Exhibit

{10.24} Tha form of The Timken Company Performance Unit Agreement as adopted on February 6, 2006 was filed on February 10, 2006

as an exhibit to Form 8-K {Commission File No. 1-1169) and is incorporated herein by reference.

- . 3

L]

{10.25) The form of The Timken Company Restricted Share Agreerment for Non-Employee Directors as adopted on January 31, 2005 .

was filed on March 15, 2005 with Form 10-K (Commission File No. 1-1169} and is incorporated herein by reference.

(10.26) The form of .The Timken Company Non-Quaiified Stock.Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors as adopted on
January 31, 2005 and was filed on March-15, 2005 with Form 10-K {Commission File No. 1-1169) and is incorporated herein by

reference.

(10. 27] Restricted Shares Agreement entered into with Glenn A. Eisenberg was flled on March 28, 2002 with Form 10-K (Commlssron
File No. 1-1169) and is incorporated herein by reference.

{10.28) Executive Severance Agreement entered into with Glenn A. Eisenberg was. frled on March 27, 2003 with Form 10K
{Commission File No. 1-1168} and is incorporated herein by reference. - . . j

{10.29} The form of The Timken Company 1996 Deferred Compensation Plan-Election Agreement as adopted on December 17, 2003°

was filed on March 3, 2004 with Form 10-K {Commission Fite No. 1-1169) and is incorporated herein by reference.

(10.30) The form of Associate Election Agreement under the 1996 Deferred Compensation Plan was filed on February 4, 2005 as an
exhibit to Form 8K {Commission File No. 1-1169} and is incorporated herein by reference.

(10.31) The form of The Timken Company 1996 Deferred Compensatron Plan Electlon Agreement for Deferral of Restricted Shares was .

filed on August 13, 2002 with Form 10-Q {Commission File No. 1-1169) and is incorporated herein by reference.

{10.32) The form of The Timken Company Director Deferred Compensation Plan Ele&:tic_an Agreement was filed on May 15, 2003 with -

Form 10-Q {Commission File Number 1-1169) and is incorporated herein by reference. Each differs only as to name and date
executed.

" {10.33) The form of Non-employee Director Election Agreement under the 1996 Deferred Compensation Plan was filed on February 4,
2005 as an exhibit to Form 8-K {Commission File No. 1-1169) and is incorporated herein by reference.

{10.34} Deferred Share Agreement entered into with Michael C. Arold was filed on February 10, 20086 as an exhibit to Form 8-K
{Commission File No. 1-1169} and is incorporated herein by reference.

{10.35) Form of Severance Agreement between The Timken Company and certain of its officers was filed on June 9, 2006 as an
" exhibit to Form 8K {Commission File No. 1-1169} and is incorporated herein by reference.
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.. .« Listing of Exhibits {continued) o ‘ . - S
N (VI Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.” _ : LERTNE
T2y Adlist of subsidiaries of the registrant. i
: " o A -y -
: : . . _— '
{23) " Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. I N
i A . e - - : - 9 £:!
s 1 024) . Power of Attorney. . s ‘ . . - o R 1é|
- -~ 31:0); Principal Executive Officer's Certifications pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002: S |
: 4 e S, o - ) . - . 1 : -1
T . - [31.2} Principal Financial Officer's Certifications pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. ig
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'Phillip'R. Cox
Date:..  February 28, 2007

b o : : s

Slgnatures

i.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the company has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE TIMKEN COMPANY

!

By fsf James W, Griffith 3

James W. Griffith

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
{Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 28, 2007

By /s/ Glenn A. Eisenberg

Glenn A. Eisenberg

Executive Vice President - Finance

and Administration (Principal Financial Gfficer)
Date: February 28, 2007

By /s/ J. Ted Minaila ST e

J. Ted Mihaila .
Senior Vice President and Controller
{Principal Accounting Officer)

Date- ' February 28, 2007

Pursuant to the’ requnrements of the Secuntnes Exchange Act of 1934 this Report has been signed by the -
following persons on behalf of the reglstrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By /s/ Phillip-R. Cox*

- Director -

By /fsf Jerry J. Jasinowski*

Jerry J. Jasinowski  Director
Date: February 28, 2007

By /s/ John A. Luke, Jr.*

John A. Luke, Jr.  Director
Dqte: “February 28, 2007

By /s/ Robert W. Mahoney*

Robert W. Mahoney * Director
Date: February 28, 2007

By /s/ Joseph W. Ralston*

Joseph W. Ralston  Director
Date: February 28, 2007

_ By /sf John P. Reilly*

John P. Reilly - Director
Date: February 28, 2007

By fs/ Frénk C. Sullivan*

* Frank C. Sullivan

Director '
Date: .Februar_y 28, 2007.°

By fs/ John M. Timken, Jr.*

John M. Timken, Jr. ' Director
Date:  February 28, 2007.

By /s/ Ward J. Timken* L

Ward J. Timken ~ Director
Date: - - -February 28, 2007

"By /s/ Ward J. Timken, Jr.*

Ward J. Timken, Jr.  Director
Date: February 28, 2007

By /sf Joseph F. Toot, Jr.*

Joseph F. Toot, Jr.  Director
Date: February 28, 2007

By fs/ Jacqueline F. Woods*

Jacquetine F Woods  Director
Date: February 28, 2007

*By /s/ Glenn A. Eisenberg

Glenn A. Eisenberg, attorney-in-fact
By authority of Power of Attorney
filed as Exhibit 24 hereto

Date: February 28, 2007
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Additions- Additions- o 2
Balance at Charged 10 Charged Balance at
Beginningof = Costs and to Other . ! . End .
- Period - Expenses ‘Accounts .Deductions "..of Period
. Year ended December 31, 2006: o -
" Reserves and allowances deducted from asset accounts: N
_Allowance for uncollectible accounts $ 37,473 $ 8737" % {304)+ ‘. g 9,233%® 36673 .
" Allowance for surplus and obsolete |nve_ntory ) 19,753 17.637% (1,389 13,9417 22,060 -
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets 171,357 5,393= ° 14,455 % 311®= 191,894
L Lo $ 228583 - "$ 32767 § 12762 . § 23485 250,627
Year ended December 31, 2005: ‘
Reserves and.allowances deducted from asset accounts:' . ' ot . :
Aliowance for uncollectible accounts . S8 34144 $ 17,251 § - (868" $ 13,054% 37,473 -
Allowance for surplus and obsolete lnventory ' © 19261 . 17,6612 (1,345 15,824™ - 19,783
. Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets 175,398 - 63129 . -9048™ . .19401® 171,367 -
) $228803 . % 41 224 $ .6835 . § 48279 228,583
Year ended December 31, 2004: e SR sel T oo - RELE
Reserves and allowances deducted from asset accounts: . . .. -, T
Allowance for uncollectible accounts -$ 22150 $ 7648" $§ 10,7047 § 6,358 34,144 .
Allowance for surplus and obsolete inventory v . ..28821 7,293%. (7.974) = . B679™ 19, 261 '
Valuatlon allowance on deferred tax assets . L+ . 137,961 37,320 . 860%™ . - 743 175398 -
: : ) $ 188,732 $ 52,261 $ 3,590 $ 15,780 228803
... Provision for. uncollectible accounts ancluded in expenses.’ ' ’ T ™

SCHEDULE |1

— VALUATION
The Timken Company and Subsidiaries

»

AND QUALIFYING AGCCOUNTS

LT

@ Provision for surplus and obsolete mventory included in expenses.

% Increase in valuation a[lowance is recorded as a. componem of the provision for income taxes.
w Currency translatlon and change in reserves dde to acqmsmons net of divestitures.
®'Includes valuatron allowances recorded against other comprehenswe Ioss or goodwill,

® Actual accounts written off aga:nst the allowance—net of recovenes

. .M Inventory items written off against ‘the allowance ' . . ‘
® Includes reversal of valuation allowance on. capltal Iosses due to capnta! gains recognized in 2005 and the rever5a1 of valuatlon

4
- a|1owances on certain U.S, state and local tax loss and credit carry forwards that were written-down in 2005.

R 2 The openlng balance from acquisitions, prlmarlly Torrington. 2004 allowance for uncollecuble accounts lncludes reclassnmatlon ;
’ frorn other liabilities to conform to the’ 2005 balance sheet presentatlon ' ’

"“Ellmmatqon of valuation ailowance on ‘state and local tax credlts that expired unused and were written off in 2004.

.
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EXHIBIT 311

Principal Executive Officer's Certifications Lo
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 -

I, James W. Griffith, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Timken Company;

2.Based on my-knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue.statement of a material fact or omit:to state a-material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances Under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report; oL O

3.Based on my knowledge, the financial- -staternents, and other financial information ‘included in this. report, fawly present in all
material respects the financial condmon results of operatrons and cash flows of the’ regrstrant as of,-and for, the periods presented
in this report; § '

4. The registrant's other certifying officer.and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedUres

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a:15(e} and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial repomng (as defined'in Exchange Act’

Rulés 13a-15(f} and .15d-15(f)} for the registrant and have: T . v C

v
r

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disc!osure controls and procedures-to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material mformatlon relating to the registrant, mc!udlng its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this- report is being prepared;

b} Designed such internal-control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over-financial reportmg to be desrgned
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance.regardrng the relrabullty of - financial reporting and the preparatron of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance wnth generally accepted accountmg pnncrples ol )

v

--c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's dlsclosure controls and. procedures and presented in this report our conclusuons

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and' procedures as of the end of the perlod covered by this report based on’

such evaluation; and’ : . | _ Co .

. ' . : * e . .. . '
d Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s

maost recent frscal quarter. {the registrant's founh fiscal quarter in the case of an*annual report) that has materlally affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the reglstrant s internal control over “financial.reporting:*and . T

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disciosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal controf over f:nancral
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performlng the
equivalent functions}: : . : .

a) All significant-deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over-financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to reéord : procéss summarize and report financial information' and

- .b}Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial repdrtmg. : : .

Date: February 28, 2007 .

- By /s/ James'W. Griffith

James W. Griffith. -
President and Chief Executive Officer _ . Cod
{Principal Executive Officer)

4+ B
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EXHIBIT 31.2 ' SR

Principal Financial Officer's Certifications
-Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey ‘Act of 2002

l, Glenn A. Eisenberg, certify that: '

‘I.I.have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Timken Company; - . . g

' 2. Based on my. knowledge; this report does not contain. any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not mislead:ng
with respect to the period covered by this report;

-

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial- statements and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in aII

material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash. flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report; :

4, The reglstrant s other centifying officer and | are responsrble for establishing and rnaintaining disclosure controls and procedures :
fas defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(e) and 15d-15(e}} and internal control over financial, reporting (as defined in Exchange Act .
Rules i3a 15(f) and 15d-15(f}) for the registrant and have: ‘

e &

a} Desrgned such disclosure controls and procedures or-caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed, under our '

supervision, to ensure that material information refating. to the registrant, |ncluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this.report is being prepared;: . S

b} Desrgned such internal control.over financial reporting .or caused such internal control-over financial reporting to be designed
’ «under our supervision, to provrde reasonable assurance. regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
flnanC|aI statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

. ¢} Evaluated the effectiveness of .the registrant's disclosure controls and proceduresand presented in-this report our conc!usions

"~ , about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered. by this report based on

-such evaluation; and ~ - . t
- . ' h’
+ d)Disclosed,in this report any change in- the registrant s internal control over financral reporting that occurred during the registrant 5

- most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an‘annual report) that-has materialty affected,.or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over fmancral reporting: and - .~ - .

r

5. The registrant s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over. financial

.- reporting, to the registrants auditors and the audit committee -of registrant's board of. directors, {or’ persons performing.-the
equivalent functions)

-abAll significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control-over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)Any fraud, whether or not,material; that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's -
internal control over financial reporting. - . - oo -

.

Date: February 28, 2007 . ' R . ere

'._By fsf Glenn A. Eisenberg

_ Glenn A. Eisenberg . s
Executive Vice President — - - T ®
Finance and Administration ' - . o
{Principal Financial Officer)’ : ’

-

WL - - i .
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EXHIBIT 32

' Certlﬂcatlon Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
~As Adopted Pursuant to.Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of The Timken Cormpany (the Company ) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006,

as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report’), each of the unders|gned ofﬂcers of the .
Company cemfles pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that, to such officer’s
knowledge: - o R

e

am -

1. The Report fully complies with the réquirements of Section 13{a} or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and P

" 2, The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations . .o
of the Company as of the dates and for the periods expressed in the Report,

Date: February 28, 2007

.

.+ By " /s/ James W. Griffith ' : ‘

Jamés W. Griffith
»  President and Chief Executive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer)

, By /s/ Glenn A. Eisenberg

Glenn A. Eisenberg o
Executive Vice President -
Finance and Administration
{Principal Financial Officer)

The fdrégoi_ng certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18-U.S.C. 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a _ ;
separate disclosure document. -

*
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SHAREHDOLDER

CorRPORATE OFFICES
The Timken Company

1835 Dueber Ave,, SW,

Canton, Ohio 44706-2798

Telephone: 330-438-3000
Web site: www.timken.com

STOCK LISTING
Timken stock is traded on the New York
Stock Exchange under the symbol TKR.

ANNUAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

May 1, 2007, 10 a.m., Timken Corporate
Offices.

Please direct meeting inquiries to
Scott Scherff, Corporate Secretary and
Assistant General Counsel, at 330-471-42286.

SHAREHDLDER
INFORMATION

Dividends on commen stock are generally
payable in March, June, September and
December,

The Timken Company offers an open
enroliment dividend reinvestment and stock
purchase plan through its transfer agent. This
program allows current shareholders and new
investors the opportunity to purchase shares
of common stock without a broker.

Shareholders of record may increase their
investment in the company by reinvesting
their dividends at no cost. Shares held in the
name of a broker must be transferred to the
sharehclder’'s name to permit reinvestment.

Please direct inquiries to:

National City Bank Reinvestment Services
PO. Box 94946

Cleveland, Ohio 44101-49486

e-mail: shareholder.inquiries@nationalcity.com

Inguiries concerning dividend payments,
change of address or lost certificates
should be directed to National City Bank
at 1-800-622-6757 or 216-257-8663.

INFORMATION

TRANSFER AGENT AND
REGISTRAR

National City Bank Shareholder Services
P.0. Box 92301

Cleveland, Ohio 44193-0900
www.nationalcitystocktransfer.com

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PuBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Ernst & Young LLP

Huntington Building

Suite 1300

925 Euclid Ave.

Cleveland, Ohio 44115-1476

PUBLICATIONS

The Annual Meeting Notice, Proxy Statement
and Proxy Card are mailed to shareholders

in March.

Capies of Forms 10-K and 10-Q may be
obtained from the company's Web site,
www.timken.com/investors, or by written
requesi at no charge from:

The Timken Company
Shareholder Relations, GME-04
P.O. Box 6928

Canton, Ohio 44706-0928

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Investors and securities analysts may contact:

Steve Tschiegg

Manager - Investor Relations
The Timken Company

1835 Dueber Ave., S.W.
Canton, Ohio 44706-0928

Telephone: 330-471-7446
e-mail: steve tschiegg@timken.com

TRADEMARKS
Timken® and Spexx® are trademarks of
The Timken Company.

@ Printed on Recycled Paper




2006 HIGHLIGHTS

* | everaged strong global demand in industrial markets, achieving record sales.

* Opened a new bearing plant in Wuxi, China, and began construction of three mare bearing
plants in Wuxi and Chengdu, China, and Chennai, India.

* Installed capacity for bearing repair services in China, resulting in new business.
+ Supplied rail bearings that drive locomotives in China for the world's highest railway.
* Expanded global market positions in aerospace, power transmission, energy and cement.

* Opened a manufacturing/technology facility in Mesa, Ariz., for aerospace aftermarket
suppart and acquired aircraft engine overhaut capabilities.

*» Launched advanced aerospace technoiagies, including development of a hybrid ball bearing
and proprietary materials for the Pratt & Whitney engine of the -35 Joint Strike Fighter.

» Expanded the bearing-related product portfolio with additions of a 1arge bore seal line,
multipoint automatic lubricator, hand-held bearing tester and maintenance taols.

* Improved inventary availability while completing warehausing and customer service
. integration projects in the U.S., Europe and Asia.

v e i e S TR

* Laenched new programs valued at $109 million for light vehicles, encompassing engineering
solutions for wheel-end packages and fuel-efficient bearings.

* Launched 23 new transmission programs valued at $64 million for U.S., European and
Asian automakers.

* Sold the automative steering unit, increasing the focus on core automative products.

» Continued automotive restructuring initiatives tc improve competitiveness in key product lines
and targeting savings of $40 million by 2008.

* Received customer supplier awards from Aisin Warner, BorgWarner, Renault, Nissan,
ArvinMeritor, Toyota and Volkswagen.

* Consolidated powertrain engineering, process engineering and administration at a new
technology center in Greenville, S.C., for innovation and development of powertrain sclutions.

* Increased sales of specialized integrated circuits for sensing rotation by 30 percent.
* Obtained new husiness in Europe for heavy truck advanced package bearings.

+ Achieved record sales, shipments and profitability, leveraging the strength of steel markets.
= Achieved record productivity as measured by labor hours per ten shipped.

» |nitiated projects to expand steel bar sizes, providing unmatched bar size capabitities in
North America.

* Expanded heat-treat processing capability and announced a new induction thermal treatment
facility, operational in first quarter of 2007.

= Significantly increased automotive transptant business in North America with this strong growth
expected to continue in 2007, aided by new applicatiens.

» Expanded the steel marketing group and increased export sales twofold, including a significant
expart increase to China.

* Increased sales by nearly 25 percent in each of two key market segments — energy and distribution.

* Took actions to focus on core business, including the sale of the specialty steel subsidiary and
the Eusopean unit of precision steel companents and announcing exit plans for steel tube
manufacturing in the United Kingdom.

3




COoORPORATE PROFILE

PORTFOLIO

MARKETS

INDUSTRIAL

Timken is a global leader in friction management and power
transmission solutions, serving a diverse range of industrial
original equipment manufacturers and aftermarket distributors.

Products and Services:

* Bearings, including ball, 1apered, needle, cylindrical and
spherical raller

High-performance bearing solutions, including debris-resistant
bearings, engineered surfaces and Spexx® hearing line for
extreme environments

Integrated hub assemblies and housed bearing units

Related products, including industrial seals, condition
monitoring equipment, electronic sensars, lubricants, single
and multipoint fubricators, maintenance tools and aircraft
engine and gearbox parts

Related services, including training programs; repair/
refurbishing of bearings, chocks and rolls; aircraft engine
overhaul services; aircraft engine bearing reconditioning; axle
box repair for transit applications; inventory management and
on-site iNspection services

Timken online stores at PTplace.com and Endorsia.com

» Distribution management
- Industrial and automotive aftermarket

e Industrial equipment
— Heavy industries, including metals, aggregate, cement,
vilfield, power generation — coal and wind, and pulp and paper
— Power transmission, including gear drives, pumps, compressors,
textile equipment, food processing and material conveyors

« Off-highway
~ Agriculture, construction, hydraulics, industrial trucks, mining,
motorsports, power drives, lawn and garden equipment and
recreational vehicles

* Rail
— Freight, high-speed rail, locomotives, passenger cars and
gear drives

+ Health and positioning control
— Medical diagnostic equipment and rehabilitation and mobility
equipment, including wheelchairs, fitness equipment, artificial
limbs and respiratory assist devices
— Intelligent systems and motion contral for machine tools
and guidance systems

» Aerospace and defense
— Engines, gearboxes, instruments, accessory power systems,
fanding gear and weapons Systems

AUTOMOTIVE

Timken s a global leader in friction management and power
transmission solutions for the automotive industry.

Products and Services:

Tapered and needle rotler bearings

Integrated wheel ends

*

Tapered axle center bearings and fuel-efficient bearing
designs

Specialized integrated circuits for sensing rotation

Formed finger followers, rocker arms and valve tappet
bearings for engine applications

Transmission bearings and pump vanes

Transmission, axle and wheel-end bearings far heavy
truck applications

Bearings for steering colurns and universal joints

Engineering services, including modeling of automotive
systems, design analysis and performance measurement

+ Light vehicles
— Light trucks and sport utility vehicles
~ Axles and wheel ends
— Engines and transmissions
— Accessarigs, including braking systems, fuel systems, air-
conditioning, alternators, starter motors and steering columns
— Passenger cars
— Engines and transmissions
— Rear axles
— Accessories
— Crossover utility vehicles
— Axles and wheel ends
— Engines and transmissions
— Accessories

* Heavy-duty commercial vehicles

- Medium-duty trucks

— Axles and wheel ends

— Engines and transmissions
- Heavy-duty trucks

- Axles and whee! ends

— Engines and transmissions
— Trailers

— Axles and wheel ends

STEEL

Timken is a leading manufacturer of alloy steel and precision
steel components, serving a diverse range of customers.

It also provides technical services for development of materiats
and applications.

Products and Setvices:
* Alloy steel bars and tubing
* Precision steel componenis
* Warehousing — fast-track tubing
* Value-added matenials processing
+ Timken Steel Institute — in-depth steel customer orientation
= Materials characterization, process modeling and testing

* Automotive light and heavy vehicles
— Crankshafts, gears, shafts, CV cages, clutch races, camshafts,
cannecting rods and fuel injectors

* Bearings
— Inner and outer races, rolling elements and hubs
+ |ndustrial

— (ff-highway, fluid power, rail, mining, marine, agriculture,
cold-finishing, forgers, gears and aerospace

 Energy
— Dill bits and collars, heavy-wailed drill pipe, mud motors,
valves, completion tools and wind turbine gears

« [efense
— Missile casings. gun barrels and ordnance shells

« Distribution
— Industrial, automotive and energy applications
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